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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

Lori A Weaver 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
loterim cimmisiiODer 603.271-«50! 1^-852-3345 Ext 4501

Fax: 603-271-1827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs-nh.gov
Patricia M. TUley

Director

May 30. 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract, which was originally
competitively bid, with The Family Resource Center at Gotham (VC#162412-B001), Gorham, NH,
below to add funding to support home visiting and lead reduction programmatic activities,
involving care, coordination, outreach, and education by increasing the total price limitation by
$215,000 from $1,590,113 to $1,805,113 with no change to the contract completion dates of
September 30, 2024, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on February 8, 2023, item
#39.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details sheet.

EXPLANATION

The request is Sole Source because the Department is amending the scope of services
to include the Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program (HHLPPP), as well as
adding funding to support programmatic activities involving care coordination, outreach, and
education. The Contractor is uniquely qualified to provide services, as they have established lead
prevention services within the North Country region.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to conduct outreach and education
initiatives in the North Country, with focus on prenatal testing, education to school nurses and
special education directors, and completing lead risk assessment of targeted pre-1978 childcare
facilities via the Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program. The Contractor will
provide education specifically on young children and pregnant women residing in housing built
before 1978. Additional funding will support the ongoing programmatic activities involving care
coordination and programmatic outreach conducted by Family Support Specialists to connect
families with need services in the community, including home visiting and family resource center
programming.
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The Contractor will collaborate with medical providers, families of young children and other
stakeholders, initiating outreach and education to address the high risk of lead poisoning across
the North Country.

Approximately 148 individuals will be served by The Family resource Center at Gorham
during State Fiscal Years 2023, 2024. and 2025.

The Division of Public Health Services will continue to monitor services by reviewing all
educational material and reports.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals in the
North Country will not have access to education and a lead risk assessment, which may increase
the likelihood of Lead Poisoning occurrences in children under 6 years of age.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number # 93.391, FAIN# NH750T000031.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additiorial General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

iterim Commissioner

Vie Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and familiea
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FISCAL DETAILS

HOME VISITING SERVICES • THE FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

AMENDMENTS!

05-9S-90-902010-S896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF COMM &

HEALTH SERV. HOME VISITING FORMULA GNT

100% FEDERAL •CFDA« 93.870, FAiN» X1043595; X1046878

Tb* Famllv Resource Center at Gortiam •Vendor #162412-8001 1
State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Modified

Budget

Increase (Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Amount

2023

{10/1/22-6/30/23)
074-500589

Grants (or Pub Asst

and Rd
90083208 $269,729.00 $0.00 $269,729.00

2024

(7/1/23-6«0/24)
074-500589

Grants (or Pub Asst

and Rd
90083210 $378,354.00 $0.00 $378,354.00

2025

(7/1/24-9/30/24)
074-500589

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rd
90083210 $92,583.00 $0.00 $92,583.00

SUBTOTAL: $740,666.00 $0.00 $740,666.00

1 1 ! i • . 1 1
05-95-90-902010-5I90 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV.

MATERNAL - CHILD HEALTH. HEALTH DIV

62.50% GENERAL FUNDS, 37.50% FEDERAL FUNDS - HRSA 93.991. FAIN# B04MC45230

FamilvResourceCenterat6orham-Vendor#162412*B001 ' > : - 1
State Fiscal Year Class/Account CUss TMe Job Number Current Modified

Budget

Increase (Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Amount

2023

(10/1/22-6/30/23)
102-500731

Contracts for

Program Svcs
90004009 $56,250.00 $0.00 $56,250,00

2024

{7/1/23-6/30/24)
,102-500731

Contracts for

Program Svcs
90004019 $75,000.00 $0.00 $75,000,00

—  2025

{7/1/24-9/30/24)
102-500731

Contracts for

Program Svcs
90004019 $18,750.00 $0.00 $18,750.00

1  SUBTOTAL: $160,000.00 $0.00 $160,000.00

1  1 1 • • ! 1 f 1
05-95-09.901010-5771 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF POLICY &

PERFORMANCE. PH COVID-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES

100% FEDERAL FUNDS - CFDA# 93.391. FAIN# NH7SOT000031

lFamilvResourceCenteratGoi1iam-Vendor#162412-6001 ' 1
State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Modified

Budget

Increase (Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modifled

Amount-

2023

(10/1/22-6/30/23)
074-500589

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rdief
90577150 $0.00 $15,000.00 $15,000

2023

(10/1/22-6/30/23)
074-500589

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rdief
90577150 $86,512.00 $15,000.00 101.512.00

2024

(7/1/23-5/31/24) 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Rdief
90577150 $0.00 $85,000.00 $85,000

2024

(7/1/23-5/31/24)
074^500589

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rdief
90577150 $0.00 $100,000.00 100.000.00

SUBTOTAL: $86,512.00 $215,000.00 301,612.00

1  I I 1  1
05.95-90-902010-2451 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV. E

HEALTH SERV. ARP -MIEC HOME VISITING

100% FEDERAL FUNDS - CFDA# 93.870. FAIN# X1141935; X114S263

UEAU OF COMM&

iFamllv Resource Center at Gorhsm - Vendor #162412-6001 ' 1
State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Modified

Budget

Increase (Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Amount

2023

(10/1/22-6/30/23)
074-500589

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rd
90083206 $68,714.00 $0.00 $68,714.00

.2024

(7-1-23-6/30/24)
074-500589

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rd
90083207 $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00

2025

(7/1/24-9/30/24)
074-500589

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rd
90083207 $56,532,00 $0,00 $56,532.00

SUBTOTAL: $176,246.00 $0.00 $176,246.00

1  1 1 I
DIVISION FOR CHILDREN. YOUTH AND FAMILIES {DCYF) FUNDS ■' 1

05-95-042-421010-29580000, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD
PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES

50% FEDERAL FUNDS - CFDA# 93.658. FAIN# 2201NHFOST

iThe Famllv Resource Center at Gortiam-Vendor #162412-6001 1
State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class THle Job Number Current Modified

Budget

Increase (Decrease)
Amount

Revised Modified
Amount

RFP.2023-OPHS-O1-HOMEV-O3^1 lof2



FISCAL DETAILS

HOME VISITING SERVICES ■ THE FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

AMENDMENTS

2023

(10/1/22-6/30/23)
637-504181

TITLE IV-E

FOSTER CARE

SERVICE

42105869 $164,133.00 $0.00 $164,133.00

2024

(7/1/23-8/30/24)
637-504181

TITLE IV-E

FOSTER CARE

SERVICE

42105869 $218,845.00 $0.00 $218,845.00

2025

(7/1/24-9/30/24)

1

637-504181

TITLE IV-E

FOSTER CARE

SERVICE

42105869 $54,711.00 $0.00 $54,711.00

SUBTOTAL:! $437,689.00 $0.00 $437,689.00

1  • 1
1  1

COMBINED HOME VISITING SERVICES CONTRACT TOTAL: 1  $1,590,113,0011  $215,000,0011  $1,805,113.00

RFP-2023-DPHS-01 -HOMEV-OS-AOI 2 of 2



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Home Visiting Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and The Family Resource Center at
Gbrham ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on February 8, 2023 (Item # 39), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation, and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,805,113

2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by adding Subsection 3.30., to read:

3.30. Coos County Lead Program

3.30.1. Outreach and Education

3.30.1.1. The Contractor must provide outreach and education to school nurses
and Directors of Special Education in School Administrative Units
across Coos County on the importance of lead testing, awareness of
lead hazards in pre-1978 housing, and the impact of lead poisoning
on children 72 months and younger.

3.30.1.2. The Contractor must educate families of young children pn lead
hazards associated with living in a pre-1978 home. This education will
include topics such as finding a lead safe contractor and the dangers
of lead poisoning to young children and pregnant women. As part of
this education, the Contractor shall distribute items that include lead
check swabs, boot trays, and window guards.

3.30.2. Policy Development

3.30.2.1. The Contractor, in collaboration with the support from the Healthy
Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program, must educate
School Administrators, School Boards, and Special Education
Directors, on the benefits of developing policies to increase lead
testing in young children.

3.30.2.2. The Contractor, in collaboration with the support from the Healthy
Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program, must shall educate
municipalities on the benefits of increasing the number of contractors •
in their community using lead safe work practices on pre-1978
properties.

G—OS
PS

r^c5»JUl«..c ai 1 m.i.oia

5/30/2023
RFP-2023-DPHS-01-HOMEV-03-A01 Page 1 of 5 Date
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3.30.3. Increasing Lead Testing Rates on Young Children and Pregnant Women

3.30.3.1. The Contractor shall obtain a Lead Care II Point of Care Testing
Device to test young children, 72 months and younger and pregnant
women for blood lead elevations

3.30.3.2. The Contractor shall educate healthcare providers, school nurses,
parents and pregnant women on where lead paint hazards exist in pre-
1978 properties, the importance of using lead-safe work practices, and
blood lead testing.

3.30.4. Identify Lead Hazards in Childcare Facilities

3.30.4.1. The Contractor shall enter into an agreement with a licensed Risk
Assessor work with up to four Childcare Facilities to identify lead
hazards and the potential risk to young children, 72 months and
younger.

3.30.4.2. The Risk Assessor will educate Childcare Facility staff members oh
lead hazard awareness and the importance of testing young children,
72 months and younger, for blood lead elevations.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by adding Section 4., to read:

'  4. Exhibits Incorporated

\  4.1 The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance with
'  the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (Privacy Rule) (45

" CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
(HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate
Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

:  4.2 The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

4.3 The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section i., by replacing with the below:

'1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 83% Federal Funds from:

1.1.1. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant Program, as
awarded on September 7, 2021, by the DHHS Health Resources and
Services Administration, CFDA 93.870, FAIN X10MG43595.

1.1.2. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant Program, as
awarded on Septernber 2, 2022, by the DHHS Health Resources and
Services Administration, CFDA 93.870, FAIN X10MC46878.

1.1.3. American Rescue Plan Act Funding for Home Visiting, as awarded on April
30.2021, by the DHHS Health Resources and Services Administration,
CFDA 93.870, FAIN XI1MC41935.

1.1.4. American Rescue Plan Act Funding for Home Visiting, as awarded on
October 28, 2021, by the DHHS Health Resources and Services
Administration. CFDA 93.870, FAlNXI 1MC45263:

The Family Resource Center at Gorham A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials

PS

5/30/2023
RFP-2023-DPHS-01-HOMEV-03-A01 Page 2 of 5 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

1.1.5. Administration of Children Youth & Families (ACF), as awarded on October
1. 2022, CFDA 93.658, FAIN 2201NHFOST.

1.1.6. Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant, as awarded on October
19, 2021, by the DHHS Health Resources and Services Administration
CFDA 93!994, FAIN B04MC45230.

1.1.7. New Hampshire Initiative to Address COVID-19 Health Disparities, as
awarded on May 27, 2021, by the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, CFDA 93.391, FAIN NH750T000031.

1.2. 17% General Funds.

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 7., by replacing with the below:
7. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the

fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibits C-1 Budget Sheet, SFY 2023 through Exhibit C-13, Budget (SFY 2024)
-Amendment#!.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Subsection 9.2., by replacing with the below:
9.2. Payment shall be made on a monthly basis and follow a process determined by the

Department, as indicated in Section 10.1., below.

7. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Subsection 10.1., by replacing with the below:

10.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in
the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line
items, as specified in Exhibit C-11 Budget Sheet, and SFY 2023; Exhibit C-12 Budget
Sheet. The Maximum allotment for contract expenditures by Fiscal Year is as follows:

State Fiscal Year Amount

2023 $74,965

2024 $109,862

2025 $0*

Sub-Total $184,827

*The Contractor wil

services in SFY 25.

only bill for direct

8. Modify Exhibit C-10 Budget, SFY 2023, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-10, Budget {SFY
2023) - Amendment # 1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit C-13, Budget (SFY 2024) - Amendment # 1, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

The Family Resource Center at Gorham

RFP-2023-DPHS-01-HOMEV-03-A01

A-S.1.2

Page 3 of 5

Contractor Initials

PS

Date
5/30/2023



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

5/30/2023

Date

-DocuSigiMd by;

Patricia M. Tilley

Title: Di rector

The Family Resource Center at Gorham

5/30/2023

Date

'DocuSlgnad by:

roMMienetw...

Name:''"""®

Title: Executive Director

The Family Resource Center at Gorham

RFP-2023-DPHS-01.HOMEV-03-A01

A-S.1.2

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

^  QocuSttyied by:

5/30/2023

Date Name:'^°^y" cuarino

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

The Family Resource Center at Gorham . A-S-1.2

RFP-2023-DPHS-01-HOMEV.03.A01 Page 5 of 5
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Exhibit C-10, Budget (SPY 2023) - Amendment # 1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:
The Family Resource Center at
Gorham

Budget Request for:
Home Visiting Services - PH COVID-
19 Health Disparities

Budget Period
SFY 2023

(07/01/2022 - 06/30/2023)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)10%

Line Item
i

Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $69,753

2. Fringe Benefits $9,000

3. Consultants $3,500

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$2,200

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $5,000

5.(e) Supplies Office $3,700

6. Travel $3,000

7. Software $400

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $1,000

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $4,000

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $4,000

Other (please specify) $112

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) . '  -^$0
Other (please specify) ,  $0 .

9. Subrecipient Contracts . $0

Total Direct Costs $105,665

-

Total Indirect Costs $10,847

TOTAL $116,512

Contractor Initial:

FS

RFP-2023-bPHS-01-HOMEV-03-A01 Date:
5/30/2023
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Exhibit C-13, Budget (SPY 2024) - Amendment # 1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:
The Family Resource Center at
Gorham

Budget Request for:
Home Visiting Services - PH COVID-
19 Health Disparities

Budget Period
SPY 2024

(07/01/2023 - 06/30/2024)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)10%

'  Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages .  $124,748

2. Fringe Benefits $18,000

3. Consultants $4,000

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$2,200

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $2,000

5.(e) Supplies Office $3,700

6. Travel $3,000

7. Software $552

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications .. .... $1,000.

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $4,000

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $4,000

Other (please specify) $1,000

Other (please specify) .  ■ , ^ $0
Other (please specify) ■ ■ ■-$0
Other (please specify) /  $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs :  . . $168:200
■

Total Indirect Costs $16,800

TOTAL $185,000

Contractor Initial:

^08.

&
RFP-2023-DPHS-01-HOMEV-03^A01 Date:

5/30/2023



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secreiar>' of State of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE FAMILY RESOURCE

CENTER AT GORHAM is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April

03. 1997. [ further certify that all fees and documents required by the Seeretar>' ofSiate s office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 270161

Certificate Number: 0006239635

SI

I&.

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this3Ist day of MayA.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretan' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Christian Corriveau, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of The Family Resource Center at Gorham

2. The following is a true copy, of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on April 19. 2023 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Patricia Stolte is duly authorized on behalf of The Family Resource Center at Gorham to enter into
contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is
authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Harnpshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) .
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

SI lecte Offi

Nametphristian Corrh^au
Title: Resident I

Rev. 03/24/20
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/XCORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATC{Mliil©(VyYYY)

04/11/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OP INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or t>e endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane'

P.OBox 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAME*^^ Faifley Kenneaify
(603)293-2791 (603)293-7188

ADDRESS- 'a'rtey®esinsurance.net
INSURERISl AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICi

INSURER A: Great American Insurance Group GAIG

INSURED

Family Resource Center at Gorham

123 Main Street

Gortiam NH 035B1

INSURER B - travelers Property Casualty Co of America 25674

INSURER c ;

INSURER D;

INSURER E:

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: ^3 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY TWATTTHE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOVW MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
POUCY efF
IMMPD/YYYY)

POUCY EXP
(MM©0/YYYY^TYPE OP INSURANCE

ADUU SUBR

VWO POUCY NUMBER UMITS
wSr
LTH

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAeE TO RENTES-
PREMISES (Ea oecufr>nc«>

MAC 3793560 16

MEO EXP (Any Of* pfton)

05/10/2023 05/10/2024
PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTPOUCY □ LOC

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE
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CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301-3857

1 .

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

€> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Family Resource Center at Gorham

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Family Resource Center at
Gorham (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the'statements of financial
position as of June 30. 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Family Resource Center at Gorham as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the
changes in its , net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted, our audits in accordance.with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of bur report. We are required to be independent
of Family Resource Center at Gorham and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for bur audit
opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance'«of"intefnal control relevant to the
preparation and fair ■ presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Family
Resource Center at Gorham's ability to continue as a going concern within one, year after the
date that the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not .detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the'override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,

individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Govemment Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  . Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Family. Resource Center at Gorham's
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

• ■ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Family Resource Center at Gorham's
ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.
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Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to.the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated
October 19, 2022, on our consideration of Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and. not to provide an opinion on the.
effectiveness of Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed .in accordance with.
Govemment Auditing Standards in considering Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

North Conway, New Hampshire
October 19, 2022
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment
Buildings

Total

Less: accumulated depreciation

Property, net •

OTHER ASSETS

Investments

2022

$  1,001,201

83,677

607,171
15,603

1,707,652

88,452

51,575
70,015

210,042
(113,185)

96,857

225,995
30,574

2021

820,554

83,511

523,750
79.030

1,506,845

74,932

51,575
70.015

196,522
(106735)

89,787

248,442
340

^ Total other assets 256,569 248,782

TOTAL ASSETS $  2,061,078 $ 1,845.414

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Due to State of New Hampshire

Agency deposits
Refundable advances

$  20,146

102,296

32,257

30,574
33,332

$ 15,119

94,899

340

302,055

Total current liabilities 21.8,605 412,413

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

Designated for long-term building maintenance

Undesignated

55,083

1,529,925

26,472

1,127,916

Total net assets without donor restrictions 1,585,008 1,154,388

With donor restrictions 257,465 278,613

' Total net assets 1,842,473 1,433,001

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $  2,061,078 $ 1,845,414

See Notes to Financial Statements

4
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants

Medicaid

In-kind contributions

Contributions

Agency rents
Investment return

Interest income

Other income

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue and support

EXPENSES

Program services
Management and general

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

2,503,575

1,530.768

111,319

35,794

43,698

798

804

13,520

4,240,276

3,338,322
471,334

3,809,656

430,620

1,154,388

$  1,585,008

With Donor

Restrictions Total

■$ $  2,503,575
- 1,530,768
- ■  111,319

15,000 50,794
- 43,698

(22,628) (22,628)
- . 798
- 804

(13,520) -

(21.148) 4,219,128

3,338,322
- 471,334

3,809,656

(21,148) 409,472

278,613 1,433,001

$  257,465 $  1,842,473

See Notes to Financial Statements

5
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

;  REVENUE AND SUPPORT
Grants $  3.067,269 $  12,000 $  3,079,269

<  Medicaid 367,667 - 367,667

'  In-kind contributions 62,000 - 62,000

■  Contributions 19,373 15,000 34,373

Agency rents 38,256 - 38,256

Investment return - 44,518 44,518

Interest income 543 - 543

^  Other income 23,259 - 23,259

1

Total revenue and support 3,578,367 ' 71^518 3,649,885

EXPENSES

;  Program services 2,919,283 - 2,919,283

;  Management and general 320,297 • 320,297

Total expenses 3,239,580 - 3,239,580

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 338,787 71,518 410,305"

1  NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 815,601 . 207,095 1,022,696

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR $  1,154,388 S  278,613 •  $ 1,433,001

See Notes to Financial Statements

6
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022

Management

Program and

Services General TPtal
Personnel Costs

Salaries and wages $  1,989,734 $  248,433 $  2,238,167

Payroll taxes 164,123 20,603 184,726

Employee benefits 261,219 27,951 289,170

Food and supplies 223,819 2,778 226,597

Program activities 224,287 245 224,532

Travel 189,434 1,203 190,637

Contractors and consultants 92,880 11,935 104,815

Training 76,476 1,389 77,865

Technology 3,551 71,491 ■ 75,042

Occupancy 27,315 - 26,870 .  .54,185

Telephone and Internet 31,702 ■ 2,378 34,080

Legal and professional fees 6,658 20,914 27,572

Liability Insurance 19,497 3,397 22,894

Advertising 18,593 219 18,812

Repairs and maintenance - 12,839 12,839

Small equipment 6,800 984 7,784

Depreciation - 6,450 6,450

Payroll processing service - 5,656 5,656

Printing 1,491 1,985 3,476

Property Insurance 1,987 1,987

Conferences and meetings 160 796 956

Other 25 829 854

Postage and shipping 408 2 410

Bank charges 150 - 150

' Total $  3,338,322 $  471,334" $  3,809,656

See Notes to Financial Statements

7
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

Management
Program and

Services General Total

Personnel Costs

Salaries and wages $  1,831,914 $  147,800, $  1,979,714

Payroll taxes 125,775 ■  17,151 142,926
Employee benefits 206,991 34,335 241,326

Food and supplies 163,028 - 163,028

Travel 142,515 1,531 144,046

Contractors and consultants 103,897 38,396 ■  142,293
Program activities 109,388 4,985 114,373
Training 65,864 1,715 67,579

Advertising 43,549 25 43,574

;  Small equipment 33,023 2,433 35,456

,  Heat and utilities ' 34,926 34,926

Telephone, internet, fax and cable 20,656 - 117 20,773

i  Rent 19,464 - 19,464

f  Accounting fees 4,035 12,812 16,847

Other 12,586 4,067 16,653

Conferences and meetings 10,882 - 10,882

Printing 8,095 2,572 10,667

Technology • 31 9,049 9,080

'  Property insurance 6,807 1,201 8,008

^  Liability insurance 4,684 2,310 6,994

Depreciation 4,330 1,083 5,413

Payroll processing service - 3,550 3,550

,  Postage and shipping 1,605 21 1,626

Bank charges 164 218 . 382

Total $  2,919,283 $  320,297 $  3,239,580

See Notes to Financial Statements

8
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FAMILY RESOURCF CFMTER AT GQRHAM

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

CASH BALANCES

Cash and equivalents, operating
Agency deposits • cash

Total cash and equivalents and restricted cash

$  1,001,201
30,574

$  1,031,775

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  409,472 $  410,305

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities;

Unrealized (gain) loss on investments 33,135 (37,666)

Realized gains on investments (6,213) (3.433)

Depreciation 6,450 5.413

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Grants receivable (83,421) (382,543)

Prepaid expenses 63,427 (65,251)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
■ Accounts payable. 5,027 9,301

Accrued expenses 7,397 42.477

Due to State of New Hampshire 32,257. -

Agency deposits 30,234 340

Refundable advances (268,723) 294,712

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 229,042 273,655

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from the sale of investments 36,151 44,110

Purchase of investments and certificates of deposit .  (40,792) (48.725)

Additions to property and equipment (13,520) -

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (18.161) (4.615)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

AND RESTRICTED CASH 210.88V 269,040

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH,
BEGINNING OF YEAR 820,894" 551,854

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH.
END OF YEAR $  1,031,775 $  820,894

820,554
340

820,894

See Notes to Financial Statements

'9
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

The Family Resource Center at Gorham (the Resource Center) is a voluntary, not-for-profit
corporation incorporated under the lav\/s of the State of New Hampshire (RSA 292) and
organized exclusively for tax exempt charitable and educational purposes. The principal activity
of the Resource Center is to deliver programming that works to build healthier families and
stronger communities.

The programs are preventative and help to remove obstacles by providing pathways to healthy
family function and early childhood development to at-risk and underserved populations in
northern New Hampshire.

Evidence-based home visiting delivers parent education and support that empowers parents to
build healthy family dynamics. They address Issues such as substance misuse, lack of
education, safe housing and employrhent. The Resource Center provides community based
social and emotional support through workshops, support groups, and counseling to promote
family success.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Resource Center have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the Resource Center to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net asset
classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing' the
primary objectives of the Resource Center. These net assets may be used at the
discretion of the Resource Center's management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by
donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in . nature; those
restrictions will be met by actiorSs of the Resource Center or by passage of time..
Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated
the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

10
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Other Events

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its spread
continue to affect the Resource Center's operations. The significance of the impact of these
disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Resource Center's financial
and operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such disruptions continue
and, in turn, will depend on .the currently unknowable duration of the COVID-19 pandemic
and the impact of governmental regulations that might be imposed in response to the
pandemic. The Resource Center's operations could also be impacted by COVID-19 by service
disruption that causes decreases to Medicaid revenue as well as leading to changes in client
and donor behavior. The COVID-19 impact on the capital markets could also impact the
Resource Center's cost of borrowing. There are certain limitations on the Resource Center's
ability to mitigate the adverse financial impact of these items. COVID-19 also makes it more
challenging for management to estimate future performance-of the operations, particularly
over the near to medium term.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents include all monies in banks and liquid investments with maturity
dates of less than three months. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents
approximates fair value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments.

Investments

Investments are accounted for according to Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958-
320 Not For Profit Entities - Investments - Debt and Equity Securities. Under ASC 958-
3'20, investrnents In marketable securities with ,readily determinable fair values'and all
investments in debt securities are valued at their fair values in the statement of financial
position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets. Fair values of
investments are based on quoted prices in active markets for identical investments.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost if purchased and at fair value if donated. Depreciation
is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as
follows;

Furniture and equipment - 5-15 years
Leasehold improvements 20 years
Buildings 39 years

The Resource Center's policy is to capitalize all assets over $2,500 with an expected life of one
year or longer. Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along with the
related depreciation allowance, and any gain or loss is recognized.

11
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as increases in net assets without donor restrictions or net

assets with donor restrictions depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor or time
restrictions. A purpose restriction permits the Resource Center to use contributed assets as
specified for a particular purpose. Net assets restricted in perpetuity are those that are required
to be permanently maintained, but income from such investments may be used for specified
purposes. All donor restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with donor
restrictions, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when
a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as
net assets released from restrictions.

Contributions of donated non-cash assets are recorded at their fair values in the period received.
Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or that require
specialized skills, which are provided by the individuals possessing those skills, and would typically
need to be purchased if not provided by donations, are recorded at their fair values in the period
received.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the program services and
supporting activities benefited. Such allocations have been determined by management on an
equitable basis.

j

The expenses that are allocated include the following;

Expense Method of Allocation

Salaries and benefits Time and effort

Occupancy Square footage
Depreciation Square footage
All other expenses Direct assignment

Refundable Advances

.>r.The Resource Center records grant/contract revenue as a refundable advance until it is
expended for the purpose of the grant/contract, at which time it is recognized as revenue.

income Taxes

The Resource Center is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the Resource Center qualifies for the charitable contribution
deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(a) and has been classified as an organization that is not a
private foundation.

Management has evaluated the Resource Center's tax positions and concluded that the
Resource Center has maintained its tax-exempt status and has taken .no uncertain tax positions
that would require adjustment to the financial statements..

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable from various public and other nonprofit organizations at June 30, 2022 and
2021 were considered fully collectable and therefore no provisions for bad debts have been
made in these financial statements.

12



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797^E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Reclassificatlons

Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative
purposes to conform vwth the presentation in the current year financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC Topic No. 820-10, Fair Value Measurement, prpvide^a definition of fair value which focuses
on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally accepted
accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is a market based
measurement, not an entity specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with PASS ASC.820-10, the Resource Center may use
valuation techniques consistent with rnarket, income and cost approaches to measure fair value.
As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements, ASC Topic
820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used In measuring fair values.
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic 820-10 are described
as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active
markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market prices
in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the
reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of.models or other
valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in situations
where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and the reporting
entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of the asset or
liability including assumptions regarding risk.

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the Resource Center's investments were all classified as Level 1 and
were based on fair value.

The asset or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques
used need to maximize the use of obsen/able inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The following Is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair
value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Equities: Valued at the closing market price on the stock exchange where they are
traded (primarily the New York Stock Exchange).

Mutual Funds: Valued at the net asset value ,(NAV) of shares held by the Resource
Center at year end.
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

The preceding method may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Resource Center
believes its valuation method is appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use

of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair -value of certain financial
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

Revenue Recognition

In May of 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). This ASU is a comprehensive revenue recognition model
that requires an organization to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to a
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration it expects to receive in exchange for those
goods of services. The Resource Center adopted this ASU on July 1, 2020, using the modified
retrospective approach .and applied this ASU only to contracts not completed as of July 1, 2020.
Contracts and transactions with customers predominantly contain a single performance obligation.
The impact of adopting this ASU was not material to the financial statements.

The Resource Center records the following exchange transaction revenue in its statements of
activities for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021: '

Program Service Fees - Revenue from providing family support services under the
State of New Hampshire's Medicaid program. Revenue from providing family '
support services is recognized at the completion of providing such services.

Aaencv Rents - Revenue from the rental of office space is recognized over time.

New Accounting Pronouncement

As of . July 1, 2021, the Resource Center adopted the provisions, of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards. Update (ASU) 2020-07, Presentation and
Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets (Topic 958), as amended.
ASU 2020-07 applied to the presentation and disclosure of nonfinancial assets received by not-for-
profit organizations and increases transparency of such contributions. Results for reporting the
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 are presented under FASB ASC Topic 958. The ASU has
been applied retrospectively to all periods presented, with no material effect on previously issued
financial statements.
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Resource Center's financial assets as of June 30, 2022 and 2021;

Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Grants receivable

Investments

Agency deposits - cash

Total financial assets

2022

1,001,201
83,677

607,171

225,995

30,574

2021

820,554
83,5l'l

523,750

248,442

340

$  257,465 $ 278,613

55,083
30.574

343.122

26,472
340

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions

Amount board designated for
long-term maintenance

Agency deposits - cash

Amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

The Resource Center's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 90 days of operating
expenses (approximately $920,000). As part of its liquidity plan, excess cash is invested in short-
term investments, including money market accounts.

305.425

3. INVESTMENTS

Investments presented in the financial statements are stated at fair value. Realized gains and
losses are determined on the specific identification method. Gains and losses (realized and
unrealized) are reported in the statement of activities as increases or decreases to net assets
without donor restrictions, except for. those investments for which their use is restricted.
Information on investments at June 30, 2022 and 2021 is presented as follows: -

2022 2021

Cost

Market

Value Cost

Market

Value

Equities

Mutual Funds

Totals

125,284

99.515

118,904

107.091

106,045
108.267

128,052
120,390

248.442
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Components of Investment Return:

Interest and dividends

Unrealized gain (loss)
Realized gain
Investment fees

Total investment return

2022

8,817

(33,135)
6,213

(4.523)

2021

7,634

37,666

3,433

(4.215)

£  f22628) 5 44.518

4. AGENCY DEPOSITS

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Resource Center began serving as a fiscal agent for
Small Acts North, a Northern New Hampshire not-for-profit volunteer group that supports the
community by providing srnall acts of kindness. The amount held on behalf of Small Acts North
as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $30,574 and $340, respectively.

5. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

In April 2013, the .Resource Center entered into a revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
The revolving line of credit agreement provides for maximum borrowings up to $75,000 and is
collateralized by a certificate of deposit held at the same bank. The revolving line of credit and
the certificate of deposit both renew every six months. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the interest
rate on the revolving line of credit was stated at the bank's prime rate of 4.75% and 3.15%,
respectively. There were no balances outstanding as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

6. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK - CASH

• The Resource Center maintains cash balances that, at times, may exceed federally insured
limits. The cash balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up
to $250,000 per bank at June 30, 2022 and 2021. The Resource Center has not experienced
any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed, to any significant risk with these,
accounts. Cash balances in excess of FDIC insured limits amounted to $874,727 and $719,479

at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, respectively.

7. NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021:

Purpose restrictions:
Flooring/carpeting
Community events

Restrictions in perpetuity:
Endowment

Total net assets with donor restrictions

2022

13,480 $
15,000

228,985

2021

27,000

251.613

$  278.613
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Net assets without donor restrictions for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021

Undesignated $ 1,529,925 $ 1,127,916
Board designated 55.083 26.472

Total net assets without donor restrictions S 1.585.008 £ 1.154.388

8. NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS - BOARD DESIGNATED
By vote of the Board of Directors, funds have been designated for long-term building
maintenance. Net assets without donor restrictions designated by the board was $55,083 and
$26,472 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

9. ENDOWMENT FUND

In 2007, the Resource Center established a. permanent endowment fund for the organization
with the intent of accumulating donations and interest earnings of one million dollars. Per the
laws of the State of New Hampshire (RSA 292-B:4), 7% of the fair market value of the
endowment fund, calculated on the basis of fair market value determined at least quarterly and
averaged over a period of not less than three years may be appropriated for operating account
expenditures. No distributions were taken during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The Not-for-Profit Entities Topic of the FASB ASC (ASC 958-205 and subsections) intends to
improve the quality of consistency of financial reporting of endowments held by not-for-profit
organizations. This Topic provides guidance on classifying the net assets associated with
donor-restricted endowment funds held by organizations that are subject to an enacted version
of the Uniform Prudent Management Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). New Hampshire has
adopted UPMIFA. The Topic also requires additional financial statement disclosures on
endowments and related net assets.

The Resource Center has followed an Investment and spending policy to ensure a total return
(income plus capital change) necessary to preserve the principal of the fund and at the same
time, provide a dependable source of support to help build healthier families and stronger
communities.

In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, the Resource Center only invests the fund
in cash and mutual funds. The Resource Center has taken a risk adverse approach to
managing the endowment fund in order to mitigate financial market risk such as interest rate,
credit and overall market volatility, which could substantially impact the fair value of the
endowment fund at any given time.
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Fund activity for June 30, 2022 and 2021 was as follows:

Balances

as of

June 30. 2021

Activity
for the

Year Ended

June 30. 2022

Balances

as of

June 30. 2022

Permanent gifts
Investment earnings
Realized gain
Transfer to unrestricted

Investment expense
Unrealized gain (loss)

$ 175,809

66,023

62,713

(41,590)
(45,472)
34,130

$ $
8,817

6,213

(4,523)
(33.1351

175,809

.74,840

68,926
(41,590)
(49,995)

995

S  251613 $ (22.6281

Balances

as of

June 30, 2020

Activity
for the

Year Ended

June 30. 2021

Balances

as of

June 30. 2021

Permanent gifts .
Investment earnings
Realized gain
Transfer, to unrestricted

Investment expense
Unrealized gain (loss)

$ 175,809
58,389
59,280

(41,590)
(41,257)
(3.5361

$ $

7,634

3,433

(4;215)
37.666

175,809
66,023
62,713
(41,590)
(45,472)
34.130

S  207.095 $ 44.518 S 251.613

10. LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Resource Center leases its current facility from the Town of Gorham. In lieu of rent, the
Resource Center is responsible for the cost of repairs and maintenance, insurance, utilities and
rubbish removal. The lease expired on June 30, 2020. The lease continues under the same
terms on a month-to-month basis.

The Resource Center in turn sublets space in the facility to other nonprofit and community
agencies at an average rate of approximately $10 - $16 per square foot. All participating
organizations must provide services to a client base that is at least 66% low and moderate
income.

During the year ended June 2021, the Resource Center entered into a lease agreement for
office space in Littleton, New Hampshire with John & Paul Tuite Partnership. The terms of the
lease call for monthly payments of $1,000 through October 31, 2026. Rent expense under this
agreement aggregated $12,000 and $8,000 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. "
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

The future minimum lease payments at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Amount

2023 $ 12,000
2024 12,000

2025 ■ 12,000

2026 12,000

2027 4.000

Total '$ 52.000

11. PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Resource Center applied for and was awarded a first
draw Paycheck Protection Program loan through the Small Business Administration (SBA). Loan
forgiveness was possible if certain criteria were met. Any amounts not forgiven were to be repaid
over a five-year period, with payments deferred for the first six months. Interest would be stated at
1%. The loan amounted to $298,000. During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Resource Center
received loan forgiveness in the amount of $258,674. The amount is recorded as grant revenue on
the accompanying statement of activities. The portion of the loan that was not forgiven was repaid
to the SBA in June of 2021.

12. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Resource Center received the following in-kind contributions during the years ended
June 30. 2022 and 2021: .

2022 2021

Donated clothing, toys, and household supplies £ 111.319 $ 62.000

The Resource Center's policy related to in-kind contributions is to utilize the assets given to carry
out the mission of the Resource Center. If an asset is provided that does not allow the Resource
Center to utilize it in its normal course of business, the asset will be sold at its fair value as

determined by appraisal or specialist depending on the type of asset. Donated supplies for the
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were considered contributions without donor restrictions.

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial position
date, but before financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized subsequent events
are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the
statement of financial position date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing
financial statements. Non recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence
about conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that
date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 19, 2022, the date the
June 30, 2022 financial statements were available for issuance.
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FAMILY RESOURrF CFNTFR AT OORHAM

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDrTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL

ALN

PASS

THROUGH

GRANTOR

NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

U.S. DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Passed through State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services,
Division of Children, Youth and Families

Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program
Promoting Safe and Stable Families
Social Services Block Grant

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

Maternal & Child Health Services Block Grant for States

Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program
Maternal; Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program

Activities to Support (STLT) Health Department Response
to Public Health or Healthcare Crises

Activities to Support (STLT) Health Department Response
to Public Health or Healthcare Crises

Division of Behavioral Health, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
Opioid STR

New Hampshire Children's Trust
Every Student Succeeds Act/Preschool Development Grants

Coos Coalition for Children, Youth and Families
Every Student Succeeds Act/Preschool Development Grants

MEDICAID CLUSTER

State of New Hampshire DHHS, North Country Health Consortium
Medical Assistance Program

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Passed through Governor's Office of Emergency Relief & Recovery
Coronavirus Relief Fund

Total U.S. Department of the Treasury

93.645 2001NHCWSS S 7,994

93.556 2001FPSS 36,605

93.667 2001NHSOSR 74,472
93.558 19NHTANF 398,380

93.994 90CA1858 10,284

93.870 05-95-90-902010-5896 168,769
93.870 05-95-90-902010-5896. 195,296.

364,065

93.391 0104)90-57710000-500589 11,417

93.391 010-090-57710000-500589 53,097

64,514

93.788 05-95-92-920510-7040 154,638

93.434 15,466

93.434 35,250

50.716

93.778 IDN 19,092

$  1,180,760

21.019 81,396

81,396

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Passed through State of New Hampshire Department of Education ,
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers

Total U.S. Department of Education

Total expenditures of federal awards

84.287 20220276 98,665

98,665

$  1,360,821
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FAMIl Y RESOURCE C.FUTFR AT QQRHAM

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022

NOTE A . BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards {the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity of Family Resource
Center at Gorham under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2022. The information in this Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200. Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Family Resource Center at Gorham, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,
changes in net assets, or cash flows of Family Resource Center.

NOTE B . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTTNG POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the
cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, where in certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited to reimbursement.
Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported
as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE C ■ INDIRECT COST RATE

Family Resource Center at Gorham has elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under Uniform Guidance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Family Resource Center at Gorham

We have audited, in accordance \with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Family Resource
Center at Gorham (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated October 19, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Family Resource
Center at Gorham's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Family
Resource Center at Gorham's internal control.. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course, of performing their assigned functions; to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented; or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Family Resource Center at Gorham's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
October 19, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Family Resource Center at Gorham

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Maior Federal Program

We have audited Family Resource Center at Gorham's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement thai could have-a direct
and material effect on each of Family Resource Center at Gorham's major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2022. Family Resource Center at Gorham's major federal programs are identified
in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

In our opinion, FamHy'^Resource Center at Gorham complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of Its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Maior Federal Program
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit
of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Family Resource Center at Gorham and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Family
Resource Center at Gorham's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Family
Resource Center at Gorham's federal programs.

24



OocuSign Envelope ID: FB518797-4466-4309-6613-EC48448AC879

Auditors' ResponsihUities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on Family Resource Center at Gorham's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists.
The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Family Resource
Center at Gorham's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Family Resource Center at- Gorham's
compliance y/ith the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal control over
compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances and to'test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or. detect and correct, noncompliance with. a. type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance rhay exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
October 19, 2022
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FAMILY RFSOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Family Resource Center at Gorham were prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Family Resource
Center at Gorham, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Family
Resource Center at Gorham expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal
programs.

6 There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
200.516(a)..

7. The programs tested as major programs were; U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Opioid STR. ALN - 93.788, Activities to Support (STLT) Health Department
Response to Public Health or Healthcare Crises, ALN — 93.391, U.S. Department pf the
Treasury. Coronavirus Relief Fund, ALN-21.019.

8. The threshold for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Family Resource Center at Gorham Family Resource Center at Gorham was determined to
be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

0. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS-MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

None

27
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the family
resource center
The Family Resource Center at Gorham

2022-23 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Christian Corriveau, President Heidi Barker, Vice President

Linda Lamirande Jess Hannigan

Anne-Marie Gagne Mollie White

Bridget Laflamme Cathy Roy

Bronson Paradis

BUILDING HEALTHIER FAMILIES & STRONGER COMMUNITIES

123 Main Street Gorham NH 03581 (603)466-5190
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Patricia Stolte

Professional Skills

ADNflNISTRATIVE

Over ihirty-6vc yean' experience in positions requiring administrattve responsibility and
problem solving abilities including; nonprofit agcodcs, niarketing dcporcroencs and human
service programs:

• Knowledge of oil aspects of opeoitionftl, financinl and compliance for non-profit and for
profit businesses

• Responsible for managing resources, developiog annual budgets, monitoring and imooging
budgets and orcrsccir^ contracts and compliance with DHHS.

•  Supervision and leadership for multiple noo-profit pn^rams with 50+ staiff members
•  Program design nod implementation

• Dcvclopmcht; grant wnting, annual appeals and donor program tmplementntion
• Human Resources crcatxx^ policies Sc procedures, job descriptions, odentadon and training

for several sgeticics

•  Inidntcd Strategic Planning process and Board Development within agencies

• Agency delegate for several state conferences, invo]\^d in coordinadon of all aspects of
annual events, fundraising projects and crarketing campaigns

•  Facility and building management for several site locations

• Volunteer mana^ment, recruitment and recognition

Fiscal ̂^A^IAGEMENT

• Managing agency budget of $2+miUion with muJdpic pr^nm budgets
• Budget management of 3 programs with repordng to Board of Directors and agency CEO

overseeing 51.3miilion budget

•  Budget management of advertising campaigns from $500k to 56 miflion for businesses
•  Proposals for funding to state, federal and local governments for annual conicacts
• Fiscal management of annual grants from NH Charitable Trust and other foundations.

Skills:

• Work coUnbocadvely with board members, staff and colleagues
•  Create partnerships within the community to combine and extend resources

•  Possess solid presentation, communicadon and oiganizadonal skills
• Knowledge of Microsoft Office, graphics programs and social media
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PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

The Family Reaource Center.
Gorijam NH - Executive Director August 2015 to present

Tri-County Community Action Programs. Inc., Berlin. NH - August 2004 to Ai^st 2015
Scrvicclink Resource Center Director - 2004 to 2006
TCCAP Division Director - 2006 to 2015

Mountain \^ew Grand Retort

\Vhite6cld, NH Public Relations Director January 2003 to July 2004

Berlin Main Street Program
Berlin, N H Executive Director November 1997 to January 2003

Zale Corporation/Kartea's
Dallas/New Bedford. MA • Marketing Manager
1991 to 1997

Fierce-Cote Advertistng Agency
Ostcivillc, MA - PR & Mctfia Manager
1989 to 1991

Shfcve, Crump 6t Low.

Boston - Marketing Director • 1984 to 1989

Wolfe Publishing, Pictsford NY - Advertising Sales Reprcsentath'c -1984

Education & Training

State University of New York at Fredooia. BA in Mass Communications A: Business
Monroe Community College, Rochester, New York, Associates in Business Adminiscradon
Brighton High School, Rochester, New York

Volunteer Engagement - past & present

•  Involved on area non-pro6t boards, community groups and projects with orgamzarions such
as Coos Country Health Services, Androscoggin Valley Home Care, AV Economic
Recovery Committee, Head Start Board of Advisors, The Main Street PrtTgram and
Androscoggin VaDcy Hospital WeUncss Committee

• Member of NH Wcilncss fit Prcvenrion Council, Leadership NH North Councr)', Statewide
Coalition of Aging Services, the Planning Comrailtcc for NH State Conference on Aging,
the C|x)S County Coaiidpn for Families & Children, The Endowi^nt for Health Planning
Committee and the Androscoggin Valley Community Partners
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GABRIELLE FLANDERS

OBJECTIVE

Highly skflled and empathetic professional with experience leading^ mana^g and supervising
professional staff in social services. Past woric has Included super^sory support; coaching; program
planning and development and educational parenting support Active listener with a knadcfor building
lasting professbnal relationships.

EXPERIENCE

MARCH 2016- PRESENT THE FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER

DIRECTOR OF FAMILY SUPPORT NOVEMBER 2022- PRESENl

ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR OF FAMILY SUPPORT lUNE 201fi- NOVEMBER 2022

PROGRAM MANAGER MARCH 2016-JUNE 2038

• Manage and develop home visiting and family support programs In Coos and Upper

Grafton county

DECEMBER 2018 - DECEMBER 2019

PYRAMID MODEL COACH, l-SOCIAL NH DOE, BUREAU OF STUDENT SUPPORT

•  Provide soda! emotional learning practice-based coachingto designated implementation
sites across northern and southern New Hampshire.

•  Responsible for maintaining and submitting electronic and paper-based records in a
secure manner to preserve confidentiality and document successes and progress.

•  Observed workers performance and provided feedback while having tough
conversations when necessary.

MARCH 2016- PRESENT

SEL COACHING COORDINATOR, COOS COALITION FOR YOUNG CHILDREN & FAMILIES

•  Created and. maintained an effective and efficient Coaching System around SEL to
support the growing needs of the local organizations.

•  Scheduled'and planned meetings and conferences, Including site-to-site video
conferencing calls, which helped to streamline business operations.

•  Created and offered additional materials to enhance coaching around SEL Reduced
process gaps by supporting the effective coaching of new practitioners on best practices
and protocols through supporting and creating a process.

•  Delivered instruction on a broad range of topics, Integrating audio-visual presentations
and training materiab.
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• Mentored and coached new coaches by offering Insight into successful procedures and
Implementation of program training. Created systems to fadlrtate In-house training and
coaching; overseeing all registrations for training and professional development for all
local organizations.

•  Overseeing ongoing coaching In Pyramid Model, Growing Great Kids, and Mind in the
Making.

•  Linked with local agencies to learn their coaching needs in regards to Sodal Emotional
Learning and supporting their engagement.

EDUCATION

MAY 2015

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE, NEW ENGLAND COLLEGE

Dean's List

SKILUS

Reliable & Flexible

Self-starter and Quick learner

Ability to analyze data & be creative with

outcomes

Strength based & growth minded .

Experience supervising/managing & coaching a
team

Active Listener

Effective public speaker

Strategy & system thinker

Proficient computer skills Including MS
Word. Excel, PowerPoint and Outlook .

Ability to multi-task, be versatile and deal

with crisis situations while maintaining
excellent time management skills and

professionalism

Knack for learning new technology &
golaaiare

BOARDS, COMMTITEES, VOLUNTEERING, ETC,

•  North Country Maternity Network Board
2022- Present

•  Raising Strong Families Steering Committee

2021- Present

•  Substance Exposed Infant Pilot Project
2019-2020

•  Coos Coalition for Young Children

Leadership Workgroup

TRAINING, CERTIFICATIONS, SKILLS

•  Peer RecoverySupport Worker- Certified RCA

•  Circle of Security- Facilitator

•  Boundary Spanning Leadership

•  Policy & Procedure writing

Motrvatbnal Interviewing

Practice-Based Coadi

Reflective Supervision

ASQ: Watch Me Grow- Facilitator
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Briana M. Shannon

Experience
February 2016-present The Family Resource Center

-Program Manager-Heahhy Families America July 2018-present
-Supervisor-Healthy Families America June 2017-July 2018
-Family Support Specialist February 2016-June 2017
•  Manage and support home visiting program In Coos 8i Northern Grafton County.

Licensed Cosmetologist

Mary's New You

2007 to February 2016
Interviewing the customers about their beauty concerns and suggesting useful tips.
• Fully completing customer's service previously discussed to the best of my ability.
• Assist client in finding desired cosmetic and then using the HalrMax to process the sale.
• Answer phones to assist customers with scheduling/rescheduling appointments.

Front Desk Receptionist

Cabot Motor Inn - Lancaster, NH

October 2010 to June 2011

Front Desk Reception
• Answer phones to schedule room reservations and/or cancellations.

• Collect and process payments made using the hotel computer system.

• Using an electronic key programmer, make room keys.
• Correctly file guest Information by room number.

• Handling customer Complaints

Education

High School Diploma
Groveton High School

June 2007

Southern New Hampshire University
Psychology
September 2020-May 2021

Skills

• Microsoft Office

• Microsoft Word

• Microsoft Excel

• Microsoft PowerPoint

• Program Management

• Budgeting

• Project / Program Management
• Project Management

SSTBStREW!



OocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

ANN-MARIE E. SMITH

Experience
2017-Preseni

HfA SupeivfsorfFamlfy Support SpMlellst • Colebrookf NH
Oversee Family Support Rpftrialistw. provirto weekly refiedive supeiwsion, ensure accuracy of cflent notes, and
reviews time sheets and mileage Providhg in home support b at-risk bmlSee. Creating support plans based on
family'e needs including budgeting eulstance, perenting skUb. child development, end refbrreb b outside
services. Using reflective end ectlve listening skifls. prectice high confiderMty, record keeping, and offer
creative and flexibility wth planning tor each family.

2005-2017

Child and Family Services ■ Colobrook, NH

Family Support WoAer and Home Vblts. I have been providing ln*home education as well as parenting. ch8d
development, budgding, personal communication along with household and stress management I also assist In
accesab^ communky and stab resources.

1S93 - Klflgswood fteglpnal Middle and High School • Wotfeboro, NH
-  Intar-Lakfis Middle School ■ Meredith, NH
-  OovemorWentworth Regional School District* Wotfeboro, NH
-  Bartbtt Community Preschool NH * Bartlott, NH

Teachlr^ In a general classroom setting tor ell age groups to OneonOne Special Assistant Encouraging
physicslty handicapped student develop social skfib, academic comprehension, end communication through
fat^ body, end sign language. Helping with mental and developmental disabilities with various curriculum end
techniques. Involved in confidential mediations alongside behaviora! councilors, aiding students b deal with
retationships, family tesues and peer confDcts. Successfully preventing and resolving r>egative conhontatlons end
behavior by setting appropriab boundaries creafing positive resolutions

Skills and Interests

•  Through workshops and other ventures In my life, I have gained techniques to motivab and aide behavioral
problems end teaming disabOlles.

■  I em certified In NH Healthy Kids Training and em an Accredfied provider of Level 4 Positive Parenting
Program. I am also certified In Growirtg Great Kids-Tier 1, prenatal to 36 mos. skill deveiopmenbt program. I
am trained in A8Q-ASQ-SE and am on the steering committees for "Watch me Grow*, and Matamal
Depression, promoting MD awarer)e88 in Coos County

•  1 lilto to stay active, both professionally and physicaOy. I walk daBy and am always looking at furthering my
personal kmwriedge and education to Invest In our Coos kids.

Education

Hesser Buslnesa Collage • Manchester, NH
Graduated in 1984

•  Major in Travel Management
•  Minor in Social Sdenoe. Psychology. Sociology. Human Development and Public Speaking

Refdrances and Certiflcattonfi era available upon request
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MERRILEE TURGEON
Registered Norse

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

The Family Resource Center, Gorham, New Hampshire

Juiy 2022- Present

Healthy Families America Program Nurse (RN)

Home visiting nurse

Unite with community heahh providers and other community agencMRi to provide access to

treatments and support they need for weHness

Educate clients on topics such as sexual health, prenatal and postnatal care, hygiene, nutritioo and

infant care.

Provide assistance to staff that arc working with the HealAy Homes and Lead Prevention

Program

Collaborate with all staff regarding client medical needs to facilitate community supports

Coos County Famlty Heattfa Services* Berlin* New Hanqnhlre

October 2020-December 2021

March 2011-June 2017

RN

Clinic nurse for both family practice and assisted with prenatal prograra

Active partnery^rcccptor for the COMA Apprenticeship Program at CCFHS

Training new employees

One on one patient care

Medication reconcillatioD

IVacking and charting patients* preventative health care

Assisting with minor surgery

Patient education

Triage nurse (January 2013 to October 2014)
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*  Assessing adult and pediatric acute illnesses

•  HIPPAconiplianco

RN

Surgical Services

Aodroscoggfai VaDey Hospital
Berlin, New Hanqnblre

February 2020'0ctober 2020

June 2017'February 2020
RN

Medical/Sutgical Unit

One GO one patient carc

Medication reconciliation

Charting patients' health cair

Assisting widi minor surgery

Patient education

Assessing adult and pediatric illnesses

IV management

St Vincent de Paul Rehabllitation/Niirsing Facllhy, BcrHn, New Hampshire
August 2011 - January 2012

RN

Skilled nuising

Assess patients, chartiag and reporting changes in patients' conditions, such as adverse reactions

to medication or treatment aitd taking any necessary action.

Woric as part of a health care team to assess patient needs, plan and modify care and imploneot

interventions.

Supervise nurses' aides and assistants.

Shaw's Supermarkets, Gorham, New Haoqrsblre
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Customer Service hianager. Human Resources Manager
March 1999 — February 2009

•  Directly manage approximately 4(H- associates

•  Recnihisg and training

•  Prepare and deliver peifonnancc evaluatioas to develop well infonned, productive, eCficiait

employees

•  Resolve customer complaints regarding sales and service.

•  Consult wifli dq>ailment managers to pbn advertising services and to secure mformatian co

equipment and customer specifications.

•  Prepare and approve budget expenditures.

EDUCATION

White Mountains Community College, Berlin, New Hampshire

•  Associate Degree in Nursing 5/2012

• Member of I%j Theta ICappa Honor Society

LICENSURE

State of New Hampshire

•  RN 5/20I2-prescnt
•  LPN 2011-2012
•

RESUSCITATION CREDENTIALS

•  ACLS expires May 2022

•  PALS expires July 2022

ADDITIONAL SKILLS

•  Detail oriented and organized

•  Ability to work well with a team as well as independently
•  Skilled in Microsoft Office (Word, Outlook, Excel, PowerPoint)
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Tikatia

Morris

Training &
Development
Manager

Tikatia Morris

SMUs
dient needs assessment Mtoosoft Office Suite; fUe management conffict resolution; case
management orsanized; effective public speaker renabJe; strategic thinker event planning;
team ptayer marketing and medb relations; computer-sawy; logo design; website graphics;
atypical problem salving; self-motivated: divergent thinking: critical observatioa sdf-

management classical education tutoring methods; attention to detail; creativity; motivational
IntervlevMng: peer coaching reflective supenrisbn; sotutlon-based casework

Experfenca
TTte FamDy Resource Center / Navigation Services Program Manager

Responsive leader overseeing the dally management of the Navigation program including
budgets, data, operations, syttems, and quality assurance; Monthly state reporting; Assure all
contract requirements are Including defined service activities, target population numbers,
and designated dient assessment Coordinate training; Hiring new staff; Malnblns public
relations by attending monthly coOaborative rneetin^ with the NH Kinship Navigation
community of practice, stakeholders, organization leadership etc. Develop and fxllitate team
meetings; Provide weekly reflective/administiatlve supervision to alt staff assigned: Provide
ongoing support to all supervisees through evaluation of Job performance and field
observations; Process tlmcshcets and mileage, Induding PTO requests

The FamOy Resource Center / Training & Devetopment Manager

Created and maintained an effective and efficient learning management system to support the
growing organization; Scheduled arid planned meetings and conferences, Including sfte-to-stts-
video conferencing calls, which helped to streamline business operations. In-depth knowfedge
of the scope of services for all programs offered at the PRC; Created and offered additional
materials to enhance training. Reduced process gaps by supporting the effective training of
new hires on best practices and protocols through supporting and creating a train the trainer
process. Delivered Instruction on a broad range of topics, Integrating audio-visual
presentations and training materials. Mentored and coached new trainers by offering Insight
Into successful procedures and Implementation of program training. Created training schedules
to meet the hiring demands of all PRC programs. Created systems to fecSitate In-house training
and coaching; oversedng all registrations for training and professlonaJ development for ail
programs. Overseeing ongoing coaching In motivational interviewing, solution 4}ased casework,
and peer coaching within programs; developed a professional development workgroup to
facilitate more In-hcuse training and provide feedback and support to trainers;

The Family Resource Center / Administrative Support Specialist /Training & Family
Support Coordinator

Dffi'ember 201^-,l;irtii;uv 1:022

Provide administrative support to all areas of the family support program; Tracked and
sutmiltted employee tim^eets to accounting department for payroll processing! Managed
electm&TBig^rs using G-Suite and scheduled meetings, appointments and conference calls;
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assisted in overseeing organizational transfer from G>Sult to Office 365: Created ar>d
maintained computer- and paper-based filing and organization systems for staff training
records, reports, and documents. Scheduled and planned meetings and conferences, including
slte-to-site video conferencing calls. «vt)lch hdped to stieamlrne business operations. Executed
special objectives and projects In response to the Program Director's requests. Created and
offered additional materials to enhance training. Reduced process gaps by effectively training
new hires on best practices and protocols. Documented p^ctpant attendance, engagement,
and progress. Delivered instnictton on a broad rangeof topics, Integrating audio-visual
presentations and training materials. Mentored and coached new employees by offering insight
into successful task pdorltization. Created training schedules to'rr>eet the hiring demands of aD
PRC programs. Created systems to ̂ Qtate In-hcuse training and coaching: overseeing all
leglsUalions for training and professional development for alt programs.

The FamBy Resource Center / Edward Fenn ASP Group Leader & Coach
August 2019 - March 2020, Gorham

Established a positive, safe, and stimulating learning environment for all students. Cultivated
strong relationships with students by Dsterting carefully and offering positive reinforcement
Lltiltzed the Choose Love curriculum to encourage and support sodal-emotional learning with
all enroited students, weeidy classroom observation for Implementing pyramid modd strategies
In the classroom and wHh staff; provide monthly one-or>-one coaching sessions with all ASP
staff to efKourage growth support in pyramid modd and sodai-emotional Instruction to
students

The FamOy Resource Center / Family Support Specialist

Nov^rnbtf 2C'1E • December 2019, Goriiam

BuDt solid and trusting rapport vrith children and families, fostering communication to moot
case needs. Worked to improve and enhance cCent lives through effective and compasslohate
care. Documented data and completed accurate updates to case records. Collaborated yrith
community program leaders arwl advocates to make resources accessible to those In neisd.
Interviewed Individuals and famHies to assess needs and provide informatiortaJ resources.
Referred dlents to appropriate team members, community agencies and organizations to meet
treatment needs. Photographed to produce high-quality images for both print and Intemet
distribution. Developed creative design for marketing packages, including print materials,
brochures, banners, and signs. Used publisher and photoshop to develop product mockups and

. prototype designs.

NH HomeschooBf^ Families / Private Tutor
September 2013 - Jannaiy 2018. Tlitougliout NH << VT

Tutored over 20 struggling average and advanced students In elementary through high school
Classical Education course materials In Mathematics, Grammar and Language Arts, Hbtory,

Science, Latin, and Logic. Created specbi hartdouts, study guides ar>d assessments to evaluate
and boost student kno\^edg& Spearheaded group tutoring sessions to help students struggling

in similar areas. Coached and mentored junior tutors on successful dassicd education teaching

strategies and time management

Setf-Employed / FreeiarKe Photographer and Graphic D^lgn
April 2012 - September 2018, TiirouchoutNH

Planned and prepared for all on-location shoots. Inspected proofs to ensure the quality of
prints, adjust^ and retouching as necessary. Applied dlglt^ styling techniques to enhance
photos, f^ntained consistent use of graphic imagery in materials and other marketing
outreach. Edited existing PowerPoint slides to enhance the corporate message Updated
computer graphic files using graphics software programs. Generated computer graphics and
pag^ayout software, graphic dements and photography. Provided high-qualityresultslna
tJmdy manner.
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Education
Ptymouth State University / English Education
August 1999 • June 2000, Ptymouth

Laconia High School/ High School Dlpfoma
August 1998 • June 1999. Laconia

Certifications and

Trainings

^01^02

pyramid Model bi^nt/Toddter Modules 2 & 3

ASQ: Introduction to Watch Mo Grow for Coos County Earty Childhood Professionals -

Pyramid Model Peer-to-Peer Practice-eased Coaching ^
Parents Interacting with Infants (P1WI)

Pyramid Model Preschool Modules 1,2. & 3

CCAR Ethical Considerations for Recovery Coaches

Growing Great Kids: Prenatal to 36 Months Her 1

Certified TIPITOS Observer {certincation date 07.19.19)

Certified TPOTS Observer (certification date 07.16.19)

Be Strong Families Parent Cafe Training

Recovery Coach Academy

NH Child Care Licensing Orientation for Licensed and License-Exempt Providers

2020

Equity, Autonomy and Substance Use Disorder Ufecourse Considerations for Pregnant and
Parenting People

Strengthening Families Framework Overview & Community Cafe

Certificate In Grandfamllies Leadership

2021

Boundary Spanning Leadership

Performance Evaluation

SBC initial Training Course (Solution-Based CaseworlO

Motivatiorul Interviev^n^ The Basics

Intermediate Motivational interviewing

Motivational htendewlng: Advancing the Practice

Mm Coding

2022

Enneagram Spectrum Training & Certificate Program

Great Kids REMAP
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Motfvatlonal Interviewing; MICA and Coaching
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LEAHJ. WHITE

Education

Uoivenity of New Hampshire .
Bachelor of Arts: Psychology, December 2008
Bachelor of Arts: Justice Studies, December 2008

Woik Experience

QnaOty Assurance Coordinator, March 2020 -Present
Family Resource Center, Goiham, NH

Analyze and track data; identify and communicate areas in need of improvement; develop
continuous quahty iiiq)roveQKnt plans; assure program is adhering to Best Practice
Standards; provide ongoing support to staff through training and providing professional
development opportunities.

Family Support Spcdahst, August 2017^teent
Family Resource Center, Gorham, NH

Initiate and maintain regular and long'term contact/support with families within the family's
home. Provide intenvmions that are family-oentered, strength-based, and directed at establishii^
a trusting rektionsh^; assisting in strengthening the parent-child relationship; assistingparents in
improving dieir skills to optimize die home environment; improving the family support system;
and increasing the family's ability to problem solve and assume the role of advocate for
themselves and their children.

Respite Provider, October 2015-2017
Provide relief for home care provider.

Home Care Provider, May 2012-Octobcr 2015
Contracted with Northern Human Services, Berlin, NH

Welcomed an individual with disabilities to reside in personal residence. Provided
supports in all aspects of daily living, including personal care and medication
administration. Attended trainings specific to hidivkiuai's medical needs to provide
informed care catered to the qiccific needs of the individual. Completed a minimum of
10 hours of training per year. Advocated for individuals wants and needs with a focus on
human rights. Traosfeireid individual utihzmg a barrier free hoyer lift.
Mainatmed all medical documentation. Assisted individual in meeting goals and
documented in monthly progress notes.

Residential Program Manager, June20U-May 2012
Easter Seals, Lancaster, NH

Managed operation of therapeutic residential placement for adolescent boys. Arranged
daily schedules and activities for residents. Assured completion of all
documentation. Provided weekly staff siq)crvisions, monthly staff meetings and
completed performance evaluations as necessary. Interviewed, hired and trained staff in
accordance to the agency's mission and state regulations. Handled all petty cash. Focused
on maintaining a positive and professional work environment to ensure all needs of
individuals were met.

Resldentifll Instructor, October 2010-June 2011
Easter Seals, Lancaster, NH

Supervised and counseled residents in a living environment. Assisted residents with
activities of daily living focused on treatment plans and con^leted all necessary
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documentation in accordance with state regulations.
Assistant Program Director, March 2010-October 20JO
Bridgewdl, Beveriy, MA

Assisted in daily operation of a residential home for individuals with disabilities.
Managed mcdical, clinical and financial needs of individuals. Conducted inteiviews.
IVained and supervised staff by providing leadership with a focus on team building.

Direct Support Profc^nal, January 2009-March 2010
Bridgewell, Haveihill, MA

Provided siqjport and assisted individuals with activities of daily living in a residential
home. Provided services to individuals according to OMR reguUtoiy standards,
administered medicatiDns according to MAP regulations and maintained core traimng
ceitifications. Worked at DMH program for initial 7 months with adults afflicted with
mental illness.

Respite/Relief Residential Youth Coonselor, October 2008-January 2009
Odyssey House, Hampton, NH

Siq>ervised and counseled residents in a living environment, paiticq^ated in groups,
planned and assisted residents with daily therapeutic activities, behavioral tracking and
documentation.

Front-End Assistant Manager, June 2002-Januaiy 2009
Market Basket, Plaistow, NH

Assisted front-^d manager widi maintaining smooth opaation of check-out area,
handled money transactions, addressed customer complaints in a professional manner and
supervised cashiers.

Internships
Sexual Assaolt Support Services, Summer 2008

165 hour internship. Conq^leted 36 houis of crisis intervention training with SASS.
Provided si^ppit to sexual assauh survivors and their families at child advocacy centers
for their interviews with police dcpMtments, crisis counseled survivbrs on crisis hotline
and provided referrals to victims of sexual assault to community services.

New Outlook Teen Center, Fojy 2006
20 hour internship. Served as role model for young teenagers and organized donations for
annual Christmas party.

Certifications

-Certified Lactation Counscbr

-Peer recoveiy Support Worker-certified
•Qrowing Gr^tiG^ Cimicuhini tier I (0-3) certified
•Trained in MotivatioDallnterviewiiig-evklraced based counseling approach to heahb care
-Hcakfa FamSies of America-EvideQced based model ceitiiled Famify Support Worker
•Pyramid Model for Supporting Social Emotional Competence in Infants and YoungCbOdrco trained
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7/18/22.12:04 PM Indeed Resume

Joanne Bevins

Authorized to work in the US for any employer

Add your headline or summary

Work Experience

Add a description of your Job

Family Support Specialist

The Family Resource Center - Gortiam, NH

March 2022 to Present

Edit DIsmi...

PVD Driver

UPS-Twin, WA

November 2021 to January 2022

Delivered packages for UPS on rural routes.

Case Manager

Northeast Family Services • Littleton, NH

May 2021 to November 2021

Treatment meetings, Transportation

Comp Assessments, Carelogic

Monthly reports, Computer / Word, Excel. PowerPoint.

Supervised Visits, Team meetings.

Skills Building training, Cans Assessments,

Co-Parenting training, Parenting Skills tranlng,

Developed Work Schedule
haptJ/my.indMd.oonWesume/6dltor

1

e

1/6
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Residential Aide Q

The Morrison Nursing Horne/ Sartwoll Place Assisted Uvlng - Whitefield, NH

November 2020 to May 2021

Supervise medication edminlstratlon

Document el! medication observations and assists in the EMR

Reordering medication

Report any medication errors to ttie administrator and complete medication error report when necessary
Make entries in the resident's chart of any Incidents or behavior changes

Provide for the overall safety and care of residents

Assist with treatments as ordered by the administrator and take vitals

Provide assistance with ADL's

Complete monthly summaries and evacuation logs for residents assigned

Primary Care Provider B
Granite State Independent Living - Berlin, NH

AprtI 2003 to February 2021

• Providing support services to Individuals experiencing psychological and physical health issues such as
Addiction, Brain damage, Dementia, Alzheimer's, and Schizophrenia as well as terminal Illnesses, such as
Multiple Sclerosis and Cerebral Palsy.

• Profldent working with mental health-related Issues such as anger, aggression, depression, paranoia,
delusions, self-harm, suicidal tendencies, and various foims of addiction.

• Aided clients with talidi^about and obtaining support for depression and anxiety.
• Training other Care Providers. Develop and maintain records of client progress and services, documenting

and reporting any changes.

• Working with other health professionals to ensure consumer safety, dignity, and Independence, (financially
physically and socially, and psychologically.

Student Internship B

The Mental Health Center - Northern Human Senrices - Berlin, NH

2020 to 2020

1. Internship; (Shadowing) Northern Human Services Mental Health Center In Berlin N.H.

• Case Management

• Functicmal Support Services

• Children's Services

• Residential Programs

• Customer Senrice (Client Employees)

• Partial Day Rehabilitation Program

Education

httpsi/rmyJndoedxom/refumeMItor ^
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Worldng on Master of Arts in Marriage and Family Counseling 5

Liberty University • Virginia

May 2021 to Present

BACHELORS in PSYCHOLOGY Q

LIBERTY UNIVERSITY - Lynchburg, VA

May 2020

Associate In Social Science Of

NH VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE - Beriin. NH

Skills

Do you have any of these top skills employers are looking for?

Child & Family Counseling Individual I Group Counseling

Group Therapy Hospital Experience

Nursing Mental Health Counseling

Administrative Experience Help Desk

Dismiss

Conflict Resolution D

Excellent communication SkDIs O

Extensive experisnce working with mental health disorders, their symptoms, and cognitive effects ^

Knowledge of EMR Software Q

Multitasking and teamwork Q

Proficient in Microsoft Office: PowerPoint, Word, and Excel |J

Experience with Crisis Intervention, Intake, and assessment Q

Primarv Care Exoerlence ^
hap»y/my.lnd8od.com/r»$ume/«fitor ^



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

7/ia«2,12:04 PM hde^JRwume

Alzheimer's Care

Dementia Care

Social Work

Medication Administration

Vital Signs

Languages

Q

Case Management Q

&

&

D

Supervising experience g

Documentation review Q

Hospice Care g

Crisis Management

Intake Experience S

Working with individuals with devetopfnental disabilities -10+ years ^

Advocacy -10+years

Home Care
HI

Spanish - Beginner Q

English - Expert ^ .

Certificdtions / Licenses

Basic First Aid and Adult,child. Infant CPR q

June 2020 to June 2022

Certificate in Basic First Aid-

• General Guidelines

• Occupational Safety and Health Organization (OSHA) guidelines

• Bums

httpK://myindMd.oonyre$ume/edttor 4/g
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• Fractures, Sprains, and Strains

• Breathing problems and Choking

• Bieeding, Cuts, and Scrapes

• NorvBleeding Wounds

• Head, NecK. and Spine Injury

Certificate In Cardio-Pulmonary Resuscitation- Infant, Children, Adult-

Chest compressions and Mouth to Mouth.

Opioid Crisis Qf

June 2020 to Present

Opioid products and their effects

Effects, Ireatmeni, and recovery

Certificate in medication administration and management Q

November 2020 to Present

Certified in medication administration and management

reporting any discrepancies and documenting all relevant information in the EMAR

Assessments

Case management & social work - Highly Proficient

October 2021

View Full Score Report

Active listening - Highly Proficient B

May 2021

View Full Score Reoort

Work Style: Reliability - Highly Proficient B
August 2020

View Full Score Report ,

Case Management & Social Work - Highly Proficient W

June 2019

View Full Score Report

Active Listening - Highly Proficient B

httpsy/my.tndced.oom/remme/edtor ^
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June 2019

View Fu» Score Report

Groups

Omega Nu Lambda Q[

April 2019 to Present

National Honor Society- Liberty University. Alpha Chapter

htiptJ/my.iAde*d.corryr«*ume/odtor 8/6
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Kailee Guevin

Authorized to work In the US for any employer

Work Experience

Family Support Specialist
The Family Resource Center • Littleton, NH

April 2021 to Present

• The Family Support Specialist Is responsible to provide routine home visiting, primarily occurring within

the family's home; each home visit should last for at least one hour

• Oevelop a trusting relationship with families by providing strength based family-centered interventions

that assist in enhancing the parent-child relationship, build upon parenting skills and Improve the family

support system

• Assist families in establishing goals and a plan for accomplishing those goals
• Complete routine screenings end provide referrals as needed to support femBy needs

• Use evidence based curriculum and practices to assess eff^veness with the target population

• Complete documentation and weeldy notes for each family served; notes must be completed t>y end
of week

•Maintain client confidentianty

• Maintain an up-to-date calendar of appointments

• Particfpafe In any and all required trainings for ongoing professional development

• Attend staff meetings as scheduled

• Attend weekly reflective supervision with supervisor

• Adhere to Family Resource Center policies and procedures as set by the Board of Directors

Crisis Intervention Advocate

Coof. County Fattiily Health Se/vices - Cuus County, NH

January 2020 to April 2021

The Response Direct Services Advocate is responsible for providing direct services to survivors of sexual

and domestic violence or stalking, outreach to potential victims and their families In tiie community and
networking with area professionals Including police, legal, judicial and social sen/Ices.

Provides direct client service including but r\ot limited to; crisis Intervention, court, medical and social

advocacy, peer support, transportation, information arKi referrals to victims of dom^lc and sexual

violence or stalking and their families.

Maintains client records according to policy.

Develops reiationship with locat resources for clients Including police, legal. Judicial and social service
professionals.

I currently volunteer my hours for the Response Crisis Hotline on Tuesday 7 pm to 7 am.
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Respite Care Provider
Kelfy Bona (private) - Littleton. NH

March 2017 to April 2021

I provided day and weekend respite for a 59 year old developmentaily disabled women. This was prtjvlded
In the space of my own home.

I provided one on one care with my client that Includes a variety of things such as driving and
running errands. A respite careglvers help with tasks like taking the patient to a doctor's appointment,
picking up prescriptions or grocery shopping. In addition. I also assist with meal preparation and tight
housekeeping duties, when the ftmily goes on vacations.

■Respite care Is an essential part of the overall support that families may need to keep their family
member with a disability at home. The word "respite" means to take a break from the dally challenges
of caring for a child or a parent with special needs. It can be planned for a few hours or tor as long as
a weekend."

Residential Aide
The Morrison Nursing Home - Whitefield, NH
jciru3iy 201S ioj-.tfy :020

• Assisting residents with dally personal routines, Including bathing, dressing, grooming, eating, and
using the bathroom.
• Providing companionship to residents and establishing a trusting relationship with them.
• Ensuring that residents are taking their prescribed medication.
• Reporting any concerns or medical issues.
• Ensuring that the residents* IMng quarters are safe and well-organized.
• Keeping records of resident activity, behavior, and moods.
• Performing any reasonable requests that residents ask for.
• Collaborating with management and coworkers to ensure residents receive the best quality of life
possible.

Management Assistant/ Keyholder
Olympla Sports - Littleton. NH
March 2011 to August 2018

• Attracts potential customers by answering product and service questions; suggestlrtg Information about
other products and services.
• Maintains customer records by updating account Information.
• Resolves product or service problems by clarifying the customer's complaint; determining the cause
of the problem; selecting and explaining the best solution to solve the problem; expediting correction or
adjustment; following up to ensure resolution.
• Recommends potential products or services to management by collecting customer Information and
analyzing customerneeds.
• Contributes to team effort by accomplishing cleaning arul product promotion as required.
• Clean and tidy the store for closing.
• Audit tills, prepare cash and deposit the required daily amounts.
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Education

Associate In Human Services
White Mountains Community College

August 2020 to Present

Associate in Human Services

White Mountains Community College - Berlin, NH
August 2018 to June 2020

Medical Office Management In Medical office
White Mountains Community College • Littleton, NH
August 2011 to June 2015

Billing Certificate In Medical office
White Mountains Community College • Littleton, NH

August 2011 to June 2015

Skills

• Customer Sendee Skills (lO-f years)

• Management (8 years)

• Receptionist (2 years)

• Crftlcal thinking/prpbtem solving (10+ years)

• Professional Services (10+ years)

• Microsoft Office (4 years)

• Careglvir>g (10+ years)

• Leadership Experience (3 years)

• ICD-IO

• Medical Coding

• Medical Offke Management

• Meal Preparation

• Social Work

• Retail managernent

• Customer service

• Crisis Intervention

• Care plans

• Senior care

Certifications and Licenses

Medico! Billing Certificate
Present
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Assessments

Direct Care — Highly Proficient
December 2019

Showing sensitivity and enthusiasm while providing care to patients.
Full results: Htghtv Profictent

First Aid — Proficient
December 2019

Treating common medical emergencies.
Full results: Proficient

Case Management & Social Work — Highly Proficient
September 2020

Prioritizing case tasks, gathering information, and providing services without Judgment
Full results: Hlghtv Pmftclent

Supervisory Skills: Motivating & Assessing Employees — Proficient
October 2020

Motivating others to achieve objectives and identifying Improvements or corrective actions

Full results: Proficient

n\dec:d Assessments provides skills tests thai ate not itidicnave of a license or certification, or contlmiod

c'Dveir'p.mc-nL in any proTessional ficict.
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L

OBJECTIVE

My intdfests are ta ̂ rk
children and famUlas to support
them to tsecoms skfllfut

parents.

SKILLS

My best sklDs woutd inctude

but are not dm Ked to:

' Organlzationa) skins
•  Time manegement

sknis

- Motivated

-  Personable

-  Delegating skiDs
-  ScheduSng
-  HMng
' - Interviewing
•  CommunicationaJ sIdQs

-  Empathettc
•  Supportive
-  Great work ethic

An®

EXPERIENCE

MANAGER-OLYMPIA SPORTS'2005 - PRESENT
ReaponsWo for Schedules, detegatfng, training, end of the month
paperwork, supply ordem, Inventory counts, openlngfdoslng the
store, handling money, hiring, Intervfewtng, end having 10-12
employees reporting to me at a time.

BARiSTA AND TAKE OUT ORDERS* CHEESECAKE FACTORY •
2004 - 2005

Responsible for making coffsa drinks, and desserts. Also,
responslt^ for taking orders over the phone, handling mortey,
knowing every aspect of the menu and all the speculations far aU of
the food in the restaurant Making sure any mo^catlons for special
aHergies were made to the food.

EDUCATION

HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA
GRADUATED IN 2002

WHITE MOUf^AlNS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

GENERAL EDUACTION COURSES
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Comprehensive Famiiy Support Training Certificate 10/15/2018

Positive Solutions Certificate 10/2018

Nabxone Administration Certificate 07/19/2019

Recovery Coach Academy Certificate 07/2019

Motivational Interviewing Certiftcate 08/19-23/2019

HIV Trends and Treatment Certificate 08/3Q/2019

BetterTogetherwith Birth Parents Woricshop Certificate 10/10-11/2019

Suicide Prevention Certiftcate 11/14/2019

February 2008- June 2013- muitipie trainings In early childhood education

DCYF Supporting Laws- 04/2022

PHQ9-04/2022
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Melissa Vashaw

Experience

March 2021'Present

CUldren's Dentistry* DentaJ Assistant for Littleton, Plymouth and North Conway offices.

• Greeting and welcoming new and returning patients, ages 0-18, and families to their restorative and
cleaning appointments with a positive, caring and supportive attitude.

• Working doseiy with patients to ensure they are relaxed, informed and prepared for their
appointments.

•  Preparing and setting up operative rooms for restorative treatments with proper tools, instruments arxi
materials.

e Assisting docton during restorative treatment anointments with chDdren ages 1 '18.
•  Preparing and setting up hygiene chairs for deaning appointments. Providing.full nKxith coronal

polishing (deanings), instructions and demonstrations for proper oral hygiene home care and diet
• Assfstingwith X-raysand admission of N20.
•  Piadr\g sealants ages 6-18.
•  Updating patient's charts and keeping detaQed appointment notes.
•  Scheduling appointments.

•  Proper steril^tion of tods, instruments, materials and rooms.
• Activefy support team members ind doctors in a timely manner to help keep the day's schedule on

track.

Febnjary 2018-March 2021

Tri County Commmiity Action Program (Tri County CAP)- Homeless intervention and Prevention
Specialist for Coos County

Homeless Outreach induding PATH (Pro^iects for Assistance in Transition from Homeiessness) outreach
and case management. Assist In detaining shelter and providing basic needs by donations or
community organizations. PATH outreach services are aimed spedf kaliy at supporting those who are
homeless and suffering with severe and persistent merttal Illness with securir^ arxl stabilizing housing.

o Complete assessments to determine eligibility for programs and services. Knovdedgeabie in Coordinated Entry
and HMIS database.

• Provide support and assistance to those experlendng homeiessness, or at risk of homeiessness. vdth
the goal of obtaining and maintaining stable housing.

• Work with clients to complete applications for housing and rental assistance within the program as well
as provide landlord mecOation and education around tenant rights and responsibilities.

•  Provide case management using the evidenced-based CTi (Critical Time intervention) model, providing
intensive support arvi coaching upon program entry decreasing In intensity over time. This includes
supporting dients with creating an action plan and achjeving individual goals related to obtaidng
and/or maintaining stable housing, recovering from SUD, improving finandal management skills,
obtaining/maintaining mainstream benefits. Improving physical and/or mental health, obtaining gainful

.  employment and/or increasing education, improving parenting skills, and engaging In activities of daily
Dving.
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Provide referrals fordients to access benefits, prc^ms and services to improve their current

situations.

Connect dients to community resoirces and benefits while communlcatfns with collateral contacts as
needed to coordinate appropriate level of care, support with navigating systems, and fadlltate stable
housing.
Maintain caseload files and document services In a timely manner.
Network with community members and partner organizations, induding attending monthly community
network meetings, to better assist and support dients' current situatioru and improve overall service
delivery within the community.

June 2015-October 2018

Centennial View Chlldearc and Enrichment, Lancaster Nil - Alter School Coordinator/ Preschool
ff Pre-K Teacher

•  Created and implemented daily lesson plans, activities and projects using developmentaDy appropriate
practices.

• Documented milestones, skill set achievements and emerging skills per each child
• ̂dntated a safe and healthy environment that encouraged and nurtured young cNldren's learning and

natural curiosities.

•  CPR/Rrst Aid certified

AUGUST 2012-JliNE 203 7

White Monntains Regional ScbodI District, Whitefield & Lancaster NH - i;i Special Education

Paraeducator

•  Provided sodal, hstructional and emotional support to young children with special needs In the
dassroom and overall school environment.

• Taught and supported esserrtial and ger>eral life skills.
• Worked dosely with Special Education teachers and dassroom teachers to assure student's success.
• CPI Trained.

JAfNiUARY 2012-AUGUST 2012

Cherry St Playcare, SL Johnsbury VT - Preschool Teacher/After School Program Coordinator
• Documented milestones, skill set achievements and emerging skills per each child
•  FadStated a safeand healthy environment that encouraged and mirtured young children's learning and

natural curiosities.

• Created and Implemented daily lesson plans, activities and projects using developmentally appropriate
practices.

AUGUST 2007-JANUARV 2012

Georgetown Community School, Georgetown Colorado - Pre-K Teacher/Pre-K Program
Coordinator and Co-Creator
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•  Created and Implemented dally lesson plans, activities and projects using devetopmentally appropriate
practices.

• Documented milestones, skill set achievements and emerging skQIs per each chQd
•  Facilitated a safe and healthy environment that encouraged and nurtured young children's learning and

natural curiosfties.

• Worked dosely and coflaborated with the Kindergarten teacher and PHndpal toco-o-eate a brand new
Pre-K program that I also fadlftated.

a  Introduced our new Pre-K dasses to various community events and functions that were traditions for
Georgetown Community School as a whole for decades.

SEPTEMBER 1998-AUGUST 2007

End of the Line LLC, Georgetown Colorado - Retail Assistant Manager

•  Daily duties Included opening business, providing quality service to customers, checking In merchandise,
updating displays In the store, merchancfising. window cSsplays. training and overseeir^ employees,
scheduling, billing, bDI pay, ordering merchandise, operating cash register and completing end of day
sales paperwork.

Education
Red Rock Commomly Collage, Golden Colorado - earned 16 credits in Early Childhood Education

Wtiite Mountain Regional Hig^ School- Graduated. Class of 1994

Certificates/Trainings
Motivational Interviewing
30 CElTs Recovery Coach Academy
Mental Health First Aid

Stddde Prevention

Behavioral Health-Focused Outreach and Engagement
Trauma Informed Care

Recognizing and Responding to Human Trafficking
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PROFILE

Energetic ChQd Core Center Director
dedicated to providing a sate otkJ
nurturir^g environment for
CNldren. Adept at monoging
teoct^ers orxt delegating tasks,
developing and Implementlr^g o
curriculum and overseeing or>d
monoging the doy to day
operations of o chfld core center.

CONTACT

PHONE;

EMAIL:

SKILLS

•Experience using software
applicatiortf Indudtng Word/Excel.
Go^e SuHe Apps.
-Excellent oral and written

communlcatton sidlls, competent
Interpersonal sldHs. end strong
orgonizotional sidlts.
-Experience leading a team of
professionols ttirough a ct>ange or
trorpformation (Covid 19).
-Knowledge and education regordhg
developmentatiy oppropriote
practices.
-Sensitivity orKf responsiveness to
needs of families, staff end clients.

SHAYNA

HENRY
Child Care Director

EDUCAHON

WtUle Mountains CommurriV CoOege • Graduottngi Qoss of 2018
Associates Degree
EortyCt^ldhood Education
Understandlrtg ChBdren with Special Needs
Eorty Intervention
Admirustratlve Management

Maintained 3.8 CPA or higher
Student teacher fpostttve guidance tectiniques with Pot
RnnegoTVAIlen)

WORK EXPERIENCE

Doy By Doy Ctdd Core
2010-Present

Center Director

-Planned. Irrplen>ented. monitored and assessed Chid Core program,
cor^ent vrith ttie New Hampshire regulations and guideTmes.
-Obtcinirtg all required Dcenses and certlficatiorp and keeping ttiem
current os required.
•Molritoined accurote arrd detolied records. Including stoff ar»d child
files on enroDnnents.

•Knowledge and expertise in promoting growth orKi develofxnent In
chldren for ony of the developmentol domolns, (bnguoge and
itterccy, heolth and physicd development, approoches to ieoming;
social emotional development, creotive orls. sdence, mathematics)
•Focaitcrie meeiirtgs to provide updotes to porents concerning their
chld's progression.
-Responding effectivety to the root causes of challenging behaviors in
students using posittve guidance techniques.
•implemented the creative curriculum end TS gold ossessment system
for preschool and developed o hlgtvqucOty program to meet the
needs of a Ngtwisk popuiation using the aeotive curriculum designed
tor preschool.
•Sillirig and handling cU accounts receivable.
-Followed strict time tables to moke sure daSy operations ran smoothty
from start to finish. .
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^  JULIE KINERSON

EXPERIENCE

JULY 7 2020-PRESENT

Famity Resource Center

•  Family support spedalist in the Healthy Families America Program: educatmg parents
on child attachment/bonding and child development while maintaining
confidentlalitv.

•  Maintain high caseload, white successfully documenting all visits on time and
updating flies.

•  Assisting families In developlngFamlly Goal Plans and creating action steps to achieve
goals.

• Maintaining time-sensitive documents and inputting into database.

•  Training new staff and tracking training data for program staff.

•  Facilitating group meetings and staff trainings.

SEPTEMBER 2008 - JULY TTH 2020

Stay at Home Mom

•  201S-2021 Homeschooled children

SEPTEMBER 2006 - SEPTEMBER 2008

Dunkin donuts

•  Shift leader, was responsible for team on shift. Tracking day to day tasks to be
completed.

•  Delegating tasks to team members while ensuring staff was taking breaks when
needed.

June 2003 - September 2006

Storyland
•  Drama department: Script memorization, implementing strict schedule.
•  Entrance department: Managing cash registers

EDUCATION

2013- 2020

BACHELORS DEGREE, POST UNIVERSITY

•  Post University, Connecticut

•  BA in Human Services, concentration in counseling

•  GPA-3.9

2002 - 2006

HIGH SCHOOL, Berlin Senior High

SKn.T.S

•  Communication Skills • Motivational Interviewing

•  Time Management • Muitl-tasking

•  Organization • Technology & Data input
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Undsey Mse Olmsted

Speda! Sidtis: Computer skills using Microsoft word artd excel Have proven abiDty to keep
confidentiality. Have exper1er>ce and the responsibility of filing and keeping up to date on paperwork.

Great people skills. Multiple years of experience working with the public

Work History:

July 2Q20-Pre$ent- The Family Resource Center- Data Coordinator/Quality Assurance- 8erfln NH-
Ucensed CRSW, Process and submit bltling for the Strength to Succeed program, provide quality

assurance for visit numbers, run reports, review and analyze family visit notes for the Child Health

program as well as forthe Comprehensive Program, Processservlce authorizations, assign newreferrab^
plan prepare and fadTitate monthly certified recovery support workers group supervbion, provide
program success stories as well as quality assurance for resources for aD programs within the

organization, process and document completed training certificates, provide certified recovery support

work to an individual dient,

October 2018- July 2020 The Family Resource Center, Strength to Succeed - Recovery Based
Reunification Spedaflst- Berlin NH- Provide in-home support to at-rbk famines. Create support plans
based on family's needs induding treatment centers, parenting skflb, child development, and referrab

to outside services. Use reflective and active Ibtenlngskilb, practice high confidentiality, record keeping

and provide creativity and flexibility with planning for each families.

May 2015- October 201B- Androscoggin Valley Hospital- Accounts Specialist- Berlin NH- Send out bill

daims to insurance companies for payment. Process payments

November 2014-February 2015- North Country Independent Living- Conway NH- Residential Advisor-

Skllb to work with residents that have suffered brain injuries. Assisting dients with everyday tasks
Induding food prep, house chores and community involvement.

Education:

January 2021-pre$ent- Southern New Hampshire University- Manchester, NH- Degree: Psychology with a
concentration In Mental Health- Projected graduation date 07/2025.

Certification:

Certified Recovery Support WorkerfCRSW) (B/2020

Ages and Stages Developmental Screening Certificate 03/05/2019

Ethical Considerations for Recovery Coaches Certificate 04/2022
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CONTRACTOR NAME- The Family Resource Center at Gorbam

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary Amount Paid
from this Contract

Patricia Stolte Executive Director $4,439.76

Gabrielle Flanders Director of Family Support
Services

$22,230.00

Briana Shannon Program Manager $43,680.00

Ann-Marie Smith . Supervisor $38,402.00

Open Position Clinician $7,800.00

Merrilee Turgeon HFA Nurse $67,340.00

Tikatia Morris Training Manager $5,525.00

Leah White QA Manager $5,720.00

Joanne Bevins Family Support Specialist $32,760.00

Kailee Guevin Family Support Specialist $33,743.00

Michelle Lucas Family Support Specialist $34,580.00

Melissa Vashaw Family Support Specialist $32,760.00 .

Shayna Henry Family Support Specialist $32,760.00

Julie Kinerson FSS/PT Supervisor $35,280.00

LindseyOlmsted QA Data Entry $14,040.00
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Lort A. W<»m

ieuria Cemehslwr

Parri(l« M. TUry
Plrtctor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AN© HUMAN SERVICES

©/m/OiV OF PUBUC MEAL TH SEkViCES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH (O30I

603.2714201 1400492^3345 EiL 4301
Fti:<S03'}714n7 TOD Acccu: I40O.73S-2964

wwn'^khi.nh^ev

Decembef 29, 2022

Hn Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTTON

Authorize the Department of Heatth and Human Services, Divteron of Public Health
Services, and the Drviaon of Children, Youth and Farrnlles, to enter into Retroactive contracts
wHh the contractors listed t>elow in an aiTKXjnt not to exceed $8.847,771 to provide home visiting
services, with the option to renew for up to four (4) additional years, effective retroactive to
Octot>er 1, 2022. upon Governor and Council approval through September 30. 2024. 73.67%
Federal Funds. 25.11% General Funds. 1.22% Other Funds.

Contractor Name Vendor Code Area Served* Cfpntract Amount

Community Action
Partrrership of Strafford

County
177200-6004

Rochester Catchment

Area
$1,224,446

Granite VNA, Inc. 177244-8002 Con way Catchment Area $461,064

The Family Resource
Center at Oorham

162412-8001
Berlin and Littleton

Catchment Areas
$1,590,113

Waypoint 177166-6002

Concord, Manchester,
Seacoast and Southern

Catchrnent Areaa

$5,572,148

Total: $8,847,771

* Note the Department did not recehe vendor responses for some areas of the state and is currently In
Die process of re-soliolting for those remaining regions to ensure statewide coveroge.

.  Funds are avalteble in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023. and are
anticipated to-be avalleble in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the avaifabillty and
continued appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line Hems within the price limitation and encumbrar>ce$ between state fiscal years ttirough the
Budget OffiM, if needed and justified.

Because the Bridges System Is used to process and monitor payments for these
agreements, no purchase order number is assigned. The New Hampshire First System will not
be used to encumber these funds. Depending on the eligibility of the client, funding type Is
determined at the time of the payment.

Tht Dtportmtnt of HtcUh and Human Struitis'IHittion ltlo}oin cammuniunandlomilU*
in providing opportunitUt (or t'tiiant to aehttit htoilh and indcptndrnu^
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Soe attached fiscal dotafts.

BCPLANATtOW

This request is Rotroacttve (o avoW any interruption In these services and to allow
for conllrujity of care for famiSea in these regions. This was a complex procurement
coUaboratively sought by the Division of Public Health Services and the Ohnslon for ChWren,
Youth and Families with multiple funding sources. The Department needed additional time to
confirm funding details and finalize the contracts and therefore did not have executed
corttracts in time to present to Governor and Coundl to prevent the previous contracts from
expiring.

The purpose of this request js to provide home visiting services to pregnant
Individuate, and famlHes with children up to age five by utiHzing the evidence-based home
visiting model from Healthy Families America and its' Ct^ild Wetfare Protocols. This
nationally recognized program demonstrates positive outcomes for families In the areas of
positive parenting practices, Improved matemal and child health, improved school
readiness. Increased economic self-sufficiency and parental educational attainrnertt, artd
increased linkages and referrals to valuable community resources. This model has also

is to ensure continuity of services, while supporting expansion of the program, making It
available to a broader population of families, tnduding those Irwolved In New Hampshire's child
welfare system.

Approximately 354 individuata will be served during State Fiscal Years 2023, 2024, and
2025.

The Division of Public Health Services will rrwnitor services by:

» Conducting monthly, quarterly, and annual data reviews to evaluate
capacity utilization, service delivery by region, and dwographic data to
ensure equltable provision of servi^.

•  Conducting quarterly and annual data reviews of program performanoe across
19 federally-^ned performance measures.

•  Reviewing data entered into model-specific tracking documents by each
subcontractor to ensure ftdefity to the requirements of the evidence-based
model.

The Division for Children,' Youth, and Families will monitor services the
following perfonnance measures:

HFA Evidence of Effectiveness 2022 Websftfe.odfrhcallhvfamaiesamerica.om)
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• Referrals

o Share of fellies who ere referretf to He^hy Families America fonn
Division for Children, Youth and Families. (Number of famflles cumantty
enrolled in Heafthy Families America Child Welfare Protocols and
peroentage of Healthy Families America Child Welfare Protocol eloto
currentty used.)

o Share of OMaton for Children. Youth and FamiTies^TOd families thai
were enroHod between three (3) and twenty«four (24) months of ego.

o Shareof Division for Children, Youth and Famaies-referredfamllleo with a
recent assessment of a Substance Exposed Infant.

•  Enrollments

o Average time to enrollmem from the time and date of referral.
o Number of days from referral dale to the first home visit.

o Share of famittos that are offered Healthy Family America and percentage
. of offered famlBes who decide to receive Healthy Family America.

o Proportion of farr^llles that are retained in the program over specified
periods of time. (3 months. 6 months, and every 6 months thereafter) after
receiving a first home visit

o Proportion of families who receive at (oast seventy-five percent (75%) of
the appropriate number of home visits based upon the Individual level of
service to which they are assigned.

• Program Completion

o Share of families who do not conrptete the program. Including, reason for
norvcom^etion andfor discharge.

o Share of families that discharged who completed a minimum of specified
periods of service. (Starting at 6 months, end every 6 months thereafter up
until 36 months of service.)

•  Short-term Outcomes

o Share of families with a new case opened to the Divisiw for Children. Yo^
end Families, or a new report of maltreatment within 6 months after
discharge!

o Share of children wtw enter out-of-home placement vrithin 6 months after
discharge, including breakdown of placemerrttype.

o Share of children who enter any form of out-of-home plaoemont within 12
monttw of discharge.

o Differences in outcomes outlined above (I.e., prevention of out of ho^
removal, decreases In risk/needs) by racial/ethnic and geogra^ic
charact^stica.

The Department selected the contractors through a competitive ®
Reouest for Proposals (RFP) that vras posted on the Department's website from June 2®. 2022
through August 2, 2022. The Department received four (4) responses that were leviowed and
scored by a team of quafifted ir^dt^uals. The Scoring Sheet is attached
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As retefcntied In ExMbIt A, of the attached agreements, the parties have the option to
extend the agreements for up to four (4) addftior\al years, contingent upon satisfacto^ delivefy of
services. availaWe funding, agreement of the parties, arvl Govemor ar*d Council approval.

ShouW the Govemor and Council not authorize this request over 200 New Hampshire
families will experience a tapse In preventive services they've come to depend on. teavtng
vulnerable femiOes vnthout access to proven support for preventing child abuse and neglect,
family violence, low birth weight, maternal depression, and developmental delays.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Numl>er P 93.870. FAIN # X1043S9S.
.X1046878. X1145263; Assistance listing Number# 93.658, FAIN U (FFPSA) 2201NHFOST; and
Asalstonce LIsling Numl)er P 93.391. fain # NH750T000031

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, additional
General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully sulxnitted.

Lori A. Weaver
Interim Commissioner



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB51B797-44E6^309-B613-EC48448AC879

DoeuSign Envefope 10:8aA2DE4A-D244-4QOS«837-88OES7980ia9

FISCAL DETAIL SHEET
SFY 23.24 & 25 HOME VISITINQ SERVICES CONTRACTS

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH fOPHSl FUNDS

OS-95-90-902010-9636 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV, HOME VISITING FORMUU GNT

100%F£OERALCFDA993A70FAIN# XI043595. XI046678

ICommunltY Action Partners^pol Sirafford County • Vendor 4177200-8004 1
State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class title Job Number Budget Amounts

2023 074-500589 Orarns for Pub Assi 90083208 6192.620.00

(10/1/22 - 6/30/23) ar>d Rel

2023 102-S00731 Contracts for 90083208 616.935.00

(10/1/22 - 6/30/23) Program Services

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst 90083210 6317.640.00

(7-1-23-6/30/24) and Rei

2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst 30083210 679,410.00

(7/1/24-9/30/24) arrd Rel

1  SUBTOTAL; 6608.665.00

IWavDOtnt.-'Vendor 0177166^8002 .  • . "■ ' . 'a '

State Rscal Year Cless/Account Class Title Job Number Budget Amounts
2023 074-500589 (grants lor Pub Asst 90083208 6692.250.00

(10/1/22 • 6«)/23) and Rel
2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Assi 90083210 6950,000.00

(7-1-23-6/30/24) and Rel

2026 074-500589 Granls for Pub Asst 90083210 6237,500.00
(7/1/24-9/30/24) and Rel

1  SUBTOTAL: 61.879.750.00
-

• -

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Tflle Job Number Budget .Amounts
2023 074-500589 Grants for Pi^ Asst 90083208 $80,533.00

(10/1/22 • 6/30/23) and Rel
2024 1 074-SO0S89 Granls for Pub Asst 90083210 6109.446.00

(7.1-23-6«)/24) 1 and Rel

2025 074-500569 Granls for Pub Asst 90083210 $27,540.00
(7/1/24-9/30/24) and Rel

1  SUBTOTAL:! 6317.519.00

tlh8FamltyResourc»CemeratGoft»am-VendOf«162412-8001' . .. .
State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Numt>er Budaet Amounts

2023 074-S0D589 Granls (or Pub Asst 90063206 $269,729.x
(10/1/22-6/30«J) and Rel

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Assl 90083210 6378,354.x
(7-1-23-6/30/24) end Re)

2025 074-500S69 Grams for Pub Assl 90063210 692.583.x
(7/1/24-9A30/24) and Rel 1

SUBTOTAL:! $740.666.X
Total of AU 5696 63.444,600.00
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05-95-92-920510-8382 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIVISION, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION
FUNDS

100%OTHER FUNDS

WavDOint - VenOof #177l66-B002 •  •; :  •••

State Fiscal Year Clasa/Accouni Class Tlito Job Number Budoet Amounts

2023 074-500599 Grants lor Pub Assi

and Rel

92057502 $109,000.00

SUBTOTAL: $108,000.00

-  • . TOTAL OF AU 3392 S108.000.00

05-954)9-902010-5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: PUBLIC
BUREAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV. MATERNAL • CHILD HEALTH, HEALTH DIV
100% GENERAL FUNDS

FamiivHftfiourcatUenter.atGoftiam-Vendor #162412-8001

State fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Budoet Amounte

2023

(10/1/22 • 6W23)
102-500731 Contracts lor

Program Svcs
S0004019 $56,250.00

2024

(7.1-23-6/30/24)
102-500731 Contracts for

Program Svcs
90004019 $75,000.00

2025

(7/1/24-9/30/24)
102-500731 (^niracls for

Program Svcs
80004013 $18,750.00

SUBTOTAL: $150,000.00

TOTAL OF AU 5190 $150,000.00

05-9509-901019-5771 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: PUBLIC
HEALTH OIV, BUREAU OF POLICY 5 PERFORMANCE, PH COVID-19 HEALTH OlSPARrTlES

100% FEDERAL FUNDS CFDA #93.391 FAIH«NH7SOT000031

Wavoolnl" - Vendor #177166-8002
> 1

State Fiscal Year ClaSs/Account Class Title Job Number Budget Amounts

2023

(10/1/22 - 6A30/23)
074-500589 Grants for Pub Assi

and Relief

90577160 $105,000.00

2023

(10/1/22 - 6/30/23)
074-500589 Grants for Pub Assi

and Relief

90577150 . $157,500.00

- SUBTOTAL: $262,500.00

FflmavRMOurcoCenl0raiGorttam-Vendorfli624l2-BOOi .r.. .

Slate Fiscal Year Class/Account Claas Title Job Number Budget Amounts

2023

(10/1/22-6/30/23)
074-500569 Grants lor Pub Asst

and Relief

90577150 $86,512.00

SUBTOTAL: $86,512.00

TOTAL OF AU 5771 $349,012.00

05-95-90-902010-2451 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES.
HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH D.IV, BUEAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV, ARP - MIEC HOME VISITING 100%
FEDERAL FUNDS CFDA #93.970, FAIN# X1141935 & X116S263

Community Action Partnership of Slranord County - Vendor #1//2b0-8(k)4

State Rscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Budoet Amounts

2023
(10/1/22 • 600/23)

074-500589 Grants for Pub Assi

and Rel

90093206 $17,532.00

2024

(7-1-23-60004)
074-500589 Grams for Pub Asst

and Re!

90083207 $64,231.00

2025
(7/1/24-9/30/24)

074-500589 Grams (or Pub /Usi

and Rel

90093207 $13,558.00

SUBTOTAL: $85,321.00
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DPHS SUBTOTAL:

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN. YOUTH AND FAMILIES (DCYR FUNDS

[WavDolnl- VendorMVyiee-BOOZ. •• ■ * 1
Slate Fiscal Year Class'Account Class Tltla Jot> Number Budaet Amounts

2023

(10/1/22 - 6/30/23)
074-500569 Grants lor Pub Assi

and Ral

90063208 $114,064.00

2024

(7-1-23-6/30/24}
074-500569 Grants (or Pub /^si

and Ret

900S3207 $125,000.00

2025

{7/1/24-9/30/24)
074-500569 Grants lor Pub Assi

and Rel

90063207 $142,350.00

1  SUBTOTAL: $381,414.00

...

State Fiscal Year Class/

Account

Class Title Job Number Budget Amounts

2023

<10/1/22 - 6/30/23)

074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst
end Rel

90063206 $11,452.00

2024

(7-1-23-600/24)

074-500569 Grants tor Pub Asst

and Ral

90063207 $0,00

2025

(7/1/24-9/3CV24)
O74-S00589 Grants (or Pub Asst

and Rel

90083207 $0.00

1  SUBTOTAL:! $11,452.00

Family.BesourceCenier at Gorbam Vendor#162412-BOOV .. •

State Fiscal Year Claas/Account Class TMta Job Number Budaet Amounts

2023 074-500563 Grants lor Pub Asst 90063206 $68,714.00

(10/1/22 - 6/30/23) and Rel

2024 074-500569 Grants lor Pub Asst 90083207 $50,000.00

(7-1-23-6W24) and Rel

2025 074-500569 Grenis (or Pub Asst 90083207 $56,532.00

(7/1/24.9O0«4) and Rel

SUBTOTAL: $175,246.00

TOTAL OF AU 2451 $653,433.00

05-95-042^21010-2956, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD -FAMILY SERVICES
50% FEDERAL CFOA »93.658 FAIN » 2201NHFOST

Community Action Partnership oi Strafford County ■ Vendor 4177200-B004

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Numt>er Budaet Amounts

2023

(10/1/22-6/30/23)
637-504181 TITLE IV-E

FOSTER CARE

SERVICE

42105669 $199,673.00

2024

(7-1-23-6/30/24)
637-504181 TITLE iV-E

FOSTER CARE

SERVICE

42105669 $266,230.00

2025

(7/1/24-9/30«4)
637-504181 TITLE IV-E

FOSTER CARE

SERVICE

42105869 $66,557.00

SUBTOTAL: $532,460.00
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5l«ie R»cbI Year Class/Account Dass Title Job Number Budaet Amounis

2023

(to/1/22 -eAJO/23)
637-504181 TITLE IV-E

FOSTER CARE

SERVICE

42105869 $67,035.00

2024

(7.1-23-6/30rt4)
637-504161 TITLE IV-e

FOSTER CARE

SERVICE

42105869 $116,046.00

2025

(7/1/24-9/30/24)
637-504181 TITLE IV-E

FOSTER CARE
SERVICE

42105669 $29,012.00

1  SUBTOTAL: $232,093.00

rnie FamifY Resource Center at Qorham.- Vendor #162412-B001- • . . • . . 1

State Piacal Year Class/Accouni Class Title Job Number Budoet Amounts

2023

(10/1/22 - ««l/23)
637-504161 TITLE IV-E

FOSTER CARE

SERVICE

42105669 $164,133.00

2024

(7.1-23-6.00/24)
637-504181 TITLE IV-E

FOSTER CARE

SERVICE

42105869 $218,845.00

2025

(7/1/24-9O0/24)
637-504161 TITLE IV-E

FOSTER CARE

SERVICE

42105869 $54,711.00

1  SUBTOTAL: $437,669.00

Y/aypoint - Vendor #i>7l66-KKte • . . . .... . 1

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Tltla Job Number Budaet Amounte

2023

(10/1/22-6^0/23)
637-504181 .  TITLE IV-E

FOSTER CARE

SERVICE

42105869 $1,102,682.00

2024

(7-1-23-6/30/24)
637-504181 TITLE IV-E

FOSTER CARE

SERVICE

42105869 $1,470,242.00

2025

(7/1/24-9/30/24)
637-504181 TITLE IV-E

FOSTER CARE

SERVICE

42105869 $367,560.00

SUBTOTAL: $2,940,484.00

Total of AU 2956 $4,142,726.00

DCYF SUBTOTAL; S4.142.726.00

$8,847,771.001COMBINED HOME VISITING SERVICES CONTRACT TOTAL:!



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

OoeuV^ 10; «a»«>C«A-02M 40O> >M?-»oea7M0tia

New Hampshire DepartmerM ot Health and Human Services
Division ot Finance and Procuretnem

Bureau of Contracts end Procurement

Scoring Sheel

Prelect 10 e ,RFP>202S-OPH3411-HOMEV'

Prelect Title {Heme.VUiitng.^j^eef . ...
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Peinte

Avelleble
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.
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Subject: Home Visiting Sen'kcs/ RFP-2023-DPHS.01-HOMEV«03
FORM NUMBER P-37 <verelon 12/U/2019)

Noiicc: This ftgreemem and ell of its auachinenis shall become public upon submission to Covernor and
Executive Council for npproval. Any informaiion that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the ccniraci.

AGREEMENT

ITic Stale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Nome

New Hampshire Depannteni of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NK 03301-3857

1.3 Conimclor Nanw

The Family Resource Center nt Corham

1.4 Coniractor Addrc$$

123 Mnin Street

Corham. NH 0.3851

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

60.3-466-5190

1.6 Account Number

05 095-090-9020IO-5896

05-095-090-902010-5190

05-095-090-902010-245I

05-095.042-421010-2958

05-095-090-901010-577)

1.7 Completion Date

9/30/2024

1.8 Price Limitntion

SI.590.113.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore. Director

I.IO State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

I.II ContractbrSignature

n... 1/5/20231 pdMciA

1.12 Name and Title of Coniffictor SigiiMory
Patricia Stolte

EKecutivfi Director

1.13 ^ic'A'gcncy Signature
f  l/c/jnjx

it. D,ilc: 1/6/2023

1.14 Name at>d Title of Siaic Agency Signatory
Patricia m. Tilliey

Director

1.15 AppfovHrSyiKc^.H. Dcparimcnt of Admimstraiion. Division of Personnel (i/npplicohic)

By: Director. On:

1.16 Approval by (he Attorney Ccncml (Form, Substance and Execution) fi/rrpp/tcnWcJ

0,.: 1/6/20"

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council ftffl/ip/rcrrWeJ

G&C Item number: CtfcC Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contractor Iniiiats

Dale

(-0X

US
iiiatsv

l/S/21323
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siaic of New
HAmpithirc, octinf iluough the agency (Jcmiflcd in block 1.1
("Swic"). engages coniracior identified in block 1.3
("•Contractor") to pcrfonn. and the Contractor shall pcrrorm, the
work or sale oF goods, or both, ideiuined and more panicuiarly
described in the attached EXHIBIT D which is incorporotcd
herein by rcrcrcncc (-Service.*").

3. EFFECTIVE DATF7C0MPLETI0N OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision oF ihis Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, end all obligations of the parties liereunder. shall
become cITcctivc on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement m indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required. In which case the Agrccmerti

" shall become effective on ilic date the Agreement is signed by
ilie State Agency as shown In block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor comnKnccs the Scrvicwt prior io the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Coniracior. and In the event that this Agreement docs not become
effeclivc, the State shall have no liability to the Coniracior,
including without, limitalion. any oblig.tlion to pay the
Contractor for any. costs Incurred.or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Cotnplction Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGRF-EMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of ihe State hereunrtcr. including,
wiihoui limiiation. the continuance of payments hcrcuiKlcf. arc
contingerll upon the availability and coitiinued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
opproprtatioa or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pan. In no event shall the State be liable for any payment.*
hereunder in excess of such nvailable appropriated funds. In Ihe
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated fund.*, the
State shall hast the right to withhold payment until such funds
become iivniiablc, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
lerminatc the Services under this Agreement InmKdintely upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
occouni or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Accouni are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT FRICFTPRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 Thecomracl price, nielhodof payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly dc.scribcd in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Service*. The State shall
have no liobiliiy to the Conimclor other than ihe contract price.
5.3 Tlic State reserves the right to offset from any anrounis
otherwise payable to the Coniracior under this Agreement those
li<|uidntcd amounts required or perniiiicd by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Noiwilh.standing any provision in Ihi.s Agreement to the
contrary, and noiunthsiandihg unexpected circumstnrrces. in no
event shall the total of oil payments authorized, or actually made
hcrcundcf. exceed tlic Price Limitation set forth In block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
and REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection vriih llie performaiKC of the Ser*'iccs, (he
Contractor shall comply with oil applicable statute.*, laws,
regulations, and .order.* of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any t^ligniibh or duty upon the
ContrKcior. including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
empKtyincni opportunity law*. In addition, if this Agreement Is
funded in any pan by tuonies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and siiiiuics, and with any rules, regulations and guidclines,as the
State or the United-States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all upplicublc intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During lire term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for ctttploymcni
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex. handicap, sexual
oricniniion. or national origin and will take offirmaltvc action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Conirucior's books, records and nccounts for
the purpose of asccrfoinlng compliance with all rule.*, regulations
and orders, and the covcnanis, term.* and cotidillons of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 Tlic Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
oiherwi.sc authorixcd to do so under oil applicablclaws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized io writing, during the term of
ihi.s Agreement, nnd for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date iii block 1.7, the Coniracior shall not hire, and
Khali not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it Is engaged In a combined effort to
pcrfonn the Services to hire, any person who is ti State employee
or officinl. who i.* maicrially involved In the procurcmcni,
adminislraiion or pcrfomioncc of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contructing Officer specified in block 1.9. or his or her
successor, shall be Ihe Slate's represeniaiive. In the even} of any
dispute concerning the Interpretation of this Agreement, the
Coniraciing Officer's dccisiott shall be final for the Stale.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/KEMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or inore of ihc foUowing acts or oniissions of Ihe
Conlrncior shall consiimic an cvcni of default hcrcundcr (''Event
of DcfauK"):
8.1.1 failure lo pcfform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule:

8.1.2 failure to sublnii nny report required hercunder; and/or
8.1.3 failorc lo perform any oihcr covenant, term or coirdition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all. of Ihc following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying tlic Event of
Default .nnd requiring it to be remedied within, in the nbsciwc of
a'grcaier or ie.sser specification of lirtK, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice: nnd if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination:
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering tlutt the portion of the contract price
which would olhcrwisc accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the Slate
dcrermincs that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Cpitlracior a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and sci off against any other obligations the Slulc may

• owe to Ihc Contractor nny damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Dcrauh: and/or
8.2.4 give the Conifocior n wrlncn notice specifying iIk Event of
Default, treat the Agreement fts breached, lerminntc the
Agreement and pursue nny of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both. ' ̂
8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
nny. Event of Default .shall be deemed » waiver of il.s rights wiilt
regard to that Event of Default, or nny subsequent Event of
Default. Nocxprtas failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of (he right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Conlrncior.

p. TERMINATION.
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8. the State may. at its sole
discretion, icrminale the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) d.tys written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to lerminRic the Agrccmtni.
9.2 In the event of on early tcrminaiiort of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the Stoic's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Ornccr. not later than fi ficcn (IS) days after the date
of termination, a repon ('Termination Rcpon") describing in
detail oil Services performed, nnd the contract price earned, to
nnd including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to tho.se of any Final Report described in the atiaclKd
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the Stale's discfetiou, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop nnd

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCF^S/CONFIDENTIALm'/
PKESERVA'I'ION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
infonnaiion and things developed or obtained during thie
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, report.*,
files, formulae, survey.*, maps, charu. sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
rcprc.seniaiion.*. computer programs, computer prinioot.*. note.*,
Iciicrs. memoranda, papers, and docuntcnts. all u-heihcr
fini.*hcd or unflni.'^hcd.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Stale, and
shall be returned to the State upon dcutand or upon termitiaiion
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing l.nw. Disclosure of d.tin requires
prior written npprovnl of the Sliiic.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contracior i.s In all rc.*pccis
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of Us
officers, employees, agents or nicntbcrs shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other cmohimctii.* provided by the State to its employees.

12. assignment/delegation/sudcontracts.
12.1 The Contractor shall not a.*sign.or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
.shall he provided to the State at Ic.ist fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, anil a written consent of il»c State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control .shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of rclcued transactions in
which a third parly, together with it.* affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or nKtre of Ihc
voting shares Of similar equity fntcrcsts. or combined voting
power of the Conimcior, or (h) the sale of all or subsiahtially all
of the a.sseis of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services .shall be suhconlrncted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all xubconiracis and assignment
agfccmcnis and shall not be bound by nny provision* contained
in a subconlrnci or an assignmcui agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unlc.s.s olhcrwisc exempted by law.
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmlc.*.* the State, it*
officers and employees, from nnd ngninsi any and all claims,
liabilities jmdcosi* for any ixrsonal injuo'or property damages,
potent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the Stale, its officers or ctnployces, vi'hich arise out of (or which
moy be claimed to arise out oO the act* or omiyrioa^of the
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Comrnciof. or aubconirociors. including but not limited to the
negligence, rcckJcss or intentional conduct.- The Slate .shall not
be liable for any costs ItKurred by the Contracior arising under
this paragraph 13. Noiwiihsianding the foregoing, nothing herein
conitiiiKd shall be deen^d to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immuniiy of the State, which immunity h hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 .<hall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously .ntainiain in force, and .shall require any
subconiraaor or assignee to obinin and maintain in force, the
following insuroncc:
14.1.1 commercial general liability in.rurance against all claims
of bodily Injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than S 1,000.000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering-all property
subject 10 subpamgraph 10.2 herein, in on amount not lc.ss than
S04b of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policic.s described in subparagr.aph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy fornts and endorsements approved for use in the Siaie-
of Now Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
ijtsucd by insurers licensed In the State of New Hamp.diirc.
14.3 The Contrncior sitall furnish to the Commcting Officer
Identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccrtificatc(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agrccnicm.
Coniroclor shall aljo furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block l".9, or his or her .successor, ccrtificatc(s) of Insurance
for all rcncwal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each

-  ■ insurance policy. Tlte, cenificaie(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

'  I S.I By signing this .igreenteni, (he Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance-wlih or c.xcmpi
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Comisensoiion").
15.2 To the extent the CoiUfacior is subject to the rcquircrttcnis
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. Contractor shall nmimain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maiiti.-iin, -
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
acliviiies which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agfccmcni. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, proof of Workers"
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rcncwnl(s) (hereof, which shall be
anacltcd and arc'incoiporatcd Itercin by rcfereiKC. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compcn-sation prcmiujn.s or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Cbnirnctor.
which might arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws ia connection wiih the
performance of the Services under this Agrcentcnt.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given oi the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the panics at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be aiitcnded. waived
or di.schargcd only by an instrument in writing signed by the
panics hereto and only after approval of such Bmendment,
waiver or discharge by (he Governor and Executive Courtcil of
iltc State of New Hampshire unlex.s no such approval is required
under the citcunistunccs pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement Shalt
be governed, interpreted nnd conitrued in nccordance with the
laws of the Stnic of New Hamp.shirc, and is binding upon and
inures to the bcneni of (he panies and their respective succest^rs
und assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the panics to express their mutual inieni, unJ no rule
of construction shall be applied against or In favor of any pany.
Any Actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought aikI
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Coun which shall lutve
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING, TERMS. In the event of a confllci
between the terras of this P*37 form (as modified in .EXHlBTr
A) and/or utiachmcnis arnl amendincrti thereof, the terras of the
P*37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties l>ereto do not intend to
bcrKfit any third panics and this Agrccmcm shall not be
consiiued to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings througliout the Agreement ore
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held (o explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
inicrprctaiiort, construction or'nfeaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in titc nttuchcd EX VII BIT A arc incorporHlcd
herein by rcfcitnce.

23. SEVERARILITV. Iniheeventnityoftheprovisionsofthis
Agreement are held by a coun of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any stale or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMEN.T. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterpans, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agrecrttcnt and
undcr.oanding between the panics, and .^upcr.sedcs all prior
agreenienis and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

Page 4 of 4
Contractor Initials

Dhte

'OS

fS

I/TnUTi



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

OoeuSign Envelope ID; AC2835E&.92FM020-BO2E'W«OE4F9SClC

New Hampshire Department ot Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Subparagraph 3.1. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder. shall become effective October
1. 2022, ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parlies may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parlies, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subconlracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subconiraclors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have wrilteh
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcorilraclor performance.

RFP-2023-0PH$-01'HOMEV-03 ^ Contt4Clw tninalst^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Introduction

1.1. The Contractor must provide services in accordance with Department
requirements and the Healthy Families America (HFA) program, which Is
designed to reduce the risk of child maltrealrhent by strengthening parent-child
relationships, promoting healthy childhood growih. and enhancing family
functioning and protective factors. Families enroll voluntarily with HFA, and
meet regularly with a Family Support Specialist and receive services tailored to
their needs.

HFA is both cullurally-lndusive and trauma-informed, and teaches parents
about healthy child development and appropriate activities for keeping their
chlld(ren) healthy and thriving. The Contractor must provide services to assist
in:

•  Increasing caregivers' ability to build altachments with their chjld(ren);

• Creating foundations for nurturing relationships;

•  Enhancing family functioning through reducing risk and Increasing;
proleclive factors; and

•  Developing connections to additional resources, which include, but are
not limited to:

o Housing.

o Food.

o Various forms of treatment,

o School readiness,

o Childcare.

o Access to diapers and other supplies.

1.2. The Department, through this Agreement, seeks to assess needs more
hoiistically, and to create crucial linkages across systems that touch vulnerable
populations to seamlessly connect them to supports and enhance available
services at all levels of needs. The Department's Division of Public Health
Searices (DPHS) In conjunction with the Division for Children, Youth and
Families (DCYF) are collaborating their efforts to achieve this goal. The
Contractor must provide services using the HFA program to children and
families on behalf of both Divisions.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to day(s) mean Monday
through Friday, business days, excluding state and federal holidays.

2. Key Definitions & Terminology

fiFP-20230PHS-01-HOMEV-03 B-2.0 CorrtfadOf tnilials I
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New Hampshire Department ot Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT B

2.1. Begin Date of Services -The dale the Contractor initiated contact with the
ciient/famliy, and corresponds with the dale listed as "begin datep! services"
on the Division for Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) Service Authorization
Form.

2.2. CPS - Child Protective Services.

2.3.. cot - Continuous Quality Improvement. •

2.4. Cultural Humility - Maintaining a willingness to suspend what you know, or
what you think you know, about a person based on generalizations about their
culture. Rather what you learn about a participant's culture stems from being
open to what they themselves have determined is their personal expression of
their heritage and culture.

2.5. CWP - Child Welfare Protocols.

2.6. DCYF - Division lor Children. Youth and Families.

2.7. DHHS - Department of Health and Human Services.

2.8. DPHS - Division of Public Health Services.

2.9. DO - District Office.

2.10. Face-to-face - An in-person or virtual interaction or home visit (defined below)
following the date on which the referral was made in which a provider begins
. working with the families to deliver HFA.

2.11. FFPS A - Family First Prevention Services Act.

2.12. FTE - Full time equivalent is a figure calculated from the number of full-lime
and part-time employees in an organization that represents these workers as
a comparable number oMuII-time employees.

2.13. GGK - Growing. Healthy Kids is a user friendly and truly comprehensive
strength-based approach to growing nurturing parent-child relationships and
supporting healthy chitdhood development.

2.14. HFA - Healthy Families America.

2.15. HFA model - A well-supported practice that provides home visiting designed
to work with lamilies who may have histories of trauma, intimate partner
violence, mental health challenge, and/or substance use disorders. HFA
services are delivered voluntarily, intensively, and over the long-term.

2.16. HFA BPS - Healthy Families America Best Practice Standards.

2.17. HFA CWP model - A set of protocols that requires the existing model
requirements be provided, while' offering additional guidance related to
enrollment, caseload management, and establishing a formal MOU with child
welfare in order to best serve families. Services are offered for a minimum of
three years, regardless of the age of the child at intake, and supportsiarwiies

RFP-2023-DPHS-01-HOMEV-03 8-2.0 ConliacW
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT B

with children through age five, which allows sites to enroll families referred by
child welfare up to age twenty-four months.

2.18. HRSA - Health Resource and Services'Administration is the primary Federal
agency for improving access to health care services lor people who are
uninsured, Isolated, or medically vulnerable and the funding source of the
MIECHV.

2.19. MIECHV - Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting - a program
that supports pregnant Individuals and families and helps at-risk parents of
children from birth to kindergarten entry to tap the resources and hone the skills
they need to raise children who are physically, socially and emotionally healthy
and ready to learn.

2.20. MOU/MOA - Memorandum of Understanding/Memorandum of Agreement - a
written agreement between two (2) parties to provide certain services.

2.21. Open Assessinent - Any report of concern received by DCYF that is screened
in by DCYF's central intake, and is being investigated by child protection stafl.

2.22. Open CasEs - Any case opened to DCYF, including community-based/inlernal
voluntary cases.

2.23. Oul-of-Home Placement - The removal of a child from their norrhal place of
residence to reside in a court-ordered substitute care setting under the
placement and care responsibility of DCYF.

2.24. PAT - Parents As Teachers - a foundational curriculum used as an approach
to working with families that Is relationship-based and parenting-focused.

2.25. Pll - Personally Identifiable Information. .

2.26. QA - Quality Assurance.

2.27. Virtual Home Visit - A home visit,- as described in an applicable service delivery
model that is conducted solely by the use of electronic Information and
telecommunications technologies.'

2.28. Well-supported practice - An evidence-based service that has at least two
(2) contrasts, vyith non-overlapping samples in studies carried out In usual care
or practice settings that achieve a rating of moderate or high on design and
execution and demonstrate favorable effects in a target.outcome domain. At

■  least one (1) of the contrasts must demonstrate a sustained favorable effect of
at least 12 months beyond the end of treatment on at least one (1) target
outcome. .

3. Statement of Work

3.1. The Contractor must provide face-to-face voluntary home visiting services to

Text ♦ H.R.l?^ • I Conpfcss aOiV.2010i: Cousolid.ned Auuronfiniltms Acl. 2071 J CoiiPfTM.gov I of
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT B

pregnant individuals and families with children up to age five (5) by utilizing the
evidence-based home visiting model from HFA.

3 2 The Contractor must ensure a minimum of 80% of families served using the
traditional HFA model are enrolled in services prenataily or by when the child
Is 3-months old. The Contractor must offer services in compliance with HFA
requirements after enrollment. Eligible families for traditional HFA services (as
managed by the Division of Public Heather Services) must fall within one (1) or
more of the federally defined priority populations below;

3.2.1. Are first-time parents.

3.2.2. Have Income of less than one hundred eighty-five percent (<185%) of
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (USOHHS)
Poverty Guidelines.

3.2.3. Are less than twenty-one (21) years of age.

■  3.2.4. Have a history of child abuse or neglect, or have had interactions with
child welfare services.

3.2.5. Have a history of substance misuse or need substance use disorder
treatment.

3.2.6. . Are users of tobacco products in the home.

3.2.7. Have or have had a child(ren) with low student achievement.

3.2.8. Have a child(ren) with developmental delays or disabilities.

3.2.9.' Are In families that include individuals who are serving or have
formerly served in the armed forces.

3 3 The Contractor must service a portion of families utilizing the HFA Child
Welfare Protocols (CWP) in the Berlin and Littleton DCYF Catchment Areas,
which is attached as Attachment 1. Virtual home visits may also be
accommodated, in compliance with HFA requirements. The Conlractor must
ensure families being served utilizing the CWP have an expanded enrollment
Nwindow, allowing for enrollment of families with a child up to twenty-four (24)
months'old. referred by the child welfare system, who "are participating In the
service voluntarily. The Contractor must serve no less than four (4) DCYF
families during the first six (6) months of the contract period and no less than
eight (8) families thereafter through the end of the contract period.

3.4. The Contractor must serve families under the traditional HFA model by DCYF
Catchment Area as follows: Berlin - 25, Littleton - 20.

3.5. Eligible families for HFA CWP services must fall within one (1) of more of the
following DCYF FFPSA priority populations:

3.6.1. Pregnant or parenting youth in foster care.

3.5.2. Families with an infant born exposed to substances.

RFP.2023-DPHS-01KOMEV-W 0-2-0 Conlraclof
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3.5.3. Families assessed by DCYF where the assessment will be closed
unfounded.

3.5.4. Families with an open DCYF case who have recently reunified.

3.6. The Conlractar must provide services with the goal of reducing risk of
maltreatment for children assessed by the DCYF by;

3.6.1. Serving families Involved with DCYF through open assessments or
Open cases, and also beyond their DCYF involvement.

3.6.2. Strengthening parent-child relationships,

3.6.3. Promoting healthy childhood growth.

3.6.4. Enhancing family functioning and protective factors both during and
beyond their DCYF involvement with a long-term outcome goal of
decreasing future system involvement and the need for out-of-home
placement.

3.7. The Contractor must provide services that address the diverse needs of
children and families in order to Improve health and development outcomes lor
priority populations through evidence-based home visiting programs, with
fidelity to the HFA model BPS. The Contractor must:

3.7.1. Be approved through ihe HFA model to provide services under this
Agreement. The Contractor must:

3.7.1.1. Be approved through HFA. to irnplement the HFA CWP,
which allows enrollment into HFA for DCYF referred families

up to twenty-four (24) months of age.

3.7.1.2. Have HFA CWP available in the Berlin and Littleton DCYF
Catchment Areas within six (6) months of Governor and
Executive Council approval of this Agreement..

3.7.1.2.1 Should Ihe Contractor be unable to begin
providing services through the HFA CWP by the,
date specified above, a corrective action plan
must be developed by Ihe Contractor and
approved by the Department,
3.7.1.2.1.1. In the eyeni that the HFA National

Office denies the Contractor use of
the CWP, the Contract must develop
a subcontract or MOA with an
approved, accredited HFA provider
to provide this service, no later than
thirty (30) business days from the
date of the denial.

3.7.2. Select and implement an evidence-based curriculum to ̂ pport
.  f7s
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prenalai individuals and newly parenting famiiies. Family Support
Specialists (FSS) must be trained within six (6) months of hire on the
following:

3.7.2.1. Parents as Teachers (PAT), as an annually trained
"Approved user;" or

3.7.2.2. Growing Great Kids (GGK) with certilication of training.

3.7.3. Collaborate with other early childhood and social service agencies to
support linkages to services beneficial to families.

3.7.4. Ensure the twelve (12) critical elements that make up the essential
components of the HFA model are addressed in agency policies.

3.7.5. Enter personally identifiable informaiion (Pll) for all participants
served under this Agreement into the Department's designated Home
Visiting Data System.

3.8. The Contractor must identify positive ways to establish relationships with each
family and keep families engaged and connected over lime, as parlidpants may
be reluctant to engage in services and may have difficulty building trusting
relationships. The Contractor must use creative outreach strategies, such as
Motivational Interviewing, to re-engage families who have disengaged.

3.9. The Comractor must adhere to HFA's site requirements by ensuring weekly
individual supervision is received by all direct service staff.

3.10. The Contractor must provide monthly reflective consultation groups for direct
service staff and supervisors with a skilled Infant Mental Health consultant.

3.11. The Contractor must offer home visits by licensed nurses (registered nurse
(RN) or greater education level) during the prenatal and post-partum periods at
a frequency of once per trimester prenatally, and once per quarter during the
first year post-partum.

3.12. The Contractor must offer services that are comprehensive and focus on
supporting the parent/caregiver, as well as supporting the parent-child
interaction and child deveiopmenl. Additionally, all families must be linked to a
medical provider and other services, as appropriate.

3.18. The Contractor must obtain all necessary authorizations for release of
information. All forms developed lor authorization for release of information
must be made available lor review by the Department during site visits for
selected case reviews.

3.14. The Contractor must coordinate, where possible, with other local service
providers including, but not limited to;

3.14.1. Health care providers. ■

3.14.2. Social workers. [ps
liliala i
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3.14.3. Social services.

3.14.4. Early interventionists.

3.15. The Contractor must develop and maintain an advisory group comprised of
community partners, family participanls, and agency staff with a wide range of
skills and abilities, Including representatives with diverse skills, strengths,
community knowledge, professions, and cultural diversity. The Contractor
must:

3.15.1. Promote equity In all facets of operations with families, staff, and
community.

3.15.2. f\^alntain policy or other written guidance expressing the Contractor's
commitment to respectful staff interactions and supporting staff to
continually strengthen their relational skills focused on diversity,
equity, and inclusion.

3.15.3. Gather information to reflect on and better understand issues
impacting staff and families served and to examine the effectiveness
of its equity strategies.

3.15.4. Develop an equity plan based on what it learns about itself, from an
equity perspective, in the way it supports its staff, the families it
serves, and the community it works within to set a course for
continuous improvement to achieve greater equity In all facets of its
work.

3.16. The Contractor must evaluate the progress of each program panicipanl. as well
as the performance of programs and services provided.

3.17. The Contractor must ensure that they:

3.17.1. Collaborate with relevant DCYF staff and related stakeholders when
a valid release of information has been signed or a subpoena has
been issued by the courl.

3.17.2. Make reports to DCYF Central Intake if they suspect child abuse or
neglect, consistent with their responsibility, as mandated reporters
under New Hampshire law.

3.18. The Contractor must actively and regularly collaborate monthly, with both
Divisions, to enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust
program delivery and policy, based on successful outcomes.

3.19. Compliance Standards

3.19.1. The Contractor must offer services to all families referred by the
Department unless that family is Identified as ineligible for HFA under,
model specifications and requirements.

3.19.2. The Contractor must ensure referrals are accepted from jwriiiple
fS
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sources within the child weliare system Including, but not limited to:

3.19.2.1. DCYF Juvenile Justice Services.

3.19.2.2. DCYF Child Protective Services (CPS).

3.19.3.- The Contractor must adhere to all specillcations and requirements, In
compliance with NH DCYF's 5-year prevention plan and the Fannily
First Prevention Service Act (FFPSA), for HFA CWP cases, including
but not limited to;

3.19.3.1. All data reporting;

3.19.3.2. Record keeping and retention;

3.19.3.3. Fiscal compliance;

3.19.3.4. Maintenance of an evidence-based program identified as
well-supported through the Title IV-E Clearinghouse;

3.19.3.5. Documented prevention type on the DCYF service
authorization (which will be completed by the Department);
and

Submitting a completed prevention plan every twelve (12)
months for every DCYF- referred family. DCYF staff will
complete Ihe initial prevention plan for families, and the
Contractor must update the plans at Ihe 12-monlh mark and
annually. The Department will distribute associated
guidance after DCYF's 5-year plan is reviewed and
approved.

3.19.4. The Contractor must collaborate with the Department to ensure that
- all.program policies, procedures, and documents align with NH DCYF
and DPHS policies, NH state law. and Department needs.

3 19.5. The Contractor must identify staff responsible for submitting reports
and data to Ihe Department within 30 days of the Agreement effective
date.

3,20. Staffing;

3.20.1. The Contractor must follow all HFA Essential and Salety standards
for staffing, hiring, training, and supervision, as outlined in HFA BPS.

3.20.2. The Contractor must ensure HFA home visiting staff have at least a
high school diploma or equivalent, experience providing services to
families, and knowledge of child development. Supervisors and
Program Managers must have at least a Bachelor's degree "with three
(3) years prior experience.

■  3.20.3. The Contractor must ensure FSSs receive extensive training the
program model before delivering the service and on a recurrir|gmsis.

flFP.2023-DPHS-Ol-HOMEV.03 B-2-0 Coniracior tninals

The Family flesoofco Canief at Go'ham Page 8 oJ 16 ■ ■■ '



DocuSign Envelope 10; FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

DoeuSign Envelope ID: AC283S£0-e2FM020-8D2E.3440E4F9$C)C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT B

Training must comply with all HFA model specifications and
requirements, including but not limited to:

3.20.3.1. Attending a (our-day core training that is specialized based
on role (assessors, home visitors, and supervisors).

3.20.3.2. Supervisors attending one (1) additional day for the core
training and an optional three (3) days of training that
focuses on building reflective supervision skills.

3.20.3.3. Program managers are required to attend core training plus
three (3) days of training focused on how to implement the
model to fidelity using the HFA BPS.

3.20.4. The Contractor must ensure additional available training is beneficial
to the staff in delivering HFA. Training and conferences topics must
include but are not limited to:

3.20.4.1: Substance use.

3.20.4.2. Childhood Maltreatment (Abuse/Neglect),

3.20.4.3. Parenting techniques.

3.20.4.4. Cultural competence/humility.

3.20.4.5. Childhood and generational trauma (Trauma-Informed).

3.20.4.6. Engagement strategies.

3.20.5. The Contractor must ensure each Family Support Specialist (FSS)
maintains a caseload of no more than ten (10) to twelve (12) families,
per 1 FTE for the first two (2) years of employment and no more than
fifteen (15) to twenty (20) families per one (1) FTE alter pompleling
24 months of employment for traditional HFA; and no more than ten
(10) to twelve (12) families at any lime for HFA GWP. These caseload
maximums shall be prorated per HFA requirements for staff with less
than 40 hours per week dedicated to the role of FSS.

3.21. The Contractor must maintain HFA accreditation and follow all BPS related to
hiring, staffing levels, training, and supervision among other components of the
model.

3.22. Discharge from HFA services:

3.22.1. The Contractor must develop a discharge plan for each family,
beginning at the time of admission and continuing throughout service.

3.22.2. The Contractor must not discharge any family referred by the
Department without following a protocol specified by the Department.

3.23. Extending HFA services;

3.23.1. The Contractor must offer HFA.Services to the child and fanrrfl^Jbr af fanrffi^r a
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minimum of three (3) years in total.

3.24. Reporting

3.24.1. The Contractor must complete a Monthly Capacity Analysis Report,
which is attached as Attachment 2 on a form provided by the
Department. This document must be submitted to DPHS no later than
the 15'" of each month, containing the prior month's dala^

3.24.2. The Contractor, on a quarterly (January. April, July, and October) and
annual (October) basis, must submit to DCYF:

3.24.2.1. Form 1, which is attached as Attachment 3.

3.24.2.2. Form 2, which Is attached as Attachment 4.

3^24.3. The Contractor may be required to provide new data reporting
requirements, or other key data and metrics including client-level
demographic, perlormance, and service data to the Department in a
format specilied by the Department.

3.25. Background Checks

3.25'1. For all Contractor employees, interns, volunteers, and any
subcontractor employees, interns, and volunteers providing services
under this Agreement, the Contractor must, at its own expeiise, after
obtaining a signed and notarized authorization form the individual(s)
for whom information is being sought:

I25.1.1. Submit the person's name for review against the Bureau of
Elderly Adult Services (BEAS) slate registry maintained
pursuant to RSA lOI-f^-491

3.25.1.2. Submit the person's name for review against the Division for
Children. Youth and Families (DCYF) center registry
pursuant to RSA 169-C:35;

3.25.1.3. Complete a criminal records check to ensure that the person
has no history of:

3.25.1.3.1. Felony conviction: or

3.25.1.3.2. Any misdemeanor conviction involving;

3.25.1.3.2.1. Physical or sexual assault;

3.25.1.3.2.2. Violence;

3.25.1.3.2.3. Exploitation;

.3.25.1.3.2.4. Child pornography;

3.25.1.3.2.5. Threatening, or reckless
conduct; „
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3.25.1.3.2.6. Theft;

3.25.1.3.2.7. Driving under the influence
of drugs or alcohol; or

3.25.1.3.2.8. Any other" conduct that
represents evidence of
behaviprs that could
endanger the well-being of
any individual served under
this Agreement; and

3.25.2. Unless approval Is granted by the Department, the Contractor must
not permit any employee, volunteer, intern, or subcontractor to

/  provide services under this Agreement until the Contractor has
confirmed;

3.25.2.1. The Individual's name is not on the BEAS stale registry;

3.25.2.2. The individual's name is not on the DGYF central registry;

3.25.2.3. The individual does not have a record of a felony conviction;
or

3.25.2.4. The individual does not have a record of any misdemeanors
as specified above.

'  3.26. Confidential Data

3.26.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy
requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the
Department's Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

3.26.2. The Contractor must ensure any. staff and/or.volunteers involved in
delivering .services through this Agreement, sign an attestation
agreeing to access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in
accordance vrith federal and state laws and regulations and the
Department's Exhibit K. The Contractor must ensure said individuals
have a justifiable business need to access confidential data. The
Contractor must provide attestations upon Department request.

3.26.3. Upon request, the Contractor must allow the Department to conduct
a Privacy Impacl Assessment (PIA) of its system. To conduct the PIA
the Contractor must provide the Department access to applicat>le
systems and documentation sufficient to allow the Department to
asses, at minimum, the following:

3.26.3.1. How Pil ls gathered and stored;

3.26.3.2. Who will have access to PI);

3.26.3.3. How Pll will be used in the system;
PS
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3.26.3.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked and

3.26.3.5. Privacy practices.

3.26.4. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are
either significant process changes or new lechnoiogies impacting the
coileciion, processing or storage of Pii.

3.27. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

3.27.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Agreement, the
Parties agree to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth secure
transition of the services from the Contractor to the Department and,
if applicable, the Contractor engaged by the Department to assume
the services previously performed by the Contractor for this-section
the new Contractor shall be known as ("Recipient"). Ninety (90) days
prior to the end-of the contraci or unless otherwise specific by the
Department, the Contractor must begin working with the Department
and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan
(DTP) on a template provided by the Department.

3.27.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient, in
connection with the transition from the performance ol Services by the
Contractof and their Affiliates to the performance of such Sen/ices.
This may include assistance with the secure transfer of records
(electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data (electronic and
hard copy), the transition of such Service from the hardware,
software, network and telecommunications equipment and internet-
related information technology infrastructure ("Inlernal IT Systems")
of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of the Recipient and
cooperation with an assistance to any third-party consultants
engaged by Recipient in connection with the Transition Services.

3.27.3. If a system,f^afeft^s0!IhardwarB^''Eiaflware. and/or software license
('Tools") was purchased or created to manage, track, and/or store
State Data in reiatlonshlp to this Contract, said Tools will be
inventoried and returned to the Depadment, along with the inventory
document, once transition of Slate Data is complete.

3.27.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor and
its Affiliates must be provided to the Department and if applicable, the
Recipient in a timely manner. Any such Trarisition Services must be
deemed to be Services for purposes of this Contract.

3.27.5. Should the Data Transition extend beyond the end ol the Contract,
■the Contractor and its Affiliates agree Contract Information Security
Requirements, and if applicable, the Department's Business
Associates Agreement terms and conditions remain in effect until the
Data Transition Is accepted as complete by the Department,
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3.27.6. In the even! where the Contractor has comingled Department Data
and the destruction of Transition of said data is not feasible, the
Department and Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements prior to destruction.

3.26. Website and Social Media

3.28.1. Contractor agrees that if performance of services on behalf of the
Departriienl involves using social media or a website to solicit
information of individuals, or Confidential data, the Contractor must

work with the Department's Communication Bureau to ensure that
any social media or website designed, created, or managed on behalf
of the Department meets all of the Department's and NH Department
of Information Technology's website and social media requirements
and policies.

3.28^2. Contractor agrees that protected health information (Phi), personal
identiliable information (Pil), or other confidential Information solicited
either by social media or the website that is maintained, stored or
captured must not be further disclosed, unless expressly provided in
the Contract. The solicitation or disclosure of PHI. Pil, or other
confidential information is subject to the Information Security
Requirements Exhibit, the Business Associates Agreement Exhibit
and all applicable slate rules and state and federal laws. Unless
Specifically required by the Contract and unless dear notice is
provided to users of the website or social media, the Contractor
agrees that site visitation will not be tracked, disclosed or used for
website or social medial analytics or marketing.

3-29. Performance Measures

3.29.1. For services provided for DPHS, the Department will monitor
Contractor performance by reviewing indicated reporting
requirements on Form 1, which is attached as Attachment 3, and

■  Form 2, which is attached as Attachment 4. and working with the
Contractor to select areas to improve upon utilizing CQI strategies
through a data driven process.

3.29.2. For services provided for DCYF. the Department will focus on specific
data points collected through Its internal data systems, monthly,
quarterly and annual submissions via email, and existing HFA data
collection reports on DCYF Key Performance Metrics, which are
attached as Attachment 5.

4. Exhibits Incorporated

4.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable H^^alth
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Intormation (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HiPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which
has been execute by the parties.

4.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

4.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are .attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future slate or federal

legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the Slate has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturaliy and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
, Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningtui access to programs andyor services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deal or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the Stale of Nevy Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United Stales Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5 3 3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any^and all
.. rs
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original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations
5.4.1. In the operalion of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor

must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, slate,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws, which must impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operalion of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit must be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at alt times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire f^arshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor In the pertormance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisltioris and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.
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6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6 2 During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, and
any ol their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure
Report the Department must disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor
as costs hereunder the Department must retain the right, at Its discretion, to
deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums
from the Contractor.
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Attachment 1:

DCYF .Catchment Area Locations

Berljni
M»ln stf^ Suite 20d: Berlin NH 03570)

Serving the cities, towns, and
locations of:

■  Atkinson and Gllmanton ■  Oummer • Pittsburg

Academy Grant . ■ Erroi ■ Randolph

•  Bean's Grant ■  Ervings Location • Riverton

•  Bean's Purchase •  FabyanGorham * Sargent's Purchase

•  Berlin •  Grange Greens Grant " Second College Grant

•  Bretton Woods ■  Groveton • Shelburne

•  Cambridge •  Hadley's Purchase • South Lancaster

■  Carroll •  Jefferson • Stark

■  Cascade ■  Kilkenny ■ Stewartslown

•  Chandlers Purchase ■  Lancaster ■ Stratford

Clarksville •  Low and Burbank's Grant • Stratford HoUow

■  ColebrooV •  Mapiewood * Success

«  Columbia •  Martin's Location • Thompson & Mescrve's

■  Coos Junction ■  Milan Purchase

•  Crawford's Purchase ■  Millsfield • Twin Mountain

•  Crystal ■  North Stratford • Wentworth's location

•  Cutt's Grant ■  Northumberland • West Milan

«  Dalton •  Odell ■ WestStewartstown

■  Dix's Grant ■  Percy. • Whitefieid

•  Oixyllle - ■  Pinkham's Grant

Uttletbn

f80 Nbfih Littietbn Road. Unhton, NH 03561)

Serving the cities, towns, and locations of: •  Lisbon

Apthorp •  Littleton

Bath •  LIvermore

Benton •  Lyman

Bethlehem •  Monroe

Bethlehem Junction •  North Haverhill

Center Haverhill •  North Woodstock

East Haverhill •  Pierce Bridge

Easton ■  Piermont

Franconla • • Pike

Gtencliff •  Sugar Hill

Haverhill ■ Warren

Landaff • Woodstock

Lincoln • Woodsvllle
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OecuSlgn Envelop# 10: AC2M5eO-92F6-402O-eD2e.344DE4F95ClC

Attachment 1:

DCYF Catchment Area Locations
Conway'

f?t Hobbs Street. CoftwaYNH 038l8)

Serving the cities, towns, and
locations of: ■  freedom Redstone

•  Albany ■  Glen Sanbornvilie

■  Bartlett ■  Granite Sandwich

•  Brookfield •  Male's Location Silver Lake

•  Center Conway •  Hart's location Snowville

•  Center Cffingham •  Intervale South Chatham

•  Center Ossipee •  Jackson South Effingham

• . Center Sandwich •  Kearsarge South Tamworth

•  Center Tuftonboro • Madison Tamworth

•  Chatham •  Melvin Village Tuftohboro

■  Chocorua ■ " Mirror Lake Union

•  Conway >  Moultonborough Wakefield

•  East Conway ■  Moultonville West Ossipee

"  East Wakefield •  North Conway Wotfeboro

•  Eaton *  North Sandwich Wolfeboro Falls

•  Effingham •  Ossipee Wonalancet

•Cl'aremont

/f7wAfprSrn>et. Suite'-SOt. aa'remdntNH 037f3)-

Serving the cities, towns, and
locations of: ■  'Georges Mills

•  Acworlh •  Goshen ■ Orange

•  Beauregard Village •  Grafton * Orford

•  Burkehaven ■  Grantham " Plainfield

■  Canaan ■  Guild South Acworlh

•  Charlestown •  Hanover • South Charlestown

•  Claremont •  Langdon ■ Springfield

•  Cornish •  Lebanon ■ Sunapee

•  Cornish Flat •  lempster ■ Unity

•  Croydon. ■  Lyme " Washington

•  East Lempster •  Lyme Center • West Canaan

•  Enfield ■  Meriden ■ West Lebarioh

•  Enfield Center •  ■ Mount Sunapec • West Springfield

■  Etna •  Newport • West Unity
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Attachment 1:

DCYF Catchment Area Locations
Keene

/JJI Kw Road.- Keene NH 03^31):

Serving Ihe cities, towns, and
locations of:

Alstead

Antrim

Ashuelot

Bennington

Chesterfield

Peering

Drewsvllle

Dublin

East Sullivan

East Swanzev

East Westmoreland

Fitzwilliam

Gilsum

Greenfield

Greenville

Hancock

Harrlsville

Hillsborough

Hillsborough Upper Village

Hinsdale

Jaffrey
Keene

Marlborough

Marlow

Munsonvllle

Nelson

New Ipswich
North Swantey

North Walpote

Peterborough

Richmond

Rindge
Roxbury

Sharon

Spofford

Stoddard

Sullivan

Surry

Swanzey

Temple

Troy

Walpote

West Chesterfield

West Peering

West Peterborough

West Swanzey

Westmoreland

Westport

Winchester

Windsor

Serving the cities, towns, and
locations of:

Alexandria

Alton

Alton Bay

Ashiand

Barnstead

Bear Island

Belmont

Bridgewater

Bristol

Campton

Center Barnstead

Center Harbor

Dorchester

East Hotderness

Lacohta"

fSS.Beecon Street HVest Laconia NH 6$246)

Ellsworth

Gilford

Gilmanton

Gllmanton Corners

Gilmanton Ironworks

Glendale

Governor Isle

Groton

Hebron

Hotderness

Laconia

Lakeport

Lochmere

Lower Gilmanton

Meredith

Meredith Center

New Hampton

North Sanbornton

Plymouth

Qulncy

Rumney

Sanbornton

Thornton

Tillon

Waterville Valley

Weirs

Wentworth

West Alton

West Rumney

Winnlsquam
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Attachment 1:

DCYF Catchment Area Locations
•  Concord!

MnTfirrillPar1(^Drive.<dfk(^'NH 03301)'

Serving the cities, towns, and
locations of: •  Epsom

■  Alienstown •  Francestown • Penacook

•  Andover •  Franklin • Pinardville

•  Blodgett Landing •  Gerrish • Plttsfield

•  Boscawen •  Gcffslown Potter Place

•  Bow •  Gossville * Salisbury

•  Bradford •  Hennlker • Short Falls

•  Canterbury ■  HIH • South Oanbury

•  Chlchester ■  Hocksett • South Sutton

•  Concord •  Hopkinton • Suncook

•  Contoocook »  Loudon • Sutton

•  Oanbury •  New Boston • Warner

■  Davisville ■  New London * Weare

■  Dunbarton ■  Newbury • Webster

•  East Andover ■  North Sutton • Webster Lake

•  East Concord •  North Wilmot • West Franklin

•  East Sutton •  Northfield • Wilmot

•  Etkins ■  Pembroke • Wilmot Flat

•Manchester/

fl056'f!enmeter. Minchester-NH 63103)
Serving the city of:

Manchester
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Attachment 1:

DCYF Catchment Area Locations
Rochester .

Suite22, ftochesterNH03867)

Serving the cities, towns, and locations of:
•  Barrington

■ Madbury-

•  Center Strafford
• Middleton .

•  Dover
• Milrcn

•  Durtiam
■ Milton Mills

•  East Rochester
■ New Durham

•  Farmlngton
• Rochester

•  Gonic
■ Rollinsford

•  Lee
■ Stratford

Seacbas.t
/.fp'ayf <it. Portsmouth: NH 03801) :

Serving the cities, towns, and
locations of:

•  Auburn *  Hampton Beach Ndrthwood

•  Brentwood •  Hampton Falls Nottingham

•  Candid ■  Kensington Portsmouth

•' Danville •  Kingston Raymond

•  Deerfleld ■  New Castle Rye

■  East'Kingston • " Newfields Rye Beach

•  Epping ■  Newington Seabrook

•  Exeter •  Newmarket Somersworth

•  . Fremont •  Newton South Hampton

•  Greenland •  Newton Junction Stratham

•  Hampton •  North Hampton West NotlioRham
—

SoutHero-
126 Whippit Sr. Noihuo..fiH.03060}

District Office serving the cities, Southern Tclework servlnjt the cities, towns,

towns, and locations of: and locations of:

•  Amherst
■ Milford •  Atkinson

•  Bedford
• Mont Vernon •  Chester

•  Brookline
m Nashua "  Oerry ^

"  Hollis-
m North Salem ■  East Derry

•  Hudson
m Pelham •  East Hampstead

■  Litchfield i Reeds Ferry •  Hampstead

•  Lyndeborough • Salem •  Londonderry

■  Mason • Wilton •  Plaistow

• Merrimack • Windham ■  Sandown
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Attachment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report
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Attachment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report
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^ - Capacitv Atialysis Report
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Attachment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report
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Attachment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report
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Attachment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report
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Attachment 2 - Capacity Analysis Report
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Attachment 2: Capacity Analysis Report
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i;tplniUnn>lc:O7/3l/I0II

Attachment 3 - FORM 1

THE MATERNAL, INFANT, AND EARLY CHILDHOOD HOME VISITING
PROGRAM

DEMOGRAPHIC, SERVICE UTILIZATION, AND SELECT CLINICAL
INDICATORS

PuWle Bordcn Suuwenl: An ttency may noi coodvCT Of ipoMOf, and • pertonh noi fwjuired w reipond lo. i coHeciionof infortnaiion ualtii it dapJayj a ewftemty yalid 0MB
coAiral nombtr. The OMB conttol nombef for thU pfdjeci it 0904-0017. PvWie rcpoflinsbordtn fef iW* eolleetion of information it eti.maied to nvemse 560 hwirt rn^te.
indiidiot «he lime for f<vk wing inttrvciioni. teaxchin^ e.xitim* d«a loofcei. ind compieling and f<vic\ying the coMtciion o f infoimation. conmentt cejarding ih.t
ewJmiie of any other wpeei of ihit eolleeilon of informsiieit. includiitg tugjcttiont for reducing ihit burden, to HRSA Repons Cktrancc OfTicer. 5600 FiUitn Line. Room 10-29,
Rockvtilc, Maryland. 20157.

July 24.20 It
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Ct(kiit*a 0**:

Attachment3 •Form 1

SECTION a: PARTICIPANT DEMOGRAPHICS

Ttbk I: UodopllcMtd Count ofHo* oivd Comioalnt Pfotr»m P»rtWpi«0 S<rvtd by MIECHV ^

Ponlclmnu

PievnoAl Women

Kvinber Newlv EnroHfd Number Conliouine Durine Rtportmf Period Total

•

Male Index Cbitdren

All Indet Children fAute CoicnUt*)

Noi*»:

Table 2: UnJuplicalt^ Count of llMtfholdi 5vrvf4 by MIECHV

Number Ncteiv Enrolled Number Continwlne Ourint Reoenine Period Total

Number of 1 louteboldi

Table 3: Undoplknled Count of P.rlklpanli and MowuhoJdt Sentd by Sioir Home Viiitinf Pro|ram» (non-MlECHV)

Total Number Served durine Renorlint Period

All Adult} fAuto Colrwiatel

All Indei Cblldrcn fAuto Colcolitel

Nolei:

July 24.1011



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC46448AC879

OwSi8« O; AC?MS£«JFM02<«OJ6-><M4f»C1C

Tkblt 4; AduU PartklpanU by Ac<

Attachment 3 - Form i

Aduli Psrtkipanti

Pfctmm Women
Femile Cutgnw

Mole Citcsivm

of '« "UokiWDid o« Rcpon- k'>lQ%. i tAk ootc ohoold be ihai Ihe rease-v for Ihe d»a, .ed if
poisible. pl»M »redoce Hk amoui* of nrnjinj d»i« in fviufe fcponinfi.

<17 I tM9 i :0->l I 22-i* I I t I I i

Nem:

Table S; Indn Children by A^e

<l year 1-2 year* 3-4 yean ^6yeart Unknown/Oid not Report' Total

AU Indrt Children (Auto Calculate)

ice ihe amouw of mijjinf data in fuiwc reportins-

Notes:

Table 4: PanicipaeU by Cthnicily

Poftkipantf

PretfiiM Women

Fefttale Caregivers

Male Cwcsivert

All Adults (Auto Cakolaie)
Female Index Children

Male Index Children

Hispanic or Latino Not Hispanic or Latino Unkno»'n/Oid not Report' Teiul

Whlnlhc ̂rectw"r ̂llt'lhoi''i5 "UnU^^ not Report" is >10%. a ubk note jltm.ld be provided Ihoi oddresjei the reason for the missingdaU. imd if
possible, plwu lo reduce the amoirol of missinfi data in future reporting.

July 24,2011
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o.M»y»:W*«-ean

Ciplnti** btit:

Attachment 3 - Form 1

I Naie»:

Tabk 7: firtKi'panU by Race

raiiicipantf

rrtgninl WonKn
F«ma1e Caregivfr*

Mala Ca«giv«rt

AIIAdulU (Asia

CalaulaK)

Famak kdcxCbildmi

Male Index ̂ Hdftn
AN Index Clilldrcn

, (Aulo CakslaK)

• V/hm the ptiCcM srdeu that is "Unknov.n/Did

American Indian

or Alatki Native

Allan Black or Afrlran

American

iNaiive Hawaiian or
Other Paeifle Ixlandtr

White Mere Iban

on* rate

Unknown/Did not

Report*
Total

not Report" a table note Uwuld be provided that addreun the reason Tor the miMing data, and if
possihlr, plan! to rcdvc* the amount of mitxinp dun in Turu'e reparttng.

I Not»»:

Table Adult PartielpanU by Marital Sialu*

AdufI

Partlelpanb

Prcgruni Women

Female

Categivers

Mile Caretivers

All Adulu (Auto

Cakutitc)

Never Married (Exeluding Not
Marrkd but LivingToecihcr
wiih Fanner)

Marrkd Not iMarrird but

Uving Together with
Partner

Separaird/OivoreedAVidowed Unknoirn/Oid not

Repon*

Tout

' When die pereent ordiia ibal is • UnWrnrtUd not Report" is >10%. a table now should be provided ikit iddretiet the reeiort for the misting data. arxJ if
potxibk. plans to reduce Ihe.amount of missing data in fiiture reporting.

kly 24.201S
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00CwSl9rt Eitv«Wp« IP. ACIMSeO-airMOie-eOZE-MOE^PftSClC

Et'iuntM* Pair: OOI/N2I

Attachment 3 - Form I

^'otct:

TtbU 9: Adull Participant} by Educsiional Ailnlnnienl

Adult

PnrilcipinU

Lett than

HS

drptomn

HS

Dlplema/CEO
Some

cotlegr/

trslning

Technical

training or

cenir>calion

'Aatorlaic't

Degree
Bachelor's

Degree or

higher

Other Unknown/Did

HOC Reperl*

Total

Pregnoni

Woanen

Female

Caregivcn

Male Ctrcgiven

All Adntts

(Aul9

Calculate)

poftible, plant to leducc the amount oTmljsing dU3 in fiiwre tcponint.

Table 10; Adult Parilclpaftu by Emptoymcni Scttut

Adult Panieipanu Employed Full Time Employed Pari-Time Not employed Unknown/Did not Keperi* Total

Prcgttasi Women

Female C*egi\*n

Male Caregiven

All Adulu (Auto Cakuiate)

potsible. plant lo reduce the smouni of raittittx data in future reporting.

Noiei:

Italy }4.20iS
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DocwSignEiw«le9« 10; AC2M4EM?«-4OJfr«O2E.>440etf9SC1C

Ttbie II: Adidt rartiripaaU by Heusinf Suivt

OM«N*: »M940I)
Ci^rtliM D*U:

Attachment 3 • Form 1

Not Homeless Total

Not

llomeir

ss

Homeless Total

Homele

St

Unknown/D

id not

Report*

Tola

1

Adult

fartleipnn

b

... .iio" •

Qu-ns Of

shares ovm

home,
condoffliniu

m. Of

Bpaflmeni

Rcnu or

shares

Ottst

home or

apartme
ni

Lives

in

public
bousin

1

Lives

MSlh

parent

or

family
mcmbe

Some

other
tmngeme

nl

Homele

u ond

sharing
housing

Homelas

and living
ift an

emcrgrnc

yof

trintiiion

■1 shelter

Some
other
airangcmc
ni

Pregnatti

Female

MsU

All Advlu
(Aulo
r.akulaic) nitstoc data, orn if

possible, plans lo fcd*e ih« omountofniiisiftt dsssin future reporting.

I Worcs:

Ttbk 12: Primary Lanttf«|e Spoken at Home

Inde.e Chlldrtn Number Percent

Soanish

Other

UnknovrnA>id Not Report*
All indes Children (Aoto Colcuhle> 100

' vvAtn inc pciccni qi uw i> ♦•v*

possible, plans to red«e Ibe amouni of missing dau in fviurt reporting.
; reason for tbe missing data, and if
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TftbU Us Ho«»<ho»d RtUiion to F«d<fa1 Poverty Cg»d«1inrt

Houteholdt Nutobcr of Houteholdt Percent

SOH and under

5i.j<»y.

IOI-lU%

1-14.7009;

7OMO0K

aJOOS

UnkrtcwrVOid rtot Rcoon*

AH Houteholdt fAolo Cnltulaie) 100

When Ihe petcent of dw lh»t 'it ■UnVnowfVOid not Report" i»> lOH. a lable note jhoold be peovtded that oddteuei the eeajon for il« mitunj data, and if
pouibic, plant to leducc the amount of misitnc dau in future lepenins.

I Nottt:

Table M: For £aeh Kovtchold Indiratc the Priority Population Choraeteritilet

Houteholdt

I. Lovrincomeheuieboid
i. Household conloint an enroUce who it pretnant and under age 21
J. Houtehold hM a history of child abuse or neglect or hit had imeractiont ultli child Kclfarc scrvket
<■ Houtehoid hat B hirtoryoftvbttjrtee abttieorncedt wbttance obux ircatment
S. Someone in the houtchoM utct tobaeco produett In the home
6. SomeotK In the houtehold hat attained low tiudcm achievement or hu a chad wliMot* tiudeni

oehievemem
1. Houtehold hat a child wihdcvtlopttKntal delayt or ditabililiet
t. Houtehold iftcludct Indivtduab vrho are tervintor formerly terved in the US armed fotcet

Vet No
Unkno»n/Oitl not
Report'

Total

• When the peieem of data thai it -Unkr»otvttrt>id not Report" b> 10%. a table nole should be ptovided lhat addtewet the mton foe ihe miwins data, and if
potiible, plant to reduce the amount of missln| data in futiwr repOrtinj.

'  — —
D
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Homr Vitltl

Totnl Number of Home Visits completed

Number I

Neics:

TibU 16: Fomily Entatement by Hooichotd

Number of Households Ftreeni

All Csieeorlfi Mute Cakulalel

possible, plans 10 reduce the smoum ormUtingdats in folore reponinj.

Notes:

Table 17: Undupliealed Courri ofHausehelds by EvWenee-Bssed Home VisU!ft| Model or Promiiint Appreacb

Home Visitiftt Model (Select One per Row-Add Rows for AddlKonal Nuttsber Newly
Enrolled

Number Cnnllnoinit Oarine Keportlrsg
Period

Total

Notes:
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SECTION C: INSURANCE AND CLINICAL INDICATORS

Table U: Panlflpanls byT)T>c «f Heallh Inwrance Co<'«'*SC

miB K*: SM»44 II

eip!nilii>n0ik:07/)imil

Attschment 3 - Form 1

Pirtklpanu No Iniurancf

Cevcrace '

Mcdieaid or

CHIP

Tri-

Core

Privateer

Other

Unhno«*ftAlid twi

Reoort*

Totol

All Index Children (AuiQ
Calculate)

pMiiblc. id feduet ihe amovmi of mtfjinc i" f«"«« feponinfi.

Netei:

Table IP: Indes CKiMren by lljwal Sourt# of Medical Care

Index Children Oocfor's/Nune

Pratliliooer'i

Hospital
emergency
Room

Hoipilal
Oiilpitleni

Federally
Qiiilifled
Health Center

Retail Store

or Minute

Clittic

Other None Unknown/Did .

net Kepon*

Total

Female litde.x

Mile Inde.e

All Index

Children (Auto

Calruhtel

. pouibie.pltAi 10 reduce the amowni of missing data in fuiuie icportlflg.

Nolej;

July 24.2011



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

OeotSiBft EAvelopt la AC2ft)ie042Ffr40«>-S02e-M40E«F9SC tc

OMHNa: *10*4911
Kiplnlit* 0>l«; tT/JI/IMI

Attachment 3 - Form 1

Tiblc 20: Index Children ̂  12 monihs ot*se) by Usual Souree of Denial Care

IndcxCbiidren Have a Usual Source of Denial
Care

Do net have a Uiuii Source of OcnlAl

Care

UnkBOvrnfDid not
Reoort'

Total

Female Index Children

Male index Children

All Index Children (Auto

CelruUiel 1

pouibte, plans lo reduce the imouni of missin] dm in future reponing.

I Notts;
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TaWe"
Number

All

TabUl

FItId k'c)'T«rmt'Reqairinf Definilieh)

M1ECHV Mouj<h»ld: For lh< purp««orr<pofiing lo HR.SA on Form 1. •"MIECHV houtehold'* is deFmed u •
family Mr\-<d during the rtpening period by a iraincd home vitiior impUmcniing lervices wiih Gdcliiy lo the model
and thai is lder«ified as s MlECHV household ai earollineni. HRSA hai idrnllficd l\«) difTerent methods that ean be
used to identify MIECHV households that arc described below:

I. Home Visitor Personnel Cost Method (preferred method); HoiuekoMs are designated as MIECHV at
cnrolimeni based on the designitionorthe hon>e visitor they are assigned. Using this methodology, recipicnu
designate all hottseholds aa MIECHV that i«e served by home visitors for wtwm at least J5 pcrccni of hli/lser
personnel costs (salary/wages inclttding benefits) are paid for with MIECHV funding.

3. Emolhnent Slot Method (temporary option): Households are designated as MIEOtV households based on the
slot they art assigned to at enrollment. Usmg this melhodoloo. ffttpiemi identify certain slots as MIECHV-
fundcd and assign houseltolds lo these slots al'enroHmenl in accordance with the terms of the Mniracitial
sgrcenieni between the MIECHV stale recipient orvd the UA regardless ofthe percentage of the slot funded by
MIECHV.

Ortct designated as a MIECHV household, the household is Iraekad for the purposes ordaucoDcetiort through the
tenure ofhousehold panicipaiiors inihe program.

Ucsdaplicated Count of New
and Continuing Progr.sm
Partieipartts Sened by
MIECHV

Ntty Pariieipani: A participarw, incltidutg a pregnant unman, ferrule caregivcr, or male ca^egiyer. who signs up to
partieipaU in the home visiting progrom at any time during the reponing period who was identified as being part of
a MIECHV household at tnrollmenl (see definition of a MIECHV Hotixhold included at the beginning of the
Oefinliion of Key Terms).

Continuing Panielpnnt: A panicipam. including a prcgrtani «-omao. female oregiver, or male caregiver, svlio was
signed up and actively enrolled ir> the hoiiK visiting prograni prior to the beginning ofthe reponing period \*bo was
identified as being part ofe MIECHV household at cnrollnieni (see definition of a MIECHV Flovsehold inclirdedai
the beginning ofthe Definition of Key Tentis).

Pregnant women are participsnts who were either pregnant at enrollment or pregnant at the annual update of
information in a subsequent reponing period.

Female carcgivcri are those fentjle household rTsembcrs who are enrolled irs the program during (he reporting
period, are coruidercd a caregiver ofthe index child, and were not pregnant at the lime of enrollment or the annual
update of this Irsformation (e.g.. biological mothers, adoptive nsothers. fersier mothers, grandmothers).
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Male earcjKet 1 include those male household members (e.j. c.epeeunt rathers. biolotieal faiheis. step-fathers, and
paniKrs) who also meet the definiiionof an enrollec.

Index Child (Birih- Klndcriaiien Entry): the child (or children) in an individual hoiisehotd svho is under the
care of the emollec(s) and «vho is enrolled in ihe protram and was idcntiricd as betas pan ofn MIECHV household
at enrollment (sec definition of a MIECHV Houselioid included at the bcjinnlns of the Definition of Key Tetms).
More than one inde.e child per household can be identified.

1 UndtiplioiK) Count of
Housrhold Served by
MICCilV

Xew Household: A household, ineludlnj a pre|njni woman, female earegivet. and/or male ear«siver who signs up
to patlicipate in the home visiting program it any lime during the reporting period. The hguselmld may Include

.multiple caregtvers depending un model-speeiricdermilions.

Continuing Household: A household, irKluding a pregnant woman, female cireuivec. and/or male caicgivcr who
were signed up and actively enrolled In the home visiting progratti prior to the beginning of the reporting period..
The household mav include muUiole carcKivcrs deoendine on model-specific drfiaiiions.

y Undupliciltd Count of
rankip.4Bt>in«l-
Keujtholdt Served by Stnte
Home Vifilint Protnms
tnofl-MIECKV)

Pariklpaot Served by a Stale Home Vistting Program (non-MILCHV);-A participaAi. including a ptcgnani
woman, female caregivcr. ormate caregivcr, wbo signs up to participate in IhchonK visiting program at any time
during Ihe reporting period who was idcniified as being pan of a rton-MlGCHV household at enrollment (kc
dcrmiiionofaMieCHV Household included at the beginning of the Dcrmlilon of Key Tentij),

4 Adult fflnicipanu by A(e Adult Parlicipanu; includes the perioh Or persons in the ttouschold who signed up to panicipaie in the home
visitieg program (e.g., a teenage parent would be'couii'ied as an adult pankipaai but not an index child). The
category can include more than one member of the household ifmore than one indivlditil are enrolled inihe
program (e.g., a fviher and a iT.ot!ict hove both signed up lo participate).,!! should include at a minimum for every
household the erintarv coreeivet of the imk.x child>

s Indt.t Children by Age Inde.t Child (Birth - Klrtilergartcn Entry); the child (or chUdreii) in en individual household who Is under the
care of the enrollc<(s>and who Is enrolled in Ihe program and who was Idcniified as being part ofa MiECHV
household 01 enrollmeni (see definition ofa MIECHV Household included St the beginning of Ihe Deriniiion ofKcy
Terms). More than one inde-M child orr household can be ideniilied.

6 PnrlieipanU by Ethnkily The lespoftsts regarding ethnicity should reflect wh.ti the person eom'iden hcrselChimselfto bcand are not based
on pereertragei efancesiry. If ethnicity is unknown or not reported for some panlcipanis. enter that count in the
rcsDcctlvc "UnfeoowrVOid not report" column.

7 r*nlcip>nu by Race The responses regarding race should r«neci wh:ii ilie person evnsidert hvrsclinumselfio bennd Are itoi based on
pcfeentages of ancestry. Carticiponts who select more than or.e race should be reported in (he "More than one race"
category. If ethnicity and race are unknotvii or not reported for some participants, emrr iliat count in the respective
"Unlcrwwn/Dld not Retton" coloirtns.

a Adult Pinicipants by
MariiilStolut

Adtfii Parllclpnntr: includes the person or persons In the household who signed up to participate in the home
visiting program (e.g.. a teenage parent would be couiiied as an adult participani but not in index child). The .
category can include more than one member of the houtehold If more than one individual are enrolled in the
program (e.g.. a father and a mother have both sigrted up to psrtlclpatc). It should include at a minimum for every
household the orrmarvcaregiver oflhe index child.
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Iffnofc thaBW individoal iicttrelUd in tlx pfoiram, enxt the lUitu for til woll«€».Fof e*ampl«. ifoprcpunt
xwman h tnroiled with h«r tpouse io ihf erotrom. both purtklomu wuld be counted under the mtmed ctienory.

9 Adult Parti<rpanU b/
F.dutatloiii)! Afliinretnl

AduU PartieiptnU: Ineludei the person or pcfjons in the houwhotd who sitned up to panicipile In the home
visilini pro{Run (e.g., • icenage pa«fli wouU be counted as an »dwli participant but not an ii>de)t child). The
category can Iflclvde ntore than one member of the houiclioid if more than oik individual are enrolled in the
program (e.g., • father and ■ mother have both tigrxd up to participate). It should iiKlude at a minimum for every
household the primary earegiver of the index child.

Less than high school diploma includes individuals who have not completed their high school education.

The Some coHege/intining category includes those who are currenily enrolled and those v*ho alletsded in the past

The Technical training or certincetlon csie^iy includes those who received technical training or certification in
the past.

The Atsoelote's Degree category includes those who obtained an Aisociaic's Degree.

The Bachelor's Degree category includes those who obtained a Bachelor's Ocgrct.

The Other categorv includes those individuals who did not fail iiito the specified caietoties.

10 Adult Ptrtkipaub by
Emplojrmtni Sutuj.

tmployed: refers to whether the person i* currently worbrig for pay.

Employed Full Time; an employee who^'mdts an average of at least 30 hours pet week

Employed Fart Time; an employee ivho works an average of less than 30 hours per week'

Not Employed; indicates thai the person is not working for pay (this category may include, for example, stwdenu.
homemakcrs imd ihou enrolleej aetivelv seekine svork but currCTtlv not eniployed)

11 Adult PankipantJ by
Houiiitg Status.

Not homeless; Individuals who have a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime le.iidencefwtthinlhe meaning of
section 103(a)(1) of the McKianey-Venio Homeless AssitiarKc Act}: and

Net homeless and IIvm In public bousing; irsdividuals who live in a public housing ursit that Is
adminisiertd by i public housing agency (excludes iisdlsiduals who utllitc housing voucher programs)

Homeless: individuals who tack a fixed, regular, and adequate nighnime resideiKC (within the meaning of section
103(a)(1) of the McKinney-Vcmo Homeless Assisunce Act); ami

'Hnhhcair lio' rjMiMv tmUWMf
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Koititlns so4ihariii| hooslns: indisiduais tvho arc sharing the housint ofother persons due to loij of
hOusm{. economic Iwdship. or a simitar reason

Hemelpts and llnnj in on emerffney or irnnsitldnal shelter: indivMniU who are living in emergctKy
ortrontilional shcUcri; are abandoned inhoipiialsiorirc awaiting foner care plaeemeitt

Homeien and some other ttrrootemeol: individuals who are living ia motels, hotels, Irailer porks, or
eamping gtoundi due lo the lack ofalternative adet^uaie xcofivntodotions: indtvidoals w^vo have a primapr
nighnlmc residertce thai il a pubtie Of private pixe ool designed fx w ordinarily used as a regular sleeping
aecommodalion human beings («vlthln the meaning of section l03(a)(2)(C)>; individuals who are living
in cars, p*ks, public $p«es, abandoned buildings, substandard housing, bus or train statlorsj. or jlmitir
settints'

12 Prim»r> Lsiteuai* SpekcA
•( Komt

Primary larjguage: the language used in the home the majority of the lime.

lnde.s Child (Binh - Kindtrgantn Entry): the child (or children) in on individuil household who is under
care of the entollct(i) and who Is enrolled in the program and was served by a (rained home visiiw implenxniing
services with fidelity to the model who was identified w being pan of a MIECHV household ai enrollmem (see
definlilon of a MIECMV HoiochoW ixluded at the beginning of (he Definition ofKcy Terms). More than one
inde.t child oer household can be ideuiified. ;

Houtfhold Incomi in
Relation to Ftdtral Pevtn;

Culdelinci

The appropriate category for a given family tvill depend both on household inconK and on llw uf Iwunltold
members eoimied In ibe household (both home visiting enrollees and non-enrollccs). Houxhold income refers to
the annual gross income for the household as defined in progrommatic guidawe. recorded at cntollmeni and
annually Ihereafler.

Federal Poserly Cuidelines: Annual Income dMaem be esiimaicd from moniklydata (monthly income x IJ). The
HHS Poverty Guidelines ire updated annually In February jfsd published in the Federal Register. See
hnniy/.noe.blis.iiov/oovcnv-ci'idelinei.

14 For Each Hausrhold

InOicalf th« Priority
Population Characteristics

Usv-lotonic: An iisdi\ndual or family with an income determined to be below me hederai rovtny v»oioc»mes. me
HHS Poverty Guidelines ate updated annually in February and published in the Federal Register. See
httpj://a5pe.hhs.gov/pov«rty-fiuidtlin<l.

Prtgnani womcis under 21; Hoiixholds «viih expeciaiit nwhers *vho enroll in the program and are under 21 years
old during the reporting period.

Hnve a hislory of ehlld nbuie or neglect or have had ioteraeilpns with ehlM welfare serrlcei: Based on self-
report. a hoiiichoia with members who have a history ofibose or xglcci and have had involvement with child
welfare services either as a child or as sn adult. .

• Admminini h. Chiiiiw Ctiwr. Mi4, f*ii wWi tffTm?Kmi<^iKTVl>m'hn.Tiilitnmlf
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Family EDtatcn^nt by
Houtcboie

>7

Hive fl hijioo'fltf ibuic cr ne<4 lubilmcc abgieireatment; 8aKd ooseir-tcpon, ahoujehoW wiih
mcmbcn who have ihitioryofjubstincc abvKOC who have been identified ai needing jubliwe »bt»e urvlcci
tlKOU{h a lubsttnce iVihc screcnins administered irpon cnrollmcni. <

Are oseri of tobacco producti In the home: Based on jcif-repon. a household with members who use tobacco
pioducu in the home or s»ho have been identified as using lobaeeo through o tubsiwiec abuse screening
administered during intake. Tobacco use is defined as combustibtes (ciBBieiies.cisah.pipes, hookahs. bMb), non-
eofflbusiibles (chew. dip. uiufT. snus. and dissolvables), and electronic nicoiinedelivery systems (CNDSX

Have, or have children with, low student ichievement: Based on self-repon. a household with members wl>o
have perceived themselves or IheW ehitd(ren) as having low student achievement.

Have a child or rhildrcn with developmental dels) s or disabilitlei; Based On self-iepon or home visitoiAufT
observation, a household with members who have a child or children suspected of having a dcvtlopnienlal delay or
disibilit)'. • .

Are in families that arc or have served In the armed forces: Based on seir-ieport. household) that include
individuals who are serving or formerly served in the Armed Forces, Including such households that have members
of the Amted Forces who hove had multiple deployments outside of the United States. For this criierioo. definiiion
IrKludcs a military member's dependent acquired through marriage, adoption, or other action during the course of a
ittember'i currcm tout of >ss»an<d duty.

Home visit refers to the definition of a completed home visit enacted by the various evidence-based home visiting
models approved for implcmentaliort throogh the MIECHV program or a Promising Approach. Please refer to
model-soetific guidance for speelfie definiiions.

Undupllratcd Count of
Households by Evidence*
Bated Herue Visiling Aledcl
or Premising Approach

Currently receiving services refers to famifiet that arc pnrtkipaiing in urvieesatlheendofikc reporting period.

Centplcled program refers to families who have completed the program tecordihg to rnodel-ipeeific definitions
and erilerta during the reporting period.

Stopped services before compkilon rcfcn to families who Icfi the piogcam for any reason prw to completion.

Enrolled but not eurrenlly rertlving services/Other refers to those families who do not fall into the previou)
colegorlet ar»d may include unreachable panietpsnts (i.e. the family is not rtgulaily participating but did not
actively Kvcr ties, cic.l

A Household, including a pregnani woman, female carcgiver. and/or male caregiver who were sig^ up and
actively emotied In l he home visiting progrtni prior to the beginning of or during the reporting period and continuas
eniptlmeni during the reporting period. The Itouiehoid may Include multiple caregivers ilepending on model-
specific definiiions.
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l« • Psrticipanls by Typ< «f
H«illh lojgranc* Covcrace

InJei Child (Birth - Kinder{3ileft Enlry): Iht child (or childrtn) in an iodimdoal houtchold who is under the
core of the eo»llee(s) and who it eniollod in the ptotram and who was identifird at beinj pan of a MIECHV
houtchold at cnrallmcnl <kc dcfinitioaof a MIECHV Household included at the betiiuiing of the Dcftniaon of Key
Ttrmt). More than one index ehild per household can be idetUiried.

The tniurtnee coutrntt cntcgorics are mutually exclusive. No insurance coverajc indieaics that ihe individual it
ewrenllv not covered by any source of intwance. This table is intended to cnpture insurance tiatui. not health care
sceeis; receipt ofcue provided for instance by the Indian Htalth Serviec or another safety net health care provider
such as It Fedeediv Oualified Health Center does not consiitme iftsurance eoveraRC.

19 Indaa Cbild'rtn by Uiusl
S«ufC( of Mtdlnl Care

Inde* Child (Birth - Kindergarten Entry); Ihe child (or children) in an individual houtehoM who is under the
eare of the enroHeefs) and who is enrolled in the program and who was idemified as being pin of a MIECHV
howehold at enrollment (see definition of a MIECHV Household included at the betianint of the Definition of Key
Terms). More than one index ehild per household can be tdenlincd.

Usuni source of ca re: the paftieular medical profcisionil. doaer's office, clink, health center, or other place where
s person tvould iijuallv go if tkk or in need of advice about his or her health.

20 Indo Cbildr(ft{> 12
months of at*} Ususl
Sourofof Dsntal Care

Index Child (Birth - KIndergaiien F.ntr^ ): Ihc ehild (or children) in an IndlvMui) household who it under the
caieoflhc cnro!lee(t) and who is enrolled in the program and who svos identified as being part of a MIECHV
household at eniolinsent (sec definition of.i MIECHV Household included at tte begianingofthe Definition of Key
Termt). More than one Indc.x child per household can be identirird.

Usual source of dental care: a usual source ofdentil care, or dental home. Is a place where o child cm lecek-c
consilient, cornprthcnslve. compussionoic dental care. The eoeicepi of the Detil.sl Home reflects the AAPDl clinical
guidelines and best principles for the proper delivery ofon! health eate to alt children, with a concentration on

1  infani/aue one paiienit and should be etiablithed no bier than 12 months of lue.'

' Ancri<anAc»knyerPf«l>«iKO(M>fV>.Ocnl4>KeineRrto«n(C<nH>.tig£;£^

iuly24.20lf



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB518797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

OoCoS>9n Envelope 10; AC2835E0.92F6-402C>.BD2e-3440E4F95ClC

Attachment 4 - Form 2

OMONo: 09M-MI1

Kxplrallea 07/}l^02t

THE MATERNAL, INFANT, AND EARLY CHILDHOOD
HOME VISITING PROGRAM

PERFORMANCE AND SYSTEMS OUTCOME
MEASURES

Public Burden Stetemcnt: An agency may nol conducl or sponsor, and a person is nol required lo respond lo, a
collection of information unless it displays a currently valid 0MB control number. The 0MB control number for
this project is 0906-0017. Public reporlins burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 200
hours per response, including the lime for reviewing instructions, searching e.Nisting data sources, and completing
and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regnrding this burden estimate or any other aspect of
this collection of information, including suggestions for redticing this burden, to HRSA Reports Clearance Officer,
5600 Fishers Lane, Roont 10-29, Rockville. Marylattd, 20857.

July 19,2018



OocuSign Envelope ID; FB51B797-44E6-4309-B61^EC48448AC879

OocuStgn Envelope ID: AC2635E0-92F6-402O-BO2E-344DE4F9SC1C

Attachment 4 - Form 2

OMR No: 0906-00)7

E.«pirati«n Oait: 07/3l'202l

MEASURE 1

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT; PRETERM BIRTH

1.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

y

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent onnfanU (among mothers %vho enrolled in home visiting prcnainlly before 37 weeks) who nreborn prefer
following program enrollment

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of live births (lndc.\ child or subsequent children nmong mothers who enrolled In home
visiting prenaially before 37 weeks) born before 37 completed weeks of gestntion nnd nficr enrollment

DENOMINATOR: Number of live births nficr enrollment who were born to mothers enrolled in home
visiting prenatnlly before 37 weeks

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Niimcroior;

Vftluc:

Dcnontinnior:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.fl> Derinition

6.b. Value > Enter the number of cases missing from
n)ea.sure calculation:

Dnta arc tonsidcrcd missing if one or more daln
elements needed to determine inclusion in the
numerator or denominnior are unknotvit. All enses
of rhissing data should be excluded from the
measure cnleulniion.

7-

piOTES

missing dala, and irpcssible, plans to reduce (lie ainouni or missing dala in Tuture reporting.

July 19,2018



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

oocustgft envelope lO; AC2M5eO-92FM020-eD26.3440e4F95CtC
Attachment 4 - Form 2

OMHNo:090(-00l7

Uilc; 07/31/2021

measure:

J.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT; BREASTFEEDING

1.

TVFE OF MEASURE

Systems Ouiconie

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of infants (nmong mothers who enrolled in home visiting prcnni«1Iy) who were brcftslfctl nny nmount
nt 6 ntonths ofngc

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR; Number of infants npcd 6-12 months (index child among mothers who enrolled in home
visiting prcnntally) who were breastfed any nmouni at 6 months of age

DENOMINATOR: Number of Infants aged 6-12 months (Index child among mothers who enrolled in home visitlnj
prcnalally) enrolled in liomc visiting for nl least 6 months

5. '. '

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:
Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA» 6.b. Vnluc - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure cnlciiUiiont

6.fl. Definition

Data nrc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to delcrmine inclusion In the
numerator or denominator arc unknown. All cases of
missing dnin should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

missing daia. find if possible, plans lo reduce thcanwiini of missing dam in fnliirc rcporling.

July 19.2018



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB51B797-44E6^309-B613-EC48448AC879

DocuSIgn Envelope 10; AC2835E<W2F6-402t^BO2E'344O64ffl5ClC

Attachment 4 - Form 2

MEASURES

0M»N6: 0906-0017

Kioirilioii t)au: 07/31/2021

benchmark AREA: MATERNAL AND NfAVBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT: DEPRESSION SCREENING

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Perccni ofprlmary cnrcglvcrs enrolled in home visiting who nrc screened for depression using a vnlidMcd
(ool wilhin 3 months of enrollment (for rhosc »»ot enrolled prennlally) or within 3 months of delivery (for
those enrolled prcnntftlly)

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: For Ihosc not enrolled prcnaully, number of primary caregivers enrolled in home visiling
who are screened for depression within the first 3 montlis since enrollment; for those enrolled prcnatally, the number of
primary caregivers.screcncd for depression wilhin 3 months of delivery

DENOMINATOR: For those not enrolled prenatnlly. the number of primary cBrcgivcrs enrolled in home visiting for M
leasi 3 months; for those enrolled prenatnlly, the number of primary caregivcrs enrolled in
home visiting for ol least three monllis post delivery

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numcralor: "'

Value:
Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA^

€.a. Definition

6.h. Valtic - Enter the number of casc.s missing from measure
calculalion: ' '

Data ore considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine Inclusion In the
numerator or denominator arc unknown. When .
there is no documentation of whether a screening
occurred using a validuled tool, but all other data
elements are known, then the primary carcgiver
should he Included In the denominator (if eligible),
but not In the numcralor. All cases of missing d.aln
should be excluded from the nicasiirc cnlculation.

July 19,2018



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309.B613-EC48448AC879

DocvSifin Envelope ID; AC2835e9-92F6-402OS02e-J44DE4Ffl5ClC
Attachment 4 - Form 2

7.

NOTES

OMii No: 09M4)0l}
Kipiroilon Dolt: 07/31/2021

8. MensuremenI Tool Udlizcd

Indicate the validnted measurement lool(s) utilized to address this meosiire

» Note: When the percent of missing data is >10%. a table note should be provided that oddrcsses the reason for the
mtssinfi data, and if possible, plans to reduce the antoiml of missing data in future reponmg.

July 19,2018



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

OoCwSlfift Envelope 10: AC2J35E0-92F^4020.BD26-344DE4F95C1C

Attachment 4 - Form 2

OMDNo: 090^0017

Ks|Hrt(ien Dk(r: 07/3t/}02l

MEASURED

BENCHMARK AREA; MATEHNAt AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT; WELL aULD VISIT

2.

TVPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

perforiviance measure

Percent of children enrolled in home visiting who rcccivcil the iiist rcconjni^ndcd visit based on the
American Academy of Pediiilrics (AAP) schedule

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of children (index chiltl) enrolled In home vislling who received the last
recommended wcll child visit based on the AAP sclicdulc

DENOMINATOR; Number of children (indc.x child) enrolled In home visiting

5.

value for reporting period (percentage) Numerator:

Value:
Denominator;

6.

missing data* O.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

6.a. DcrMiitInn

Data nrc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the
numerator or denominator arc unknown, including
if a home visit occurred but the home visitor did not
collect the data. All ciiscs of missing data shotihl be
excluded from the mcnsure caiculAtion.

7.

NOTES

missing daia. and if possible,.plans lo rcdncc the ftmouni of missing data in fuUirc rcponing.

Jiilyt9.20IS



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

OocuSign Envelope 10; AC2835EO.92FB-4O2O.0D2E'344DE4F95C1C

Attachment 4 - Form 2

OMR No: 09064M17

txplmlen Dxit: 07/31/3021

MEASURES

.1.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT: POSTPARTUM CARE

2.
TV'PE OF MEASURE

Pcrfornmncc Indicator

3.
PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Pcrceni of mothers enrolled In home visiting prenntfllly or tvlihin 30 dnys after deliver)* who received n poslpartnm
visit with a healthcare provider within 8 weeks (56 days) of delivery

4.
SPECIFICATION •

NUMERATOR: Number of mothers enrolled in home visiting prcnatnlly or within 30 days after delivery
who received n |)o$tpartum visit with « heallhcurc provider within 8 weeks (56 days) of delivco'

DENOMINATOR: Number of mothers who enrolled In home visiting prcnatally or within 30 dnys after
delivery nnd remained enrolled for at least 8 weeks (56 days) nfler delivery

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

.Value:
Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA"
6.b, Value - Enter the number of cases missing from .

measure enlculntion:

6.fl. Definition

Dntn nre considered missing if one or more dnta
elements needed to determine Inclusion In the
numerator or denominator nrc unknown. All cases of

missing data should be excluded from the mensurc
calculation.

1

7.

NOTES

missing dalfl, and if possible, plons to reduce ihc nmount of missing data in future reporting.

July 19,20IS



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

Oocosign Envelope 10; AC2e35EI>-S3P&-402O-BD2E-344DE4F9SClC

Attachment 4 - Form 2

OMBNo: Om-OOl?

Kipirelien DXt; 07/31/2021

MEASURE 6

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: MATERNAL AND NEWBORN HEALTH

CONSTRUCT: TOBACCO CESSATION REFERRALS

2.

, TYPE OF MEASURE

Pcrrormiince Indicetor

3.

performance measure

Percent of priniArycarcgivcrs enrolled inhonte visiting who reported using tobacco or dgarcllcsal
enrollment nnd were referred to tobacco cessniion eounsellug or services vrlthln 3 months of cnrollnicnl.

4.

SPECIFICATION ,

NUMERATOR: Number of primary carcglvers enrolled In home visiting who rc|>orieil using tobacco or cigarettes
enrollment and were referred to tobacco cessation counseling or serv ices within 3 months of cnrallmcnl

DENOMINATOR: Number of primary caieglvcrs enrolled in home visiting who reported using tobacco or
cigarettes nt enrollment and were enrolled for at least 3 months

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:

Ocnomioator;

6.

MISSING DATA*

C.a. Definition

G.b. Value - Etiier the number of cases missing from
mc.nsurccniculntion:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion It: the

numerator or dcnominatornre unknown, including
if there is no documentnlion of whether the primary
cnrcgiver used tobacco or cigarettes at enrollment
since inclusion in the dcoominalor cannot he

determined if the screening result is unknown. When
there Is no documentation of whether a referral was

provided.-but all other datt: elements are known and
inclusion in the denominator cnn be determined,

then the primnry caregiver should be included in the
denominator (if elicible), but not In the numerator.

July 19.2018



OocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

DocuSign Envelope ID: AC2835E0.92F6-4020.BO26-M4D64F95C1C

Attachment 4 - Form 2

nMRNo: O906-OOI7

Eiplritlon Date 07/JI/202I

All cases of missing data should be excluded from Ihe
measure calculalton.

7.

NOTES

• Noic: When die percent of mfssing doia is >10%, a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
nussing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of niissing data in fmure reporting.'

July 19,2018



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

OocuSign Envelope ID: AC2835EP-92F6-402O-BO2£-344De4F9SClC

Attachment 4 • Form 2

OMIIiNo: 09&6-OOI7

K^plrallen Ditc 07/31/2021

measure:?

BENCHMARK AREA: CHILD INJURIES, ABUSE, NEGLECT, AND MALTREATMENT AND EMERGENCY
DEPARTMENT VISITS

CONSTRUCT: SAFE SLEEP

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Pcrfonnnncc Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE •

Percent of infants euroHcU in home visiting that arc itbvays placed to sleep on their backs, srithout
bed-sharing and without soft bedding

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of Infants (indcv child aged less than 1 year) enrolled in home visiting whose
primary carcgivcr reports thai they n re always placed to sleep on their backs, without bed-sharing and without soft
bedding

DENOMINATOR: Number of infants (index child) on rolled in home visiting who were aged less than I year during
the rc|>or(ing period

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numcralor;

Value:

Denominator;

6.

MISSING data*

6.a. Definition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of eases missing from
measure calculation:

Data nrc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion In the

numerator or denominator n re unknown. All cases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

* Note; Wlicn the percent of nttssini; data is >10%, a table note should be provided (hnUtddresses the reason for the
missing daia, end if possible; plans to reduce the otnoimioif missing dnln In future reporting.

July \9.20n



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613.EC48448AC879

OocuSign Envelope 10: AC3e35EO-92F6-4020-BO2E-344OE4F8$ClC

Attachment 4 • Form 2

OMn\e: 09M-OQI7

Rtpirilien Dilc 07/31/2021

MEASURES

J.

benchmark AREA: CHILD INJURIES. ABUSE. NEGLECT, AND MALTREATMENT AND EMERCENCV
DEPARTMENT VISITS

CONSTRUCT: CHILD INJURY

1.

TYPE OF MEASURE
-

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Rnte of InjuryreUlcd visits to the Emergency Department (ED) during the reporting period among children enrolled in
home visiting

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of parcntTrporled nonfalnl injury-related visits to the ED during the reporting period among
children (index child) enrolled in home visiting

DENOMINATOR: Number of children (index child) c irotled in home visiting

5.

Value for reporting period (rote) Numerator:

Vnluc:

Ocnoniiiiator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.n. Dcriniiion

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

Dntfl arc considered missing if oncormore data
elements needed to determine inclusion In the
numerntor or dcnominntor arc unknown. All cases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure
cnlculation.

9

7.

NOTES

missing dn(a, end ifpossible, plans to reduce the an>otint of missing data in future reporting.

July 10,20)8



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

OocuSign Envelope 10: AC2»35e0-92F6-402O.BO2E-344DE4F95C1 C

Attachment 4 - Form 2

O.MIiNo: 09M-00I7

KxptraliO" OaU: 07/31/2021

MEASURE 9

BENCHMARK AREA: CHILD INJURIES. ABUSE, NEGLECT, AND MALTREATMENT AND EMERGENCY
DEPARTMENT VISITS

CONSTRUCT: CHILD MALTREATMENT

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Oiitconte

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

PcrcenC of children enrolled In home visiting u ith nl IcnsI investigated case of maltreatment following enrollment
within the reporting |)crio(i

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of children (index child) ctiroMcd in h'ontc visitiiig with at leasi 1 investigated case
of maltreatment following cnrollmcni within the reporting period

DENOMINATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Ninncrator:

Vnluc:
Denominntor:

6.

MISSING DATA* 6.b. Vftluc- Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calcubtion:

6.a. Definition

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to, determine inclusion in the
iiiimcralor or dcnomlnntor arc unknown. All cases of
missing dnta should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

missing daia, and if possible, plons lo reduce ihc antoimi of missing daia in future reporting.

July 19.2018



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

DocuSigft Envelope tO; AC2M5E0-92F6-4020-BO2E-344DE4F9SC1C

Attachment 4 - Form 2

OMn No; 09«6-00n

Kxplratleii Date 07/91/3021

MEASURE 10

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: SCHOOL READINESS AND ACHIEVEMENT

CONSTRUCT: PARENT-CHILD INTERACTION

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE ■

Performance Indicnior

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primnry cnreglvcrs enrolled In home visliing who receive nn observation of cnrcgivcr-child interaction by
the home visitor using a validnled tool

4.

SPECIFICATION j

NUMERATOR: Number of primary caregivers enrolled in home visiting who receive an obscrvniion ofcarcglvcr-thil
interaction by the home visitor using a validated toot

DENOMINATOR; Number of primnry cnregivers enrolled in home visiling with children reaching the
target age rnngc

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Vnluc:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.n. Derinilion

6.b. Vnluc-Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calciilnlioti:

Data nrc considered missing if one or more datn
elements needed to determine inclusion in the
numerntor or dcnominntor nrc unknown. When
there is no documentation of whether the Indc.t child
received nn observnilon of carcglvcr-chlld
interaction by the home visitor using a vnlidoled tool,
but nil other data elements are known, then the indc*
child should be included in the dcndmlnalor (if
eligible), but not in the numerator. All cnses of
.missing data should be excluded from (he mcnsurc
cnlculatlon.'

Julyl9,20IS



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

OocuSlfln Envelope 10: AC2«356t>.92F6^020.BD76-3e4OB4F95C1C

Attachment 4 - Form 2

O.MnNe: 0906-0017

Esplraiion Ontr 07/31/2021

7.

NOTES

Mensiircmcnt Tool Utilized

Indiceie the vnlidaied measurement tool(s) uiilizcd to address this measure f

missinjj daia. ond cf possible, plans lo reduce the aiuouni of otissing dam in fuiurc reporting.

July 19. 2018



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

OocuSigfl Envelope 10: AC2835E0-92F6-4020.eO26-i44OE4f«ClC

Attachment 4 - Form 2

K;ipirellon Dak: 0?/)l/202l

MEASURE II

BENCHMARK AREA: SCHOOL READINESS AND ACHIEVEMENT

CONSTRUCT: EARLY LANGUAGE AND LITERACY ACTIVITIES

1.

TYPE OF MEASURE

P'crformnncc Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of children enrolled in home visiting with a family fncnibcr « ho reported that during n typicnl >veck
s/hc read, Cold stones, and/or sang songs with their ehiid daily, every day

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR; Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiiirig with a family member who
reported that during a typical week s/he read, told stories, and/or sang songs with their child dally, every day

DENOMINATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting

5. . . '

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (pcrceniage)

Vnluc:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.n. Dennition

Dnta are considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the
numerntor or denominator nrc unknown. All eases of
missing data should be excluded from the measure
enlculation.

Numerator:

Ocaoininaior

$.b. Vnluc - Enter the number of eases missing frotn
measure cnlcuinllon:

7.

NOTES

» Note: When llic percent of missing daia is >10%. c table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, ond if possible, plarts lo reduce the amouiii of missing data in future reporting.

July 19,2018



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

OocuSlfln Envelope «0; AC283560-92F6-4020-B02e.344OE4F95C1C

Attachment 4 - Form 2

OMONft. 09064017

E.tpifttion Due 07/11/2021

MEASURE 12

1.

benchmark AREA: SCHOOL READINESS AND ACHIEVEM ENT

CONSTRUCT: DEVELOPMENTALSCREENINC

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

PcrformNncc indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Pcrccnl of children enrolled In home vblting with n timely screen for devclopmcnia! delays using a vnlidnlcd parent-
completed tool

4. •
SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of children (index child) enrolled in home visiting with at least one screening
within the AAP-dcnncd ngc groups during the rc|)oriing period

DENOMINATOR: Number otchililrcn (index child) enrolled in home vi$i|in| reaching the specified lime
frnmc during (he rc|xjrling period

5.

value for reporting period (percentage) Nuincrnior:

Value:
Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

d.fl. Dcnniiion

O.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure cnlcniation:

Data are considered missing if one or ntore data
elements needed ic determine inclusion in the
numerator or denominator nre unknown. When
there Is no documcntntlon of whether a screening
occurred using a validated tool, but all other data
elements arc known, then the child sliotild be
Included in the denominator (if eligible), but not in
the numerator. All eases of missing data should be
excluded from (he measure calculalion.

•

7.

NOTES

July 19.2018



DocuSign Envelope ID; FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613.EC48448AC879

DocuSign Envelope ID: AC2835E0-92FM02O-BO2E-344OE4F9SC1C

Attachment 4 - Form 2Attachment 4 - Form 2

QAin .V«: 0906-O0I7

K:ipirali«n Daft; 07/JI/202I

8.

Mcnsuremcnt Tool Uiiliied

Indicate the validated mcasureittenl lool(s) utilized to address (his measure

* Note; When the percenlormissinsdata is >10%. a lable note should be provided (hat addresses the reason Tor the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

July 19,2018



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

OocuSign Envelope ID: AC2835e0-92F6-4020.B02e.i44DE4F9SClC
AUachment 4 - Form 2

O.MB No: 09064)017 '

F.ipiraiion Dole 07/JI/202I

MEASURE 13

BENCHMARK AREA: SCHOOL READINESS AND ACHIEVEMENT

CONSTRUCT; DEHAVIORALCONCERNS

2.

TVPE OF MEASURE

Pcrformencc Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of postnntnl home visits where primary carcgivcri were asked if they have any concerns regarding their
child's development, behavior, or learning

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of postnatal home visits where primary carcgivcrs enrolled in home visiting were nskcd if they
have any concerns regarding their child's dcvcloiitncnl, behavior, or learning

DENOMINATOR: Total number of postnatal home visits during the reporting period

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Value:
Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA G.b. V.iluc - Enter the number of eases missing from measure
calculation;

6.a. Dcrinitioii

Data are considered missing If one or more data
elcmcrtts needed to determine inclusion in the
numerator or denominator arc unknown. If a home
visit occurred, but there is no documentation of
whether the primary cnrcgiver was nskcd about
behavioral concerns, then the home visit sliould be
included in the dcnonnuafor (if eligible - I.e.,
postnatal visit), b"! not in the numerator. All cases of
missing data should be excluded from the measure
cfllculfltlon.

/

7.

NOTES

July 19.20)8
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• Note: When ihc percent of tnissing dnta is > 10%. a table note sliould be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and ifpossiblc, plaits to reduce the anioiinl of missing data in future reporting.
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BENCHMARK AREA: CRIME OR DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

CONSTRUCT: INTIMATE PARTNER VIOLENCE SCREENING

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Pcrforiroiicc ludicolor

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent ©rprimnry carcgivcrs enrolled In home vislling who «rescreened for intimate partner violence (IP\0
within 6 months of enrollment using a validfttedlool

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of primary cnrcglvcrs enrolled in home visiting who arc screened for IPV using n vnlidatcd tool
wilhitt 6 months of enrollment

DENOMINATOR: Number of primary enrolled in homc.visilmg fornt least 6ntonlhs

5. •

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD {percentage) Ntimcraior: ' '•

Vnlue:
Denominator:

C.

MISSING DATA* 6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
calculation:

6.a. Dcrmilion

Data arc considered missing if one or more dain
elements needed to riclerinine inclusion in the
numerator or denominator arc unknown. >Vhcn
there is no docninentnlion of whether a screening ■
occurred using a vnlidatcd tool (including if a
screening did not occur bccnusc the carcgivcr was
male and they only hnvc validated tools for use
among female carcgivers), but all other data
elements arc known, then iheprintnrycarcgiver
should be included in the denominator (if eligible),
but not in the numerator. AH c.iscs of missing data
should be CKcludcd from the measure c.alculntlon.

July 19,2018
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7.

NOTtS

8.

Mcnsurcnicnl Tool LKilizcd

Indicate the validated mcesurcrnent iool(s) uiiliwd to address this nKosure

'* Note: When the percent or missing data is > 10%. a inblc noie slioiild be provided timt addresses the reason for the
missing dots, and if possible, plans to reduce tl»c nmount of missing data In future reporting.

July 19.2018
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MDASURC 15

1.

BENCHMARK AREA: FAMILY ECONOMIC SELF-SUFFICIENCY

CONSTRUCT: PRIMARY CARECIVER eOUCATION

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

SystcmsOutcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Pcrccnlofprimarycarcgivers who enrolled in home visiting without n high school degree or cquivnlcnt whosubsequcntly
cnrollcd in or maintained conthtuous enrollment in middle school or high school, or completed high school or equivalent
during their participution in home visiting .

4.

specification

NUMERATOR; Number of primary cnrcgivcrs who enrolled in or maintained continuous enrollment in middle school or
high school, or completed a high school degree or equivalent nficr enrollment in home visiting {nnd met the conditions .
$)}ccincd in the denominator)

DENOMINATOR: Number of primary caregivcrs without a high school dcgrceorcqiiivalcnt at enrollment

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator;

Value:

Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. DcBnition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
cnlciihilion:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the
numerator or denomlnntor are unknown. All cases of

missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

'

7.

NOTES

data, and ifpossthle, plons lo reduce the amount of missing data in fuinre reporting.

JuiylQ, 2018
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MEASURE 16

benchmark AREA: FAMILY ECONOMIC SELF-SUFFICIENCY

CONSTRUCT: CONTINUITY OF INSURANCE COVERACE

TYPE OF MEASURE

Systems Outcome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Vcrfcnt of primnry cnrcgivcrs enrolled in home visiiing who hnU conlinuous hcnlth injumnce coverage for M least 6
consecutive monihs

A.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of primary.carcgivcrs enrolled in home visiting who reported hnving health
Insurance coverage for ftl IcasI 6 consecutive months since enrollment in home vlsillng

DENOMINATOR: Numbcrof primary enrolled in home visiting for at least 6 months

5. .

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage)

Vnlue:

Nuntcrator:

Dcnominalor:

6.

MISSING DATA'

6.n. Deflnition

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to iletcrmlnc inclusion in the
niimcrnlor or denominator arc unknown. All cases of
missing data should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

6.b. Vnluc - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
cnlculntion:

7.

NOTES

TvJoic: When the pcrccul of nussiog dola is > lO'/o. a table nolc should be provided that addresses the reason for ihc
missing data, and ifpossible. plans to reduce the oniount of luissing data in future reporting.

July 10,2018
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MEASURE 17

benchmark AREA: COORDINATION AND REFERRALS FOR OTHER COMMUNITY RESOURCES AND
SUPPORTS

CONSTRUCT: COMPLETED DEPRESSION REFERRALS

1.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Sysrenis Ouicome

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Pcrccni of primar)' cnrcglvcra referred lo services for n poiillvc screen for depression who receive one or
more service contAcis

4.

SPECIFICATION -

NUMERATOR: Number of primftry caregivcrs enrolled In home visilliig who received recommended
services for depression (nntl met the conditions specified In the denominator)

DENOMINATOR: Number of primar)- CMrcfiivcrs enrolled in home visiting who had a positive screen for dqtrcssioii
wllhin 3 months of enrollment (for those not enrolled prcnalally) or within 3 months of delivers' (for those enrolled
prenalally) and were referred for services

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) NunKrator: ^

Value:
Denominator;

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.n. Defiiiition

6.b. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from measure
cniculation;

Data are considered missing If one or ntorc data
elements needed, to determine Inclusion in the
numerator or denominator Arc unknown, including
if (here is no docuiucntnlion of whether a screening
occurred using a validated tool, since inclusion in the
denominator cannot be determined if the screcnhtg
result is unknown. Data arc also considered missing
if there is no documentation of whether n referral
was provided. All cases of missing data shotild be
excluded from the mcnsitrc cntculation.

•

July 19.2018
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7.

NOTES

8.

Mcnsuremcnl Tool Utilixcd

Indicale Ihe validated nieasurcmcni (oo)(0 utilized to address iliis measure

' Note: When the percent of missing data Is >10%. a table itole shotild be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, attd Ifpossible, plans to reduce Ihc amount of missing data in fiilurc rcporiing.

July 19,2018
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MCASUKE 18

BENCHMARK AREA: COORDINATION AND REFERRALS FOR OTHER COMMUNITY RESOURCES AND
SUPPORTS

CONSTRUCT: COMPLETED DEVELOPMENTAL REFERRALS

2.

TYPE OF MEASURE

Syticnis Outcome

3.
PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of children enrolled In home vislllne with positive screens for (kvclO))mcntfll Oehiys (measured using
n validntcd tool) who receive services in n timely innnncr

4.

SPECIFICATION
-

NUMERATOR: Number of children enrolled In home visiling who ») received Individualized developmental supporl
from n home visilor; b) were referred to enrly intervention services nod receive nn cvnimition within
45 days; OR c) were referred to other community services who received services wilhln 30 days (and met the conditior
specified in (hcdenomlnntor)

DENOMINATOR: Number of children enrolled In home visiting with positive screens fordcvclopmcntal
delays (measured using a vnlidatcd tool)

5.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (percentage) Numerator:

Vnliic:
Dcnominaior:

6.

MISSING DATA'

6.n. Dcfinilion

(i.h. Value - Enter the number of cases missing from
measure calculation:

Onto nrc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine inclusion in the
numerator or denominator nrc unknown, Including

if there Is no documentation of whether n screening
occurred using n validated tool, since inclusion In the
dcnominftlor cannot be determined if the screening
result is unknown. When there Ss no documentation
of whether a referral was provided, but all other
data elements arc available nnd inclusion in the
denominator can be determined, then the primary
carceivcr should be Included in the denominator (if

;uly 19.201$
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eligible), bui not In the numernlor. All cases of
missing dele should be excluded from the measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

8.

Measurement Tool Utilized

indicate the validated meastiremeiil tool(s) utilized to address this measure

» Note: When ihe percent of missijig data is > 10%. a table note should be provided that addresses the reason for the
missing data, and if possible, plans to reduce the amouni of niissing data in future reponing.

July 19.2018
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measure 19

BENCHMARK AREA: COORDINATION AND REFERRALS FOR OTHER COMMUNITV RESOURCES AND
SUPPORTS

CONSTRUCf; INTIMATE PARTNER VIOLENCE REFERRALS

2.

TVPE OF MEASURE

Performance Indicator

3.

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Percent of primary carcgivcrs enrolled in home visiting wiili positive screens for IPV (measured using « vnlidatcd tool) who
receive referral informfltion to IPV resources

4.

SPECIFICATION

NUMERATOR: Number of prlmarj-CHrcglvers enrolled In home visiting who received referral information
CO IPV resources (nnd met Ihc conditions spccincti in the denominator)

DENOMINATORt Number of primary carcgivcrs enrolled in liuinc visiting with positive screens for IPV (measured using n
vnlldntcd tool) w'llhin 6'month9 of enrollment

S.

VALUE FOR REPORTING PERIOD (pcKcntagc) Niimfmlor:

Value:
Denominator:

6.

MISSING DATA*

6.a. Dcflnilion

6.b. Value - Knicr the number of cases missing from measure
enlculntion:

Data arc considered missing if one or more data
elements needed to determine Inclusion in the
niuiicrator or denominator are unknown, including
if there is no documentation of whether a screening
occurred using a vaiidnted tool, since Inclusion in (he
denominator cannot be determined if the screening
result is unknown. When there Is no documentation
of whether n refcrrnl was provided, but all Other
dnin elements nre nvallaWc nnd Inclusion In the
denominator can be dctcrntincd, then the prinm ry
cnrcgivcr should be Included in the denominator (if
cli£iblc), but hot in the numerator. All cnscs of

Jwly 19, 2m
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missine data should be excluded from Ihc measure
calculation.

7.

NOTES

8.
Measurement Tool Uliii7.cd

Indicate the validated measuremcnl lool(s) utilized jo a5!dres$..dii5 measitfe

• Note: When the percent of missing dnin is >10%, o table note should be provided thni oddrcsscs the reason for the missing
dalft. and if possible, plans (o reduce the amount of missing data in future reporting.

July 10,2018
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Conttruci *■ ■ ■ KeyT.erMi Dcfmitiont

1. PreKrtn Binh Prcicrm BInh: a binh b«f«r« 37 coinpltied weckj of t<tui»on(defifted at up to 36 vxeU and
6 davil.'

I. BrcaitfMdlnf BrcastfMdine: in addition to brcu< milk fed directly from the morhcf 10 the infant.
brcatircedinE also tncludcs feeding the infant oitmoed or expressed breast milk.

3. Dtpmilon Otprttslon: alifncd wiihcKh trersicc's validateddeprcuion sciceninstool's definition of
- dcoresjion.

d. WWI-Chlld Vfaii AAP schedule for WeU-Cblld Vbils: Updated AAP 2017Rteomm<ndttions for Pedtainc
Preventive Health Care httpi-yAvww.aap orjycn-ut/Doeumenli/periodicliv tchedule.pdf

-s. ■ PostpartumCarc Pottpnrlwm Cnre Visit: A posiparlum visit is a visit between the rnxnanand her health care
provider to assess litt mother's cutreni physicarhealih,' inclitdint the sutus of pregpaAey-related
coevdUioiis like gesiatiortal diabetes, screen for posipanum depression, provide counseling on
infant carc and farisily pl.tAn'mj; as wdl as screening and referrals for the management of
chronic eonditioos. Additionally, a provider may irse this opporumiry to eonduci a breast exam
and diKuss breastfeediitg. The American College ofObstetricians and Cynecoloslsta
icconimertdt that mothers receive a postpartum care visit within < weeks after delivery.'

•  6. Tobxco Cutailon
RtfcrraU

Tobacco Use: eonibustibles (cigarettes, cigars, pipes, hookahs, bidis), nan-combustibles (chew,
din. snuff, sniis. and dissolvnbles). and ENDS.

7. Saft Sl<«f> No definitions rcouired
8. Child injury •  Injury-relaletJ Emergency Department Visit; injuries refer to the foUowing causes of

mechanisms ofinjury: motor vehicle,suffoeillon, drowning.poisoning, ftrt/burns. falls, sports
and'recreation, and intentional Iniuries. such as child mattreaimertt.*

9. Child
MallrcalmenI

Investigated Case; all childien svith an allegation of maltreatment ihbt were screened-m for
investigation or assessment and further received an investigation. * A teteened-in report is oite
that it accepted for investigation or assessment based on the state's serten-in crilerla.'

10. Partat'Child
Interaction

No defmilion} required

M. Corly Laneuacc
■nd Uleracy
Aellviliet

No defmitions required

(2. DodopnciiCal
Screcninc

Dot-do{>incnial Delay: delays in any or all areas including cognitive, social, language, sensory.

' (MnrtMt R, Siiih Biftkt A. «it. Pmom Birtk CauMi. Cena^cnrts. and h««*n»ien, Wash>«|i»7. DC: T»< .V»4«fn;e» Pre». 2W.
'OjiifliWnipowpwiwow.CamiBtiWTOpialw N#.646. AmolMnCollfjt»fOta»fUldafli«<dC)*»»>«»ift OWt« J0I»;IJ7;«HM2. R«i*x«4f/er»Mipt/Mvw*»j«f<A
ABcdi»C9«»it»«Op'nieaVCeit«nlncr-Qft43fci»cuie.f»*uedeeMdpdn4mf"t*u«20IIW2ITU2liJ>)OI -
■CoKi feiObeueCwwelwidPnYtnitoA HaiienslAtiwBPlwifaChlMJBjwy Ktotmion. lOIJ.RniKnd ftem>«ip#>i««*.«dt.»o«'BfKWd'NAP/bKksfeortM<iiM*>im
• CUM WrIIvt 0alO>a>'. CMU lUjIunliwnt 201); S«wwo-«f K'r Rcvicvfd Cr«m ajri,tfjonrihiMyrtltHi IfttHfWfKUfKttt'tHBBUl
* fliitil "^rTr- t— '-w* i.~w r.« chMwtlfaf* e«vAflA<f»/rf^«a>di»Vtiy.'ngCtatf

Juty)9.2016
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tAd (iiiclionat devitopniom.*

13. No definiiioM required

14. tPV Scrffnlns Indraate Partner Violence-, phyvcil v.olence. lexuil vtolenee, culkinj and psyclwlosieal
'  a^resiion (including eoerci** »cu) by a ewrreni or fofmerinilmwe panner. An inlimaie panner

ij a person with whom one hu a eloM persotul rcljilonjhip thai can be choracieriwd by ihe
following: emotional connectcdnew. regular coniaci. ongoing phyaical conuci and K.eual
behavior idemljy as a couok. ramiliathv and knowtedne about each oiher'a livea.

15. Primary C«rcxlv«r Ko definitions required

15. CoMlinuily of
loiurnnct

Continuous Health Iniurance Coverage: having heitlh iniuranee coverage without any
lapses.

17. Compltltd
Dfpruileii'
Rrftrrtif

Recommended scrvleea: specific techniques and tniervcnifon models delivered in the context
of clienl charactcrisircj. culciuc. and peefercnees that have shew to have positive elTeett on
outcomes through rigorous evaluations and have dentonsiQied to achieve positive outcomes for
tlve client.*.

IS. Complrlnl
r)rvrli>pmen(ai

Oevriopmenlal Oelayi debys in any or ail areas including eogrdtive. social, language, sensory,
and emotional d«etopmcni.* t

.  19. IPV R«frrrAl) lniim.ite Partner VioleBee: physical violence, sexual violtnce. sulking and psjrthologtcal
aggression (including coercive a<i$)by acunenr or former iniimaie partner. An intimate partner
is a person with whom one has a close personal relationship th.sl can be characteriud by the
folterviag: emotional connectedness, regular eonijct, ongoing physical coituci and sexual
behavior kleoiity at ■ couple, famillaritv and lcitowkd?c about eseS oiScr'i lives.'

♦ US. Libory W MrtlfW. Nnwul IniiiMO of Itrtfth. P.«holO|f«il Wn T,m,t $>"«•• "I». R.uif.td f.n»
Prp.'»nion md Cmirol; Oiro^ of V.'eltntt Piei?tai®n. 201S. Rrtnr\r4 fiwn

* Hw« VifMM| C«Ka60O)i<« y*d

h\y 19o2D)i
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

Attachment 5 - DCYF Key Pertormance Metrics

Key Performance Metrics
Referrals

Share of families who are referred to HFA from DCYF.
f# of families currently enrolled in HFA CWP and % of HFA CWP slots currently used)
Share of DOYF-referred families that were enrolled between three (3) and twenty-four
(24) months of age.

Share of DOYF-referred families with a recent assessment of a Substance Exposed
Infant (SEP.

Enrollments

Average time to enrollment from the time and date of referral.
# of days from referral date to the first home visit.
Share of families that are offered HFA and % of offered families who decide to receive
HFA.

Relative rate of families enrolled by racial/ethnic and geographic characteristics.
Proportion of families that are retained in the program over specified periods of tirne
f6 months. 12 months. 24 months. 36 months, etc.) after receiving a first home visit.
Proportion of families who receive at least seventy-five (75%) percent of the
appropriate number of home visits based upon the individual level of service to which
thev are assigned.

Program Completion

Share of families who do not complete the program (incl. reason tor non-
completion/discharge).

Share of families that discharged who completed a minimum of specified periods of
service. (3 months, 6 months. 12 rrionlhs, 18 months. 24 months, 30 months. 36
months).

Proportion of families who complete program by racial/ethnic and geographic
characteristics. •

Short-term Outcomes

Share of families with a new case opened to DCYF. or a new report of maltreatmerit,
within six months after discharge

Share of children who enter out-of-home placement within six months after discharge
(Incl. breakdown of placement type).
Share of children who enter any form of out-ol-home placement within 12 months of
discharge.-

Differences in outcomes outlined above (i.e.. prevention of out of home removal,
decreases in risk/needs) bv racial/ethnic and geographic characteristics.

RFP-2023-DPHS-01-HOMEV-03

Page 1 of 1



DocuSign Envelope ID: FB51B797-44E6-4309-B613-EC48448AC879

OocuSIgn Envelope ID: AC2e35EO-92F6-<02D«D2G.J44Oe4F9SCiC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 61.5% Federal funds from:

1.1.1. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant
Program, as awarded on September 7, 2021, by the DHHS
Health Resources and Services Administration. CFDA 93.870,
FAINX10MC43595.

1.1.2. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant
Program, as awarded on September 2, 2022, by the DHHS
Health Resources and Services Administration, CFDA 93.870,
FAINX10MC46878.

1.1.3. American Rescue Plan Act Funding for Home Visiting, as
awarded on April 30.2021. by the DHHS Health Resources and
Services Adminislration. CFDA 93.870, FAIN X11MC41935.

1.1.4. American Rescue Plan Act Funding for Home Visiting, as
awarded on October 28, 2021, by the DHHS Health Resources
and - Services Administration, CFDA 93.870,
FAINX11MC45263.

1 1 5, New Hampshire Inliative to Address COVlD-19 Health
Disparlies, as awarded on May 27,2021, by the DHHS Centers
lor Disease Conlrol and Prevention, CFDA 93.391, FAIN
NH750T000031.

1.1.6. Administration of Children Youth & Families (AGP), as awarded
on October 1. 2022, CFDA 93.658, FAIN 22aiNHFOST.

1.2.^ 38.5% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:
2.1. The Contractor as a Subreclpient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. The Department shall" make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

4. The final invoice and supporting documenilation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

5. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class tines through the

fps
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT C

Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, If needed and
justified.

6. Audits

6.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist;

6.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subreclpient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

6.1.2. Condition B.- The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lii-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

6.1.3. Condition C • The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) rGgulalions to
submit an annual financial audit.

6.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single Audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to
dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's
fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.
6.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings

and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

6.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual
financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after
the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

6.4. In addition to. and not In any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it Is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because o( such an exception,

A. Payment Terms Respective to Traditional Home Visiting Services for the
Division of Public Health Services (DPHS):

7. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with

fS
ftFP-2023-DPHS-01-HOMEV-03 C'2.0 COftUaciOf Iniljals.f
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New Hampshire Department ol Health and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT C

8.

the approved line items, as specified in Exhibits C-1. Budget through C-IO,
Budget.

The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) vi/Drl<ing day of the month following
the month In which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each Invoice:

Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number Issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department ol Administrative Services.

is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

Includes supporting documentation of allowabte costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to. time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to DPHSContractBilling@dhhs.nh.QoV or mailed to:

Financial Ivlanager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 033G1

B. Payment Terms Respective to Child Welfare Protocols for the Division for
Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) for direct services:

Payment shall be tor services provided in fulfillment of this Agreement, as
specified in Exhibit 8, Scope of Work Section 3.4, and in accordance with the
following:

9.1. Weekly Rate: For the purposes of this Agreement, a weekly rate shall be
paid in the amount of $404.39 per client (family) once per week.

Payment shall be made on a monthly basis and follow a process
determined by the Department.

The Contractor cannot exceed the maximum allotrnent for weekly rate
expenditure by Fiscal Year, which is as follows:

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

9.

9.2.

9.3.

Stale Fiscal Year Amount

SFY 2023 $89,168

SFY 2024 $108,983

RFP-2023-OPHS01 -HOMEV-OS
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New Hampshire Department of Heallh and Human Services
Home Visiting Services

EXHIBIT C

SFY 2025 $54,711

Sub-Total $252,862

9.4. The Contractor shall submit non-clinical expenses via the Website:
htlps://business.nh.aov/beb/PaQes/lndex.asDx.

9.5. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services.
In compliance with funding requirements.

C. Payment Terms Respective to Child Welfare Protocols for the Division for
Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) for administrative services:

10 The Contraclor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized
expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice
is completed, dated and.returned to the Department in order to initiate payment.
10.1. Maximum allotment for contract expenditures by Fiscal Year is as follows:

State Fiscal Year Amount

2023 $74,965

2024 $109,862

2025

4A
o
•

Sub-Total $184,827

•The Contractor wi
services in SFY 25

1 only bill for direct

lU.is. in ueu 01 naru invuiu© an mv vw-w — •.

signature and emailed to DCYF1nvoices@dhhs.nh.gov. or invoices may
be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

10.3. The.Conlractor must provide the services in Exhibit B. Scope of Services.
In compliance with funding requirements.

RFP-2023-DPHS0I-HOMEV-03
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Exhibit C-1 Budget Sheet. SFY 2023 ftFP-2023-OPHS-01-HOM£V-03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: The Famity Resource Center el Gorham

Home Visiting Services -
Budaet Request for: Home Visiting Formula Grant

Budqel Period: SFY 2023 (10/01/2022 - 06/30/2023}

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable): 9%

Line jterri
;  programCio'st •

Funded by. DHHS

1. Salary & Wages 157731.00

2, Fringe Benefits 34932.00

3. Consultants 4500.00

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rale cannot be applied to equipment
costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR
200.

5000.00

S.(a) Supplies • Educational

S.fb) Supplies-Lab 0.00

5.(0) Supplies • Pharmacy 0.00

S.(d) Supplies - Medical 0.00

5.(e) Supplies Office 2000.00

6. Travel 15000.00

, •<

7. Software 999.73

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Ccmmunicalions 1000.00

8. (b) Other - Education and Training 5000.00

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Other (Occupancy) 12000.00

Other (Lfa6/% Insurance) ,  1200.00

Other (Postage) 300.00

Othor (Audit & Legal) 1200.00

Other (Telephone) 3000.00

Otl\er (Annual Fees) 1800.00

9. Subrecipient Contracts 0.00

Total Direct Costs 245662.73

Total Indirect Costs 24066.27

TOTAL 269729.00

Page 1 on

Contractor Initials:

Date:
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Exhibie C-2 Budget Sheet, SFY 2024 RFP.2023.OPHS-OlHOMEV.03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: Th9 Family Resource Center at Gorham

Home Visiting Services •
Budget Request for: Home Visiting Formula Grant

Budget Period: SFY2024 (07/01/2023 - 06/30/2024)

Indirect Cost Rate (if apDlicablel; 8%

Cinei'tpro. .
Prograni Cost.*
Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages 252236.00

-

2. Fringe Benefits . 56052.00

3. Consultants 5000.00

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

500.00

5.(d) Supplies - Educational 0.00

5.(b) Supplies - t.ab 0.00

5.(0) Supplies • Pharmacy 0.00

5.(d) Supplies • Medical 0.00

5.(e) Supplies OrfK;e 715.64

6. Travel 5000.00

,

7. Software 150.00

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications 100.00

8. (b) Other - Education end Training -  550.00

8. (c) Other • Other (specify below)
Other (Occupancy) 14000.00

Other (Lldb'riity Insurance) 2000.00

Other (Postage) 400.00

Other (Telephone) ■ 4000.00

other (Audit & Legal 1500.00

Other (Annual Fees) 1800.00

9. Subreciplent Contracts 0.00

Total Direct Costs 344003.64

■

Total Indirect Costs 34350.36

V

TOTAL 378354.00

Page 1 of 1
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Exhibil C-3 Budget Sheet. SFY 202S

RFP-2023-0PHS-01-HOMEV-O3

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: Tfte Famiiy Resource Cetner at Gorham

Home Visiting Services •

Budoet Reouest for: Home VlsitinQ Formula Grant

Budaot Period: SFY 2025 (07/01/2024 - 09/30/2024)

Inrtireci Cost Rate fif aoDlicable): 9%

Uneltomi
Rrogram-Cq'st -
f-undedjbyDHHS

1. Salary & Wages 71369.09

2. Fringe Benefits 5098.00

a. Consultants
2572.00

4. Equipment .
Indirecl.cosl rale cannot be applied to
equipment costs pcf2CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV (0 2 CFR 200.

250.00

5.(al SupDiies - Educational
0.00

5.(W Supplies-Lab
0.00

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy
0.00

s (rif Supplies - Medical 0.00

4 (ft) Supplies Office 250.00

-

6. Travel
1000.00

7. Software
0.00

8 (a) Other - MarKetlnq/ Communications 100.00

8. (b) Other - Education and Training 100.00

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Olher (Occupancy) 2500.00

Other (Tefep/Jones; 700.00

Other (Liability Insurence) 0.00

Oiher (Annual Fees) 100.00

Other (Audit) 100.00

Other (Postage) 50.00

9. Subreciplent Contracts 0.00

.

Total Direct Costs .  - 84189.09

Total Indirect Costs 8393.91

TOTAL 92583.00

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:
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Exhibit C-4 Budget Sheet. SFY 2023

RFP.2023.DPHS-01-HOMEV.03

New Hampshire Department of Health artd Human Services
Contractor Name: The Family Resource Center at Gorham

Home Visiting Sen/ices -

Budaet Request for: ARP - MIEC Home Visiting

Budaet Period: SFY 2023 (10/01/2022-06/30/2023)

Indirect Cost Rate fif aDDllcablel: 9%

Line Item- * • .1  .,

Prdigrani Cost;-
-• Funde'diby DRHS

1. Salary & Wages 45809.00

2. Fringe Bertefits 3272.00

Consultants 4000.00

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rato cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

500.00

\

5.(3) Supplies • Educalionat 0.00

S.(b) Supplies-Lab
0.00

5.(0) Supplies - Pharmacy
0.00

5 (d) Supplies-Medical 0.00

5.(e) Supplies Office 431.73

6. Travel
5000.00

,

7. Software
0.00

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications 100.00

8. (b) Other - Education and Training 100.00

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Ofrter (audit) 100.00

Other (Occupancy) 3000.00

Other (Telephone) 200.00

Other (please specify) 0.00

9. Subrecipieni Contracts 0.00

Total Direct Costs 62512.73

Total Indirect Costs 6201.27

TOTAL 6B714.00

Contractor Initials:

^0.
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Exhibil C-S Budget Sheet, SFY 2024 RFP.2023-OPHS-01-HOMEV-03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: Th9 Family Resource Cenfer at Gorftam

Home Visiting Services •
Budpet Request for: ARP - MIEC Home Visiting

Budget Period: SFY 2024 (07/01/2023 - 06/30/2024}

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable): 9%

Lrnetlt.em
Program Cost-

j  ' Funded:by.DHHS' -

1. Salary & Wages 33124.00

2. Fringe BeneHts 2279.00

3. Consultants 1679.00

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV lo 2 CFR 200.

300.00

5.(a) Supplies • Educational 0.00

5.(b) Supplies - Lab 0.00

5.(c> Supplies - Pharmacy 0.00

5.(d) Supplies - Medical 0.00

5.(e) Supplies Office 499.82

6. Travel 2000.00

.

7. Softvrare O.OD

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications 200.00

8. (b) Other - Education and Training 300.00

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Other (occupancy) 4500.00

Other (eudit) 300.00

Other (telephone) 300.00

Other (please specify) 0.00

9. Subrecipient Contracts 0.00

Total Direct Costs 45481.82

Total Indirect Costs 4518.18

TOTAL soooo.oo

OS

PS
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Exhibit C-6 Budget Sheet, SfV 2025 RFP-2023-OPHS-O1.HOMEV.03

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: The FamPy Resource Confer al Gorham

Home Visiting Services -
Budaet Request for: ARP - MIEC Home Visiting

Budget Period; SPY 2025 (07/01/2024 - 09/30/2024}

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable): 9%

Line' Item;
Program Cost -
Funded by D'HHS

1. Salary & Wages 45567.70

2. Fringe Benefits 3395.03

3. Consultants'

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

0.00

.1 {A) Supplies - Educational 0.00

5.(b) Supplies-Lab 0.00

5.1c) SupoHes - Pharmacy 0.00

5.fd) Supplies - Medical 0.00

S.fe) Supolies Office 100.00

6. Travel 1000.00

7. Software 100.00

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications 0.00

8. (b) Other - Education and Training 100.00

8. <c) Other • Other (specify below)
Other (Occupancy) 1000.00

■ Ofher (Te/ephorjes) 100.00

Other (audit) 30.00

Other (please specify) 0.00

9. Subrecipient Contracts O.OD

Total Direct Costs 51392.73

Total Indirect Costs 5139.27

TOTAL 56532.00

Page 1 of 3
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Exhibit C-7 Budget Sheet. SFY 2023 RFP-2O23-DPHS-O1-HOMEV-03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name; Th$ Fomily Resource Cent$rat Gorfiam

Home Visiting Services -
Budaet Request for; Child Health, Health Div

Budaet Period; SFY2023 (10/01/2022 ■ 06/30/2023)

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable); 9%

,Lin> Item".
Pfpgram Cost,-
Funded by,O.HHS

1. Salary & Wages 36000.00

2. Fringe Benefits 2389.00

3. Consultants 3000.00-

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipmeni costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

1200.00

5.(d) Supplies - Educational 0.00

5.(b) Supplies-Lab 0.00

5.(c) Supplies-Pharmacy. 0.00

5.(d) Supplies • f^edical' 0.00

5.(e) Supplies Office 1531.00

6, Travel 1650.00

. .

7. Software 276.00

'

8. (a) Other - lytarkeling/ Communications 500.00

8. (b) Other • Education and Training 1000.00

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Other (occupancy) 3000.00

Other (Telephone) 500.00

Olher (Audit & Legal) 100.45

Other (Dues & Fees) 100.00

9. Subrecipienl Contracts . 0.00
—

Total Direct Costs 51245.45

Total Indirect Costs 5004.55

TOTAL 56250.00

Page 1 of 1
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Exhibil C-8 Budgei Sheet, SPY 2024 RFP.2023-DPHSO1-HOM6V-03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: ThB Family Resource Center at Gorham

Home Visiting Services -
Budqet Request fon CnHd Health. Health Div

Budael Period: SFY 2024 (07/01/2020 - 06/30^024)

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable); 9%

Line Item , •
Program Cost •
Funded by DHHS .

1. Salary & Wages 56965.00
•

2. Fringe Benefits 4725.91

3. Consultants 500.00

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to 100.00
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IVto 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies - Educational 0.00

(h) Supplies - Lab 0.00

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy ,  0.00

S.fd) Supplies - fi^edtcal 0.00

5.(e> Supplies Office 500.00.

6. Travel 4000.00

.  . •

7. Software 100.00

0. (a) Other - l^arkeling/ Communications 100.00

8. (b) Olher - Education and Training 550.00

8. (ci Other - Other (specify below)
Orner (Occupancy) 200.00

Other (Telephone) 300.00

Olher (Audit)

Other (Dues & Fees) 150.00

.

9. Subrecipient Contracts 0.00

Total Direct Costs 68190.91

Total Indirect Costs 6809.09

TOTAL 75000.00

Contractor Initials;

— OJ
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Exhibit C-9 Budget Sheet. SFY 2025 RFP-2023-OPHS-O1-HOMEV03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: The Family Resource Center el Gorham
Home Visiting Services •

Budget Request for: Child Health, Health Div

Budget Period: SFY 2025 (07/01/2024 - 09/30/2024)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable): 9%

'  LineMterni Program Cost -
Funded-by DIHHS^

1. Salary & Wages 6498:00

2. Fringe Benefits 1120.00

3. Consultants 500.00

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied lo
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

250.00

5.(a) Supplies - Educational 0.00

S.(b) Supplies •Lab 0,00

5.(0) Supplies • Pharmacy 0.00

5.(d) Supplies • Medical 0.00

5.(e) Supplies Office 500.00

6. Travel 3500.00

7. Software 0.00

8. (a) Other • Marketing/ Communications 500.18

8. (b) Other • Education and Training 1500.00

3. (cj Other - Other (specify below)
Other (Occupancy) 1500.00

Other (Telephone) 700.00

Other (Annual Fees) 500.00

Other (please specify) 0.00

9. Subreciplent Contracts O.OD

Total Direct Costs 17068.18

Total Indirect Costs 1681.82

TOTAL 18750.00

Page 2 of 1
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Exhibit C-10 Budget Sheet. SPY 2023 RFP-2023-DPHS-01-HOMEV.03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Th$ Family Resoune Center at Gortiam

Home Visiting Services •
Budget Request for: PH COVlD-19 Health Disparities

Budqet Period: SPY 2023 (10/01/2022 ■ 06/30/2023}

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable): 9%

Line Item ' v
■  Pr.ograrn Cost>
•  Funded'by DHHS-

1. Salary & Wages 58313.00

2. Fringe Benefits 4267.00

3. Consultants 3000.00

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rale cannot be applied lo
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV lo 2 CFR 200.

2164.00

.

5.(a) Supplies^ Educational 0.00

S.(b) Supplies-Lab o.oo

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy 0.00

S.(d) Supplies • Medical 0.00

5.(6) Supplies Office 2000.00

6. Travel 4000.00

.

7. Software 500.00

8. (a) Other • Marketing/ Communications ■200.00

8. (b) Other - Education and Training 2000.00

6. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Other (Occupancy) 2000.00

Other (Phone) 200.00

Other (Postage) 200.00

Other (please specify) 0.00

9: Subrecipienl Contracts • 0.00

Total Direct Costs 78544.00

Total Indirect Costs 7668.00

TOTAL 86512.00

OS

PS
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W«w H»«no»hlt» 0<pnwn>of M>«iu> »ft<> Hvimn S»Kte»»
Coflt/irtof 'Fi/ntfRheuxi'Ciniv V Cmun^ '

Bud9<l Re4u(«< l>r. Hom« VWfng
Budgei ptrtodiSfrmj {w/i:'V3af73),i Monifit

lAdlrMl Cos! R*u (If ipplkibltKM^

Lln» h*cn' etoe'Rin Coil • Fufttftd by OHHS

1. SetefytWw*

i. FAhf B*AWit»

3I4B3.03

7547.»2

). CooMnenu

«. E«MeniMii
Ineltea cet> r*t« cannot baapptW •oe^uJp'Bant eo*W pwJCfft 200.1
and ApeandU tv lo t Cf ft 200.

3000.00

1000.00

S.(a1 Supclai • E4we«»on»l
0.(0) Sup(*e»-Vab

0.00

0.00.

SJe> Stfppe»«-

}(d) auw*ai • Madieat4JS*—5Sta22i-::5L:
i.(a) SupptiiiOlfca

Q. T<av«t

0.00

0.00

2900.00

eese.M

7. ScVtwwa

8. (al Otfw - Wo«*a<n»' CottwwnicatiOrtt

B. tM Qdwf • Edwcjiien and Tfainlna

oreEnaco^s btlOM.)

Otna^fOecvpOwy)

0.00

1700.00
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor idenlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.}, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub, L. 100-690, Title V. Sublllle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31.
1969 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1930 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-
ccnlraclors). prior to award, that.they will mair^tain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to Ihe Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violalion of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
lermlnation of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form.shouW
send It to:

Commissioner

.  NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Slreet,

'Concord, NH 03301-6505 ■

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, dislribulion,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled subslance is prohibited in Ihe grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabililatlon, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties thai may be Imposed upon emptoyees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of Ihe grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a):
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violalion of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction; . .

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual nolice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the FederaUgency

&ExWbii D - Ccflificaiion regarding Drug Free Vendor initials
Workplace Reguifemenls 1/5/2023
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identlflcdtlon number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, wilhin 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such.purposes by a Federal, Slate, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to mainletn a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2.1.3.1.4.1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done In
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

1/5/2023

Date
Title:

Vendor Name: Th a Family Resource center at corham

NameiW^^Ha stolte •
Executive Director

OS

rs
e*h!bH D - CertiflcaKon fegarOing Drug Free Vendor InilraU
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor idenlified.in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply iwtlh the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Conlractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Cenification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUlWAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable prograrn covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Ne^y Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicald Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Developmenl Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigrwd. to
any person for Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment. Of .
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall comptetc and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with Its instructions, attached and idenlilied as Standard Exhibit 6-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at ail tiers (including subconlracls, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penally of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: Tha Family Resource center at Gorham

>»0«(uSt9««d by;

1/5/2023 f
Diiii yjsik'mmtu stoiVe ^

Executive Director

Exhlbil E - CertiScBtion fiegarding Lobbying Vendor InliJah
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CERTtFICATtON REGARDING DEBARWENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILtTY MATTERS

The Contractor IdentiHed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarmenl,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisionsexecute the following
Certificalion:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting Uiis proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inabPity of a parson to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transactton. If necessary, the prospective particlparil shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will he
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services* (OHMS)
delermlnaUoo whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certificafion, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, OHMS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall'provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any lime the prospective primary pahicipant learns
(hat its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction.' "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible,' "lower tier covered
transaction," 'participant." 'person,' 'primary covered transaction,' "principal," "proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into. It shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarmenl, Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modificalion, in ail lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for tower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, Ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it krK>ws that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocuremeni List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of r«ords
in order lo render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and^""

Exhibit F - C«<li<ic8lion Regirding OebarmeM, Suspension Contraclor Iniiisb
And Othe'Reapenslhility Matters 1/5/2023
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instnjctions, If e participant In a
covered transaction lcnawir>gty eriters into a lower tier covered Iransaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction. In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
phncipals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excti^d from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Stale antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsificalion or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otheirwise criminally or cMlly charged by a govemmer)tal entity
(Federal, Slate or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this cerHricdlion; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this appncatlon/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shali attach an exf^anation to this proposal (contract). '

lower TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participani. as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ir>eli9ible, or

voluntarily excluded from partidpation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier partidpant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective padiclpant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. ̂^he-prospecliva lower tier partidpant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
Vtciude this clause entitled 'Certificallon Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibllity, and
-Voluntary Exdusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

ConlfaclorName: Tba Family Resource center at corham

OtwtlO'x^by:

1/5/2023 I PflMaV SfdUc
^ Stolte

Executive Director

Eihibii F - CeniTicalion Re^atdlng Oebarmsnt. Suspc/ision Contractor Iflitials
And Other RetponalbBty Mstters 1/5/2023
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAJTH«BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
cehificdtion:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrlmination requirements, which may include:

• the Omnibus "Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either In emptoyment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C, Section 5672(b)> which adopts by
refererKe, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this .
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or In the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits. In any program or activity;

. the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In employment. Stale and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice R^uiations-OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminalion; Equal Employmenl Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws lor faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations'- Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations): and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Coniracl Employee Whistleblower Protections, which prolocls employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material represenlation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violaiion of the certification shall t>e grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or terminalion of granis, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Qs
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In the event a Federal or Slate court or Federal or State administrative agei^ makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civll Rights, to
the applicable conlracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman;

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contraclor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the followmg
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: Tha Family Resource Center at Gorharo

-DMutltnedkr-

I  r
l/S/2023

^  DMUdtnMkr-

J PaMup'
VfameT^t^riiia stolte

Executive Director

Exnibh G
Conliaclor initials

C«<U<«Ss« cffOTfii>-twOi H OjFiilh-BatW08«>J*Jon»
»ndVmi0fW»i« p(eiK*»n>
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco SmoKe, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
{Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or.
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through Stale or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the imposlUon of a cK/il monetary penally of up to
S1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts lo comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:Tha Family Resource Center ai'corham

D«<ySI«n«4 by;

l/S/2023 pAfyuifl.
DitT ffflri'iWiia Stolte

Title. Executive Director

—0)

PS
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountabllily Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tille 45..
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.601.

e. "Data Aoaregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
• Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Qoeralions" shall have the same meaning as the term, "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501..

g. 'HITECH Act" means Ihe Health information Technology for Economic and ClinicatHealth
Act. TitleXIII. Subtitle 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountabiltty, Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Seclion164.5Q1(g).

J. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards (or Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k, "Protected Haalth Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or recelv^by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. fS

ExMbiil Conlfaclor
Health Insurance Porlability Act
Business Associate Aflreemenl l/S/2023
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1. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 46 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health InforrYiation at 45 CFR Part 164. .Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology slandard that renders protected health information unusable. •
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. other Definitions - All terms no! otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to lime, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate. Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (I)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third parly to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the^ HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that il Is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclo^e^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Bus^^

3/2014 £xtM&il I Conlraclor Mlisi)
lAjurance Porlsbfllty Act
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obllaatlona and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.'

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
■ breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and procedures, books
arid records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have •
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ̂ gpiate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be recervijig^l .

ExhiWl I ConUador Inlilalt^-- ■■
Heallh insurance Pwia&iliiy Acl
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed.by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. • Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained,in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
' obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164,528.

k. In the event eny individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
buslriess days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have (he
responsibilily of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entily or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

1  Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHl.and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thn-
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasibie, for so long as Business

ExNUII ' CoAUadorInilisU.
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or llmitalion(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with-45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify" Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
184.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164:522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immedlalety
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. II Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) fVliscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit 1. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to lime as is necessary lor Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d  Interoretalion. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resotved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. PS

3/2014 Exhiblil ContiBctoi Initials
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Seoreaalicn. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or drcumslance Is heW invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in-sectlon (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of thfe
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department ol Health and Human Services Tha Faratly Resource center at Gorham
Contractor

pftfritiA •j'

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature oT Authorized Representative

Patricia M. Tilley Patricia Stolte

Name of Authorized Representative
Director

Name of Authorized Representative

executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

1/6/2023 l/S/2023

Date Date

>
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CgRTIPlCATION REQARDINQ THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
•  - ^ ACTIFFATAICOMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awards on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation arxJ associated first-tier sub-grants ol $25,000 or more. If the
Initial eward is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subavrard or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requlren^ents:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAlCS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (UEI #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues ere from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation infomialion Is not already available through reporting to the SEC,

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or eward amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Suba^rd and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, es identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Tha Family Resource Center at Gorham

1/5/2023

Date ^

OotyJigo*# tjr;

stol-te

Title; Executive Director

PS
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FORM A

As the Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
beiow listed questions are true and accurate.

.  . 0191S0817/S04Q2
1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $23,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranls, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X  NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. ptease answer the following:

3. Docs the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78mtfl). 7Bo(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES. stop here

If the answer to d3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensalion of ihe five most highly compensated officers in your businws or
organization are as follows:

Name:.

Name:..

Name:.

Name:;

Name:.

Amount:.

Amount:,

Amount:,

.  Amount:

Amount:

CU'0»*lS'il07i)
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information. '' Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
incidenl' in section two (2) of NIST Publicallon 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally identifiable Information.

-  Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed, by
the'Slale of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Heallh;
Human Services (DHHS) or,accessed in the course , of performing contracted
services - of which collection, diklosure. protection, and disposition is governed by
slate or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security. Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCl). and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that, receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance wiih the terms of thls Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance PortabDity and Accounlabillty Act of 1996 and Ihe
regulations promulgated thereunder.

"Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, lnstruction,.,or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

Is
vs. Last update 10/09/18

DHHS In/ormBllon
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mail, ali of which may have the polenliai to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wifeless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
hot designated by the State of New. Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

, 8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace ah individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:l9. biomelric records, etc..
alone, or when combined v/ith other personal or Idenllfying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.'

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subparl C. and amendments
thereto.

•12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Informalion.

1. The Conlfaclor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Informalion in response to a
p»

PS
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor thai DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and at>ove those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees thai DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to (he terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1: Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabllllies ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices, End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and bejng sent to and" being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmilled via a Web site.

5. File Hosting ServiceSi also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage. 16 transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail wjthin the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops, and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to- transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5.USI update 1(V09/18 Contractor Wiiate
DHHS Irttorrnallon
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10 SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
staiclure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate,disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auloKJeletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

111. RETENTION AND DISPOSfTION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such lime, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy Ihe data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees It will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of-protecting Department confidential Information. ■

4. The Contractor agrees to retain ail electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data .
in a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contrartor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAK/tP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive inlrusion-deteclion and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the Statie's
Chief Information Officer In the detectlori of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

8. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain-a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with. Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitizalion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as desaibed in NISI Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify, in writing al
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certincatioh will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to deslruclion.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the ■ termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape. disK paper, etc.). ^
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3 The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication amJ access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Deparlment confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6  If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Slate of New Hampshire, the Contractor will mainlam a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a nninimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
Stale of New Hampshire and Department syslerri access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) vwlh the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9 The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vuinerabillties that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an allernal© lime frame at the Departmenis discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stales unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting frorp the breach.
The State shall recover from the Coniraclor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidentiat Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable lo federal agencies, including,
but not limited lo. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), OHMS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access lo it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is, not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at htlps.7/www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Deparlment of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to mainlain a documented breach notification and incident
response process: The Contractor will notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and the
Slate's Security Officer of any security breach immedialety. at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data oblained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Inforrnation at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
- PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent lo and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

&.:ii
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e. limit disclosure of the Conndenllal Information to the extent permitted by law.
(  Confidential Information received under this Contract and indiwdually

identifiable data derived from OHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometrlc identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may trensmit the Confidential Data, including any
■ derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at alt times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a 'risk-baSed

■ assessment of the circumstances involved.

1  understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with, anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify .the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of ariy
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding."Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:
1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information is Involved In Incidents;
3. Report suspected or confirmed incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37,
4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents

and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach nolilication is required, and. If so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as welt as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches thai Implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPflvacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.90v

8. DHHS Security Officer:.

DHHSInformalionSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.90v
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